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AGENDA
JOINT LEGISLATIVE AUDITING COMMITTEE

DATE: Monday, January 11, 2010
TIME: 4:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.
PLACE: Room 309, The Capitol

MEMBERS: Representative Greg Evers, Chair
Senator Alex Diaz de la Portilla, Vice Chair

Senator Andy Gardiner Representative Betty Reed

Senator Charlie Justice Representative Dwayne L. Taylor
Senator Jeremy Ring Representative John Tobia

Senator Stephen R. Wise Representative Chartes E. Van Zant

1. Presentation and discussion of Auditor General Report 2009-186,
Pinellas County District Schoot Board - Financial, Operational, and Federal
Single Audit

2. Discussion concerning the City of Islandia

3. Presentation and discussion of OPPAGA Report 09-35, Benefifs from
Statewide Cable and Video Franchise Reform Remain Uncertain

4. Other Committee Business-
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Sumenary of Report on Financial Statements

Our audit disclosed that the Distret’s basic financial statcments were fairly presented, in all materdal
respects, in accardance with prescribed financial reporting standards,

Summary of Report on Internal Control and CompHance

We noted 2 cettain matter involving the DHstrdet’s internal control over financial repotting and its operation
that we consider to Ire 2 materizl weakness, and others we consider to be significant deficiencies, as
snmmarized below,

‘The results of our tests dizclosed no instances of noncompliance or ather manters that are required to he
epotted under Govermment Auditing Standands, however, wo poicd ceoain additional matiers as
sunnnarized helow. .

MATERIAL WEARNERS

Fiﬂdigg INo. 1: Improvements are needed in internal controls over the investment program to strengthen
accountability,

SIGNWIFICANT DEFICIENCIES

indin 2:  Improvereents are necded in Dhistrict procedures to ensure that cerdain accounts and
transactions are properly reporied on the Anancial statements,

Finding No. 3 The Distict’s snonthly bank reconciliations wete inadeguate o enseve that the cash and
investment asscts agreed with the accounting recocds.

ADDITIONAL MATTERS

Finding No. 4: Proccdural improvements are needed in controls over maintcnance, warchousce and
transportation inventories by adequately separating asset custody and record keeping responsibilities, and
lmiting access to inventory storage areas.

Finding No. 5: The District could enhance Its controls over wonchering by adequately separating
incompatible duties.

Finding No. &z Improvements are needed in the THstict's procedures o reconcile detailed supporting
records to the gepceral ledges for certain health plan general ledger acconnts.

Finding Wo. 7:  The IHsuict’s accouwnting procedures for capital cotlay and capital asset transactions
could be improved.

Finding Mo 8: Procedoral enhancements are needed in {premal conmols o sirengthen acconntabilicy for
a la carte food sales.

Finding No. 90 The District incurred costs of $1,819,909, from its capital outlay millage funds that were
aot, of recotd, allowable ander the provisions of Section 101L71{2), Florida Stamves. :

Finding No 10:  Enhancements could he made in the administration of guatanteed maximuom price
CONSIFRCTiON contracts.

Finding Nw, 11: The Disaict transforred student focs, totaling  $6,157,936, fom  the workfore
development program to an unresiricted account in the General Fund, contrary to goidance from Florida
Drepartment of Educadon.

i
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Finding No. 12:  The District has not remened $3,033,923 to the workforce development program for
tetmbursement of indirect costs generated duting the 200405 fiscal year which wete incomectdy tmapsfened
to an marestricted account in the General Fund,

Figgding Mo, 1% The Disgict did not always provide written statcments to individuals stating  the
nurposes for the collection of social security aumbers, contrary o Section 119.071{3{a}). Florida Stamies.

Finding No, 14: The Distdict did oot bave adequate procedures for dmely obtaining fingerprines and
backg:u‘u.ud screentngs for instrctonal and noninstructional staff that have dicect contact with smdents.

Finding No. 15:  The District had not developed and implemented policics and proceduates requiting

emplﬂ}rees to docnment the business use of cellnlar telephones.

Finding No, 16:  [mprovements are needed in the monitoring procedures of charer schools to cosure the
adequacy of required inswrance coverage.

Finding Mo, 17 Eabancements could be made to ensure the adequacy of insurance eoverage for work
performed by architects,

Finding MNo. 18: The District had not implemented procedures for neview by management of vser access
accannis.

Finding No. 1 Improvements are needed in the Distrder’s imformation technology (IT) secwrity
controls. -
Findinge Mo 20:  The Diztdct’s IT program change controls neaded improvetaent,

Linding Ne. 2l: DHsirct staff did not zemeve the I'l' access pivileges of certain former employecs in a
thmely manner.

Finding Ne. 22: The District’s scowrity awarcocss traising needed improvement.
Finding Mo, 23:  Improvements were needed in testing the Diswrict’s disaster recovery plan.

Summary of Report on Federal Awards

We audited the Disttict’s Federal awards for complinnce with applicable Federal reguitcments. The Child
Nutriton Chaster and Title T peograms were andited as major Federal programs. The results of onr andix
indicated that the District matetially complicd with the requitcments that were applicable to the major
Federal programs testedh However, we did note compliance and intewnal conteol findings that are
summarized below.

Federal Awards Finding Woe. 1@ The Distict wsed Tide 1 prograwa funds to reduce {supplant} the
amount of vther moneys wsed o operate the program, contrary to Federal regulations,

Federal Awards Finding Nao. 2:  IMstrict recands disclosed that 19 hourly weachers, who provided services
to cligible private school stmdents, did oot meet the requirements t0 be highly gqualified, contrary to

Federal regniations.
Audit Objectives and Scope
Our audit objectdves were to determine whether the Pinellas County District School Board and its officers
with adminismative and stewardship responsibilities for Dismict operations had:
7 Presented the Disttets basic financizl statcmonts o accondance with gencrally accepted
accounting principles;
# FBsmblished and implemented iniernal control over financial reporong and complbiance with

tequirements that conld have a dircet and matedal effect on the firancisal statements or on a major
Federal program; :

i
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# IDstablished internal contrals that promotc and cocourage: 1) compliance wilh applicable laws,
rules, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; 2) the economic and efficient cperation of the
District; 33 the reliability of records and reports; and 4) the safeguanding of Disaicr assers;

!

Complied with the various provisions of laws, mles, regulatons, contracts, and grant sgreements
that are matetal to the finaneial statements, and those applicable to the District's major Federal
programs; and

# Taken corrective actions for findings included in previcons audit reports,

The scope of this aodit fncloded 2n examination of the Distzict®s basic financial statements and the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards as of and for the fiscal vear coded June 30, 2008, We obtained
an understanding of the Disttict’s environment, including its internal control, and assessed the risk of
material misstatement necessary to plan the andit of the basic financial statements and Federal awards.
We also exwmined vadous transactions to determine whetber they were execmied, both in maoner and
subrstance, in accordance with governing provisioos of laws, rules, regulations, contracts, and grant
arrccmonts.,

Audit Methodology

The methodology used to develop the findings in this report included the cxamination of pestinent District
records in commection with the application of procedures required by aunditing standards gencrally
accepted in the United Statez of Amcrica, applicable standards corntained in Goversmnent Aodiffng
Srandards issusd by the Compiroller General of the Trnited States, and Odfice of Management and Budget
Circalar 4-133

Al
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AUDITOR GENERAL
STATE OF FLORIDA

L o _ 74 Clande Pepper Building SRl
Da:“] W. Martix, LEA 111 West Madison Street 4504895534
AUDITOR GENERAL i
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1450 Tax 85304556975

The President of e Senare, the Speaker of the
Hearse of Represcnmatives, and the
Temizlarve Aditing Corumitlee

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S
REPORT QN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have avdined the accompenying foancad statements of the governmental actvities, the agmregale discrelely
presented component units, each tmagor fund, and the aggregare temaining fund nformation of the Pinellas {ooncy
[ustoct Sckeol Board as of and for the biscal wear ended [une 30, 2008, which collecovely compose the Distoct's
asic Auancial statsments 4s Tisted on the tble of contents. These Anaucial swalements are the responsibility of the
Distact’s cranagement  Our responsibility 18 to cxpress cpimons on these bnanceal statemenss based on our audic,
We did nat aedil the Ananaal statements of the Pinellas County Fducaton Foundeton, Ine, and the Thistocl's feve
chacret schools, which represent the agpregate discrerely presented component units. Those financial sttements
wore andited by ocher anditors whose teports bave been fumished oo ns, and our opimon, insofar as it welares to dhe
amounds ncluded Jor the sggresmae discretely presented compesent units, 33 based on he reports of the other
auditors.

We condvcted our audit In acvoxdance with audinog standa=ds generally aceepted 1o the United Slates of Awmedea
aricl the standards applicalle o financial audits eontained in Crogermamestt Audizing Younderdr issued by the Comprroller
General ef the Unired Smates. Those standards sequire that we plan and perform the audic to obtasn reasonable
assurance about whether the Frandal statements are free of matens] misstetement. Ao auvdit includes examining, on
A teat basis, evidence suppotting the amouncs and dsclosures in the fAnancial staemenes. An aodir also xcludes
asscssing the accounting ponciples nused and sigmificans estimates mede by menagement, as well as cvaluating the
vvenll finandcal statement presentaton, We beleve thar ecr awdit, snd the sepords of the other auditons, provide 4

teasonable basis for our opinions.

1 our opinioa, based oo our audit and the reports of the other zuditors, the fowacial sterements refermed to above
present fairly, in all metedal respects, the mespectve finapcial posiion of the governmenlal activites, the agmemte
discretely prezented component units, each major fued, and the ageregans revmainitng fund informetion for the
Proeflas Comnty Dhiseact School Borrd 22 of Juae 3, 2IH8, and the sespecove changes i Bnanoal posidoes and cash
flows, where applicible, thereof for the veas then ended 10 conformity with accouatiog ponciples generally accepred
iz the United Stares of Amencs
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In accordance with Gemsermrent Aeditinr Siandands, we have also issacd a repore oo our considesanon of the Pracllas
Conmty THatrict School Board's inlernul contrul over foendsal repordng end oo our tests of its compliznee with
cercam provisions of laws, mles, regulations, conrraces, and goant agreements and other reatters included under the
brading INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMWENT ALDITING
STANDARDS The purpuse of that report 1s to descdbe the scope of our testiag of Inrernal control over financiat
reporting and compliance and the results of that lesting, and ot o provide an opinion an fhe intemmal eonrenl grer
Snancisl rcpocing or on compliance.  That report is an tegeal part of an andic performed i accordance with

Cioesrmerert o Lndeiing Shawdardr and should be considered 1o assessing the reselts of oo andit,

The MANAGEMENT®S DISCUSSION AND AWALYSIS {pages 3 throush 125 and the other required -
suppimnt:uL“aI_l.' tniormation (shewn as Exlubits - L and 34) arc not a sequiced par of the basic Hoancal statements,
bur are supplernentary information required by accounling ponciples generally accepled in the United Srares of
Aomedca, We have applied cortae Dmited procedures, which consisted princtpafly of nquirics of mazagement
regarding the methods ol messurement and presentadon of the equired supplemenrary informaton. TIowever, we

did not andit the infermatton and express o opintan on it

Qur avdit was cuoducted for the purpose of fomuog opietens on the Anancal statements that collectvely comprise
the Dhstrier's basic financial statervents. The accotnpunyving SCHEDULE OF EXPENIMTURES OF
FEDERAL AWARTDS iz presented tor purposes of additional analpsis as reqrited by the United Stares Offoe of
Maeagerreny god Budeer Coader A-133, Alsdber of Stater, Loca! Goverments, ard Nog-Praf®! Opesizadons, snd 35 not a
requercd part of the basic fnaecial statements. Such informarion has been sebjected to the auditing procedwres
applied in the audil of the basic fosncal statements and, In our spimies 15 fardy stated, 1o 2fl metenal respects, o
relarion to the basic fnancial srarements talen as 3 whole.

Respectfully submined,

L0 ]

Dranad W, Martin, CPA
Afasch 24, 2009
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The tmamagement of the Pinellas County Bistrier School Board has prepared the Sollewing disoussion and anelysis

tor (&) assst the reader 1o focosing on sigmbeant financial issues; {b) provide an overiew and analysis of Lhe

Tristricr’s financial activilies, (o) ddeulify changes in the Distder’s foandal position; &) identify marerial deviations

fror the approved budger, and {&) highlight significant issnes in individual fonds.

Becauss the infermades contaned io the Management™s Piscussicn 2nd Aoalvsis (MDHeA) Is intended o highHght

stemificanl ransactions, evenls, and cosditions, it should be constdeted in cotjunction with the THstrier's financial

staternents and aotes o fnancial staretments Found on pages 13 chrougl 300

TINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

ey fnancis] highliches for the 20007-08 fseal vesr are o follows:

B

W

W

L3

In total, net asscts increased 5131 mulhon, which represents an 8.3 percenr tncrease from the 2006707 {iseal

el

Cremeral evenues ol $1.1 hillion, or 901 percent of all revemues. Program specific tevenues in the fore
of charpes for services, operating granes and conoibutions, and cepital graots and costnbutions total
5118.7 million, or 9.9 pemcent,

Espenses totaled §1 billion, only $118.7 milhon of these expenses were offser by prograin specific charges,

with the retnainder paid From general revenuss.

The rmreserved fund balznce of he General Fund, representing the net cureent financial resouzces avatlable
for gencral appropraation by the Board, totaled $603.4 million at [uce 30, 2008, or 7.3 percent of total
Genera] Fund expeoditures,

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial staternents consise of three components:

g

»

Governmen l-wide {inancial staernen s
Thund financial starermnents,

iWotes to financial statements.

‘The mejor feamires of the Distrct’s hnencial statemenrs, incuding the pordes of the actdnes teponied and the

tvpe of infotmaton contained, is shown 1o the follewing table,
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MMAJOR FEATURDS OF THE GOVERNMENT-WINDTE ANT FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Sovemment-wide
Statemeants

Fund Financial Statements

Gaverrmertal

Proprietary

Fiduciany

Srane

Sniire Lisirict fexcept

The activities of the Cisinct

Aciivities the Distrigt

Assets held by the Dlatric:

in Fund Salances.

Met Aszets, and Statermnent
of Cash Flinws.

fiduciany fundsz). that are not propristary or - |providas to other funds. The|in 2 trustes ar grant
fiduciany. District's self-insurancs czpacity such as the
aredgran is the only internal accounts of the
] oropriatany operation. =schools.
Required firancial Simiement of Mat Azses [Balance Sheet, and Statement of Met Assets, Statament af Fiducizry
stztemants arkf Statemnent of Seawement of Revenuas, Slatement of Revenues, Asgets ard Labilities.
Artivittes. Espenditures, and Changes |Expenzes and Changes in

Eazis of accoenting
and mezssurement
facus

Acorual accounting.

Ecanotrec resourcas
foous.

Modified accruat
ECCourting.

Current financia: resourses
foous.

Arcrual accounting.

Ecaremic 1esauices facus.

Accrezl accouniing.

Econemic resourcas foous.

Type of asset and
lizbllity information

All assets and liabikifies,
Eeln finaneial and
capical, shat-tem and
Iorg-term.

Gererslly aaseis expected
to e ysad up and Habiities
that come due during e
YEET L SO0 thensaler. Mo
capiial asgetz or leng-tenn
liztilities included,

AlZ geaats and Fabilties, Dot
financizl and capital; shait-
term and fong-term.

Al assets and liaziliies,
bath financial and capital;
shart-term ard leng-ierm.
These turds do nat
curren:ly cantzin amy
capital assets, althaugh
thay can.

Type af inflow and
outflow: infomation

All revenues and
exnenses during the
yzar, ranzriisss of when
cg=h is received or paid.

Revenues for which cash is
received during or s00n
after the end of the yaar;
exmenditures when goods ar
senices have besn
reeeived ard the related
fisbilties ara due end
nayabla

Al revenues and expenses
during the year, regardless
afwtien cach & recaived o
paid.

Al addfitons or deductions
diriteg the yaar, regardless
of whien cash is received
and paid,

GOVERNMONT-%IDE FINANCIAL STATTIMEINTS

The govetmment-wide financisl stalements provide both short-tertn and long-tenm nfoamation abort the THstrics

cvetall financial condition 2 manner similar to those of a privare-zector business. The smatersenss mclude a

statcment of net asscts and a statcment of acomnes that ere desipned to provide consolidared Enanaal information

about the governmenlal sctvities of the pomery government preseated on the scusl bass of accounting, The

staternent of net assets prowides informarion abous the governmnent’s financial position, itz asscts and Labilities,

using 20 €CONOMIC Iesources measarcment focus, Fhe difference betwoen the assers and Babilines, he nel sssets, #

a measure of the financial health of the Distdel. The slatement of aclivities presents information about the change

in the LHsorict’s net assers, the resuls of operations, during the fiscal vesr. An increase or decocase In pet assets 15 an

indication of whether the Distoct’s financeal healsh i improving or detetfomting,

The govetrzoeni-wide statements present the Disinel’s acivilies in lwo categoties.

#  Governmental activities — This represents mast of the Districts senvices, inchiding ils educational progemms:

baste, wocatonal, adull, and exceplonal educasion.

Suppert functions sech 2z ranspotetion and

administration are zlsn included. Loeal property taxes and the Smee’s educanen finance program prosids

most of the mesources thar support these actvites,

4.




MarCH 2005 RrronT NO. 2009-186

# Componoest units — The Distoct prosenss skc separate legal endlies in Gis repert including Acadernie 1%
Vined Charler Schook, Tue; The Ackendan Academy Charter School, Tncy the Pinellas Prepararory Academy,
Inc; Plato Academy; 2nd Life Skills Chareer Schocl, inc; and Pincllas County Educadon Foundstion, Inc
Although lepally scparase orpanizations, the compunent units are inchudled in iz repott becanse they meet
the ctivetia for incusion provided Ty generally acceptad accounting prineiples.  1inascial information Zor
these component wuts is repomed separately from the fmascal-infommation oresented for the pomssy

government

Ovver 4 petiod of time, changss n e THatrier's net assers are an indication of Improving or Setemoreting Hnancid
condiien. 'his infarmation should be evalzated in conjencden with other noafinancil factors, such as changes ic
the Dhsloat’s property lax base, studenl entollment, and the condition of the District’s capital asscts Including its
school buiidings and administrative facilities.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fund financial statements are one of the components of the basic finapcal stevements, A fuzd 15 4 groupiog of
rehated accouats that is nsed to maintain conotrol over resources that have been segregated for specific activioes o
olhectives.  The Tistrier wses fund acconnting 1o ensure and demonszrate complizace wath finasce-related legal
roquicements and predent fAiscal manapement. Certain funds are established by Low while olhers are creared by legal
agreements, such 5 bond covemsnts, Fund finandsl stalements provide more detailed mfommanon abeur the
Ldsorier's fmancial activides, fomsing on it most sizmifcant or “majos” fumds rather than fund lypes. This i3
contrast to the entty-wide perspoctve contzined in the government-wide sratements. All of the Distacts fonds
snay he classifisd within one of three hroad categories as discussed belosw.

Goveramental Punds: Govemmental funds are wsed o acconat for essentially the same Bancrions repomed as
governmentsl activides In the govermment-wide finandal stalements. However, the governmental fonds utthze =
spendabde financtal resnurces measureruent focus rather than the coonomic rescurces measurement foces found o
the government-wide finandal statements, The finandal mesouces measatement focns allows the governimernial
fund statements o provide informarion on near-term inflows and cutflows of speodable mesources, as weell as

balences of spendable resonsces available a1 the end of the fiscal vear

The governmental fund statements provide 2 detalled shor-leon view thar may be nsed o evabuate the Distdet's
neatr-retm financirg vequitemencs. This ﬁhnrt—s‘érm view is uzefod when compared to the leog-temm view presenied
a5 govemmental activities 1n the goveramentwide financial statetnents, To facillate this comparison, both the
governimental funds balasce sheet and the governmental funds sisimment of revenues, expenditiees, and changes in

fund balances provide a reconciliatton of governmental fonds to povemmental achvites,

'Lhe govcrnmental funds balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in find balances
provide detadled inforroation about the Tistricr’s most significant funds. The District’s major funds are the General
Fund znd Capital Projects — Local Capisal Improvement 1und  Date frome the other govermmentsl fends are
combined inte 2 single, apgTegared proseptation.

The Disttict adepls an snoual appropdated budger for ity governmental fmnds. A bedgetary compadson schedule
has been provided for the Creneral Fund to demonstrate compliaaee wath the budget,

Propretary Yunds: Propoctasy funds ooav be established to account for actvibes in which g fee s charged for
services.  Lhe Dismct moaintsins an invernal serdeoe fuod o account for its selfinsisance progrzims, Hclding
workers” compensalion, general labilty, and autotoobile labifity coverage. The Distric’s internal service fund 1s

5
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iocluded witltn governments] acdvities in the govemnmenl-wide financial sratements becouse the services
predomimbedy benefir the Distders’ geaerntnesial actvines.

Fiducisary Funds: Fidvcany funds are used to teporr assets held in a suster or fidnclary capaaty fer the benefis of

external parties, such as student aciwicy funids. Fidweiaey fands 2re not reflected in the govemmment-adde slatetnents
because the resources asc not evailable to support the Distoct’s own progrutss. o ils fiduciaey capactty, the Disteics
is responsible for eosunsg that the assets reported in these funds e used only fir their intended purposcs.

The Thsldct uses agency funds Lo sceounl for resourees held for student activities and gronps.

WNOTES TO FINAKCTAL STATEMENTS

Tkre notes provide additiosal informason that s essenlial for 2 full onderstanding of the data provided in the

gowvernmenr-wide and fund financial starements.
COVERMNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAT ANALYSEIS

Net assets muy serve over tme as # useful indicator of o govetnment’s financial positon. The following = a

surntmary of lhe Disidols net assels a5 of Tene 30, 2008, comrparad to net asses az of |June 30, 2007,

Net Assets, End of Year

Govemmentst
Activities Wncrease Parcentsge
G-20-08 £-30-07 {DEcTEasE) Chanige
Current and Other Assets ¥ s31833850 25 458507504 - BE, 753 805
Capital Assets, Net 1,683,805 855 1,584,827 828 T8,776.230
Total Assets 2,185,432,73 2,048 903 570 145 E30.038 7%
Long-Term Liabilities 189,278,522 185,512,868 2,760,654
Other Eiabilities 78,521,762 88,144 702 [5.222 8401
Total Liakilities 268, 2K 254 273,857,570 {5,457 288) -2 0%
et Agsets:
Invested inn Capital Assets, Net
of Related Debt 1.609,333,842 1,529,557.47% ¥, 708,353
Restricted 351,786,597 280,832 989 0,833 628
Unrestricted (Deficit) (33,568,014 {34,235 348 357,334
Total Net Assets S 1527232425 5 1776245100 § 150,887 32E E5%

‘The District’s net asscts increased 8.3 percent to §1.93 billion. This was atiributed to 2 combination of an mercase
in total assets and w decrease in rotal Hebilides. The Dhstticr teported an wirestricted net asser deheit of

333.9 trillion.

The largest portion of the District™s net asseis rellects its lovestment 1n capital assets (e, Bod, bulddings, furmlurs
and equipment), less any related debt sull ourstanding. The Distrdct uses these capitl assets 1o provide services (o

students; consequently, these rssets e not avalable for futire spending.

e
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The restricred pomont of the Districr's net #35ets teprasents tescurces thar are subfect to external restricdors on how
they may be used, ‘The unrestricred zet aszers of $81 wmillion fafter exclusion of $110.7 mlhon m compeasated
abscoces and $4.2 millen in postemplofment healtheate benefits payable) may be used to mect the guvernmest’s

ungricg cblgnons to studeats, employess a=d creditors,

T
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The key elements of the changes in the Distneds oet assets for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2008, and

Juone 34, 2087, are as follows:

Operating Resulis for the Year

Govermmenta
Activities
20085 2007
Frogram Reveras:
Charges for Services $ 19052, 762 £ 20,758,173
Cperating Grants and Contributions 47 033,512 41,585,342
Capital Grants and Gontikutions E7.111.819 20,675,073
General Revenues:
Fropery Taxes HaT 483 232 590 802 542
Local Sales Tax . 2 886,588
Grants and Contributions Mot Restricied
1o Specific Programs 451,065 804 428 016,477
Unrestricted Investmant Eamings 21,424 248 20,438 834
Miscellaneous 10,552 435 10 485 482

Total Revenues

FuncticnfProgram Expenseas:

1,199,244, 118

1,144,758, 541

Instruction 503,554,285 574,552 263
Pupif Personnel Senvices 42 837,308 41,425,149
Instructonal Media Services 13,877,602 13,676,872
Instrecion and Curriculum Development Senvices 28,502 273 S 805 14
Instrucficnal Staff Training Senvices 13,592 887 7,452 315
Instruction Retated Technology 5,253, 249 5,804 345
Board of Education 1,2318.278 2520, 584
General Administration - 3,615 302 B 0O73 457
School Adminisiration 55 0RO, 3458 &7 808 TED
Facilities Acqguisition and Construcion 153,027 047 4 328 385
Fistal Seraces 4512 420 4451 (34
Food Services 38,532,769 30, 744 447
Central Services 13,827 263 14,283 585
Pupil Transporéation Serices A/ 858 850 48 127 581
Cperation of Plant 24 265,531 87 450,565
Maintenanse of Flant 20,242 D63 23,597,233
Administrative Technofogy Senvices ba81 257 £102 247
Conumenity Senfices 2 084,725 1,720,476
Interest on Long-Tarm Deabt 2558409 2017634
Unallosated Depreciation Expense 35,050,584 37.078,331
l.oss on Dispesal of Capital Assets 871,662 1,458.576
Total Funetions/Program Expenses 1,048 256 7591 1,415,438 BEG
Increase in Met assats % 150,887,325 3 129,318,655

Capital granrs and conteibutions increased 3364 million. This increase was dus 1o a0 ingrease in funding for Class
Size Redncnon Constnretion and Classtoom for Kids
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(Grants and costabudons oot restdeted $o specific programs tneressed 323 mdllion. Mast of (his inceease was due to
ingreased fmding of the categotical for opesating Class Size Reduction.

lacreases o cxpenses of $32.8 million were mainly due to average 4.1 and L8 percenr iocscases 10 salary aod
wssoclabed beasdivs, for aooinstucional and dnsbuctional employees, respeclively, partially offsel by 2 teduction in

rive menber of enpoTess fromn fhe prioT vear.

Revenue by Source — Governmental Activities
Period Ended June 30, 2008

Charnes for
Services
2%
Miseelaneous | - Crperating Gants
1% Yo ~ and Centributions
S 3%
Unresticted r
Ir'n.restrnegn;EI Earnings ‘ - Capitat Grants
2N —and Condributions
; 5%

Gr:aﬁts and
Cordn butions Mot
Restrictad

A7% .. Propery Taxes

50%

-0
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Expenses by Source — Governmental Activities
Period Ended June 30, 2008

Other

R
Operstion of Plant 9_’5}
&%

FLepil
Transportation
Servicas
4%

Food Senvices

Facilities Fupil Fer=onnel
Acquisition and Instructional Services
Construction . Support 4%
1% £%

FINANCIAL ANATYSIS OF THE DISTRICT*s FLINDS

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The Distnct completed the vear with a total governmental fond balance of 3428 million, an mcoease of 376.5 mullion

over the 2006-07 fund balance of 5351.5 malbon.

The Gengral Pund iz the clvef opetating fund of tdee Distder. AL (e end of the cuzrent Gece] year, vozeserved fund
halanee is 3034 million, while the rowal Gind balance is $81.1 million. The unteserved fund halance tncreased by
5148 mullion, white the totel fund balarce increased by $17.9 million during the Hscal pear, primanly the resuft of
fncreased Stabe funding of the Class Stze Reducdon operating categoncal

Tue Capital Projects — Local Capilal Improvetneot Fund has a tutal fusd balance of $271.2 million, ol of which
restricted for rhe acquisition, constraction and muimesance of capilal assers.  The (und halance increased by
$17.9 pullton w1 the cusrent Fear, as 2 sesalt of revenues received in znmicipanton of npending expenditres o be

wneoureed as a estdt of constrichon needs.
GEMNERAL FUUND BUDGETARY ITIGIILIGIITS

Origimal hudgered tevense exceeded aclual mvenwe by 22 pervent. Thes change was due 1o a decrease in Smle
vevenue a3 4 teslt of a general economie downtumm.  Appropeiations expetenced a decrense from theit original
brdget to the fral budper. Budget revisions wwere due primarily o changes in estimated Srawe findmg lewels and

corresponding adjustments to planned cxpendinires to ensare maintenznce of an adequate find balance.

-10-
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CAPITATL ABSETS AND LONG-TERM DEBET

CAPTTAT. ASSETS

liw the end of fiscal year 2007-08, the Dstrict had irvested nearly $2.3 billicn 'n a broad range of capitel assers,
tocleding baildings; land; and furnstore, fistures, snd cqupment.  This amount rcpreseots 2 oot lecrcasc of

§118.7 millon from the pher yean Accemulated Sepredation on capizal assets totaled $610.5 mlhon.

Mayor capital asser esents during the current fiscal vear ingluded the following:

w

Asser acquistnons totzled 51481 milhon.
The Distnee disposed of §23.5 millice i assets,

w

W

The net chanye wr constrcton in progaess retlected an 1ncrease of 361.6 million,

il

The Pustner acquired technelogy asscts theoigh capital leases totaliag $11.9 ootlion,

=]

W

‘Fhe Distoer secognized depreciatos expense of 5624 mellion fos the yoear,
Additonal infortnaien on the Disumct®s cepiral assets cun be found in Noles 4 and 13 w0 the Bnandal stalernents.

Capital Aszeis

B-30-08 E-a-07
Land 97 482 052 = 93.215,103
Land Improvernants - Nondepreciable 22,717,590 22717 550
Censtruction in Pragress F8,815 522 17,239,442
Improvements Other Thary Building 4 687,335 2147 368
Buildings and Fixed Equipment 1813002 453 1,780,082 775
Furmiture Fixtures and Equiprment 148,884,551 158,092 9543
Matar Vehicles 55275 481 51,081,418
Froperty Under Capital Leases 224978 402 27076 745
Avdio Vizual Materials and Compuier Softwans 14,594,234 14,150 458
Total Capital Assets 2 274 445 685 2,155.733,673
Accumulatad Depreciation (610,841 B26) (5708955 249
Total Net Capital Assels 1663 603 85% & 1,684 827 625

LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHERE NONCURRENT LIAGILITTES

At June 30, 2008, the District has total loop-term debt outstanding of $54.2 millien, an inctease of 2 petcent from
the prior veat. This amount 3 comprsed of 5346 million of bonds payabls and $19.6 million of capital leases. Tn
addition, the District has implemented the requiterents e GARB 43, Aawusfag and Finandal Rapording by Empinyers
Jor Pastermployment Bergfar Other Thae Perriosr, and as a sesult, has recorded a $4.2 millon hability for Juone 30, 2008,
Additional inforration or: the Tistricr’s long-testn Tabililies can be found in Notes 3 through 8 and 14 to the

financial smtemests.
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LOTHER MATTERS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Ue to contmued skortfalls in enticdpeted Stare fax reveoues, the Distrier has heen notified by the Floads
Department of Education to expect a State revenve shortfall dudng the 2008409 fiscal pear. "Lhe Distact conbnues

+o work with the Board and adraindstratons o concend with the revenmes shorefall

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
This fmancial report is desipeed to provide a gencral overview of the Pinellas Counry Distriet School Bozrd's
fmances. (roesdons concermiag any of the infunmation provided in thiz zeporr or zequests for addidonal fAnaneal
tnformation shoudd be addrezeed to the Ditertor of Acerunting, Pinellas County Distdct School Board, 300 Fouarrh

Srreer W, Targo, FT. 33770



MARCH 2009

REPORT Mo, 2H353-136

EXHIEIT . A
FIRELE AS DOUNTY
DIFTRICT S0HG0L anakDh
STATENMENT 0 NET ASSCTE

M8 Hiy 2008

Frimary Gavarmen; o7 snmard
Gavemmentzl Liribks
Aclivilies
ASSETS
Cureit Assals
RN z 24 T35 550 ¥ 1T
Investroms - Qther 249,566.50% BT Eas
AL Recalvahlz 15788 4773411
IMeest 2emewab o B1032s
Diepigis Riscsjuasle 4, it G195
Fragax Jzms S.B05095 1397011
Do Fam Cefar Agencies B5.4005,71% a1 8q0
Irentornes 5,730,558
Taral Current Aasats HFRATR A0 S B35 £
Motour-er: Asscts:
InvEsT:EMEs 11 B35 Fund 3 Sarpus Furds st Furd 2518357
Grpia Ansets
Handepresabla Cazitai dssats 193 52517 BS.ESS
Lrzprecizzlz Captal Assnts, Mot 1 452, 57E.EE5 5EG 377
Tatal Nencurment Assots 1 265,120,015 A5 R6S
TOTAL ASSETS 5 2005472 702 5 H5.900 504
LAZILITIES
SuTent Ueklikee
Zalzries and Beaefis Dayuble 5 18,128,332 5 2a.el
Fayrall Deduclizhg a1d Withzodirgs F0.T84 794
aconurss Paynls T.545,%831 ARG E1S
Cumzlruzlion Carlrazls PEyabla TR
Congtrustion Corkasts Feyalda - Redzinggs 5,720,575
ey Cdher dzondes 8,535,761
Dererred IavenLa 1 956,175
Leng-"em Lazilzas -- Fardizn Doe Wskin Ons Yoar:
Obfgarians Urder Sapilal Leases 10,5580.534 4235
Eords Payatia 2,235,0C0
Mz Iagmble 2551
Catwnabed Inssrecs Claima Payatla LKL ]
Compensaled Acsaroas Payass 10,085,735
Tara] Curvert Liabllitias ACE,BdE,E15 1.251.762
apourian: Labliles:
Lengz-~amn Uanimas — Perhpn Cuse Ater Sne Yone
GhEgarians Lindes Supitl Leases 2,730,333
Eords Feratie a2EEE.000
Mara PEsata “¥h,013
Ex'tnabed Insuracima Chins Pagable 14,107,171
Comnenzaled Aksarcas Payatha 100,305,506
Pastempioyren Hezllheere Benefizs Favabla 4,176 761
‘Tatal Noncurrent LiakbélHe= 181,351,671 “75.513
Total LlakfAtles 223,200,234 1.537.220
NET ASSETS
Ireesbed 1 Cazikl Axzals, het of Realed Seb: 1,575,334 542 e 225
masichas far
Hinte Cotegarical Pogams 4,931,741
Dt Senie 1,164 535
Captal Froscs F34,800,5068
Specizl Revernioe - Fosd Sarvica Sragrai w009 55
Erdoatiata - Menecrandabia 151,175 5,851,200
CAner Purpases . 23,560,950
Ltarseaifcred {33 A5 053y E34,501
Total Net Assed= 1,067 250 525 33,953,274
FOTAL LA LIFIES AND KET AGSETS 3 2,1B5,452,T05 E) 23 nsr Sod

Tra az=HmaaTieg rakes fa fnancia saczments anw an inlegra A3 & this abatament
egr 7

-15-
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EXHIEIT - B
FIMNELL A% ELUNTY
HETRIGT FCMO0L S0ARD
ETATEWENT OF ACTITIES
For the Rlacsl Year Ended fune 30, 2008
Expenees Progmm Fewsnues
Charges DpemEting Cagitsl
for Gremta ard Crants =nd
Senivss Crotribydsans Gntiduiioes

Funclions/Programs
Pristiany Govermrment
Governmental Activities:

Inziructlon ] 05 834 EE3 ] 2 226,144 3

Pugil Fersormel Setvies 43,837,308

Insinu=icnal Medis Servicas 13,477,002

Inatruction and Curmicuum Devsoprient 5 28,502,279

Instructicnal S1ai TiEning Savices 15,393 BET

Inmru=icn Related Technalomy §,293,2449

Fomnd of Educalicn 1,318.278

Cemers] Adrsnietrsticn B,615,502

Sehool fdminislreEan 0050, 345

Fadiitics Acquisiion and Scn=muclicon 15,037,047 £3, 207 ECE

Fiszal Benicas 4,512,420

Food Serless 58 557, 780 14,930 570 31,550,057

el Fefuims 15,827,255

FPupil Transportstion Services A5, 398, 550 2,384,051 20,724,755

Creerstion of Plan B4 JEE,E31

Maintenanece of Fant 23242 085

Agrrinis e Tachralomy Bervices E451,257

Community Senvices = 084,725

Interest on Lang-Tarm Dehbt 3,558,400 3,514,213

Lrssacated Daprersalion Expense L 0G0, B

Lews en Disposal of Saptlsl fdmsts B 862
Talbat Priciary GoveErtment 3 1,048, 255,791 3 19,552 765 a5 &2, 063,813 =7.111.919
Componeant Units.
Fnzllas Ceunty Edueallen Fousdstion, Tne. 3 EE1177e 5 135555 % 110,045 345,552
Chirsr Sehmis 7547 BET
Tokal Carpsonent Lieits 5 1£, 159,240 5 133 555 ki 110845 245,552

Ganars| Revanues
Tawes
Froaery Taxes, Lewiad far Qperatians Fonposeg
Promerty Tawes, Lovied for Caziial Projess
Crants and Sontibutions Mot Restrticted to Specific Programs
Linrestrizked |nvestrmenl S&crehgs
IiisegllRneius
Spedia tams
Cranated Boocks and Senvices

Total Genaral Revenues and Special kems
Change i Nt Acsets
Mat Aseste - Joly 1, BO0T

Nat Assats - Juns 30, 2003

Tha eccornpanying nobes 1o inancizl staterranls are 22 Inteqral pert of 1his sttenssnt.

RER
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=t {Sxpense) Revenue and Changes in Nat Assets

Primzey Govermmsnt
Sowemmental

Activilies

- (501,608,744
(42,897, 208)
115,877,522
{26, 502,575
{13,592, 88T)

(1,253, 245
11,518,278)
1%,815,30d)
(B, 050,248)
35,270,559
4,512,420
2,245,147)
{13,827, 263
23,750,043
134 255 631
(25,242 963)
13451,357)
{2 084,725
1,258 B
{38.050,584)
18T BETY

(025,808,324}

454 487 343
142,575 585
451,055 50
21,2248 248
10,562,433

1,060,496 715
150,887.323
1,776,245, 100

= 1,9E7,252,423

Corsponant
nils

{6,054,537)
75T BET)

{13562, 508)

13,628,751
5062
2ER,TER
249 454
14,221,025
758,438

35,234 7505

t 35,895 324

REPORT N 2({19-186



MARCH 2009 REPORT Mo, 200%-186

EXHIEIT-C
PINELLAS COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Jone 30 2008
Eereral Capital
Fund Hmjects -
Loeal Cagital
Imargvement Furd
ASSETS
Cash 3 24 434 945 5
Irmeesimenis - Other ] ER94 818 - A 2anh e
Accounts Recensahle . 282,706
Interest Receivable 528,631 181,358
Deposits Receivahle ’ 4 754
Frepaid kems 5,805,084
Due frem Other Funds 25 098,560 5,009,817
Due from QEher Agencies 23,258,310 5,753,314
Inventories £ 820,073
Invastments in 364 Fund B Sorpius Fords Trost Fund 2816,157
TOTAL ASSETS $ 149,702 448 % 306,154,378
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilties:
Satarize and Benefils Payable £ 18,128, 755 %
Payroll Deductons and Withhoings 26,539,314
Actaunts Payatile 2 Bz, 548 3,090,816
Constucteon Contracis Payable 5,975,556
Construciien Contracts Payable - Retainage g1 4 805,577
Due to Ofher Furds 10,975,747 29 060,181
Due to QOfher Aogengies BET2 018
Dafermed Revenus 1,551,348
Total Liabilitles 65.573,033 34,535,250
Fund Balances:
Raserved for Sale Categarical Pograms 4,831,771
Resenved for Encumbrances g.130,16% 60,700,631
Aasersed for Inventories 4 620,073
Reserved for Debt Service
Resenved for Zndowments
Unresenved, Reported in:
CGeneral Fiend B3427 404
Special Bevenoe Funds
Cepital Projects Fumnds 210.518,235
Total Fund Balances 81,129,415 fera P bR P
TOTAL LIABILTIES AND FUND EALANCES E 149,702,248 3 305,154 376

The acceompenying notes te financizl staterments are an infegral pert of this stafement.

-la-
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EXHIBIT- £
Other Total
Governmental Eovermmmental
Funds FuLmds
i 34 3850 24 520 325
22 108,074 FAT5E2.904
£ 28T TR 4 670487
3,284 T 53
4. T54
2 4,505 096
1.00062Y 34188504
o7 350 0aT 86405716
1,165 285 A, 780 558
2,518,157
i &85,087,539 541554, 754
% 18,138,752
2,154 AT5 2B T34
1,521,875 7215858
1,381,747 T.330.343
023 480 5,729 872
3,062 385 35388293
72543 0,335,761
24 T2 1,995,273
10452230 143,500 533
4.931,771
3474 132 T¥ 325185
1,160,453 o T A53
1,154 833 1,184 533
151,173 131,173
63,437 408
7411248 Ta11,248
a7.234,129 267,762 36
75,615,700 427,964 241
& 36,097,930 541,954 74
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EXHIBIT- D
FINELLAS COUNTY
. DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANGE SHEET
7O THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 200 2008

Total Fund Balanees - Gavernmeantal Funds 5 4237 854,247

Lrnoynts repored Sor govemmental ectviti=s in the Etement of net asseis ara differant because:

Capital ssats, nat of aceumiulsbad degresiation, used in gowernn cntal activities are not
Jrangial resaurcas =g, theraoee, =re nat repar’ed B85 assets in the govemmental furds. 1.562 603,359

imiernzl tarice funds are asad by management B chargs B costs of catain activities,
such 8s inserarce, to individue! fonds. Tha assats =nd liabilifies of the inieznal

gerE0e furds are induded in gevemmental acéiviies in the sEtfement of net zzeats. £ TH2.357
Long-farm lighiliZies s not doa and payatia in the Surrent oardad and, thercfare, ace not
reportac 2= liakiitias in the govammenisi unds. Long-tarm ligkilities at year-and cansist of:
Obligatieas nder Caps@l Leases & 18 B30,617
Borde Fayahle 34,640,000
Taompenseted Asences Payabis 110,677,254
Pegtemployment Healthcare Berallis Payable 4,475,781 80,124,052

Total Net Assets - Gavernmental Activities H 1,927 232 425

The accorparyirg neies io insngial scetements are ar: intecre! part of this staiement.

-15-
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THIS PAGE INTENMNTTIONALLY LEI'T BLAMNE.
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EXHIBF - E
FINELLAS COUNTY
DETRICT SCHO0L BOARD
STATEMENT 0F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FLUND BALANCES -
GOVERNIWENTAL FLINDS
Far the Slseal Year Ended Jirne 30, M08
G=anecal Capital
Furd Prajacts -
Leocal Cagital
|mprovemezni Func

Revanes
Intergouernmentzl:

Federal Direct F A, A0

Federsl Through State ard Local 1,283,422

Shate 306,067, 062
Lozal:

Taxea 454,487,343 142,975, GR5

Miec=llarecus 1%, 563,008 13. 540265
Total Revenues #7767 546 158,516,478
Expendiures
Curmant - Educaten:

Inetructicn R v A

Pugil #ersonned Seniccs 35,025,19%

Instrecticnal Media Services 13,135,593

Instredlicn and Gumidculum Deyeliament Services 11,445,702

Instruclicnal Staff Trodnirg Sorvices EABSEIT

Instrdicn Ralated Tachralegy 1,922 524

Brssid oF Ethaizdice Z 025,653

Genzre: Adminisration B, 475,27

Boheal AdmItistration 5g,385,263

Facilitias Acquigition are Ganstiucian g¥1,5as 3.353,419

Fised Senvices 4,411,583

Fang Servioes 114,851

Cenltal Services 15,874,377

Puzl Transportalicn Serioes 4B 188,577

Operatices of Plan B3,621,054

Iainengnce of Flan: 24 98T B5E

Adaiaistative Techorlody Servkees 5,582 718

Cammunity Servless 1,055,915
Fiead Capital Gutsy

Facilitian Acquisiton ard Constructon BT, 344 112,144,369

Cither Canital Gtk < B0G,308 10,847 G54
L=k Service:

Priresoal 1.484, 755 89,410,524

InteTest and Fizea: Charges 154,060 SA0.00E
Total Expenditures BED, ra2 4T R85
Ex¢ess of Revenues Qwer Expend ltures 2076225 26,052,958
Jther Flnanelng Seurces (Lo
‘frar=iesa In 13,744,051
Qaligations Uncer Sapital Lesses Q51072 16,947 G4
Inaurancs Loss Kecoveries 243,103
Trars=siara Cut 13.162,2430
Total Other Finaneing Sources {Lses) 14,840,026 (2. 135,655
Mt Change [n Fund Batances 17 815,258 17,944,297
Funé Balances, July 1, =907 63,214,150 232.374,529
Fund Ealances, June 5, 2093 ¥ B1, 138,415 271.215,138

The acccmpanying nodes ta fmancial statetnans are an integre! pan of this sta:ament.
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Clar Tokd
Govarnrmental Goneatnziental
. Fungs : Funcs

& e 03 4,120,530
50,104,562 91,473,562
I A5G 460 454,585,523
507 £65,252

16 905 555 S0.C40 G54
16847 555 1,48% 785,833
35.B38,707 553,625 425
5.567 208 42,350,405
511,754 13,580,357
15507 832 28,053,249
T.25% 278 13422855
T84 2,000,338
2023535

1891,805 B452.752
125,579 58,512,032
121,035 4. 346,000
43,825 4,455 583
TTrasEe 37800517
B&5.575 13,552,953

22 E63 45,211,046

117 185 85,730,247
24,957 BEE

21,225 5,404,554
SB4.975 2,050,687
12,550,031 125,181,853
2,153,431 17,805,451
2,025,000 12,218,784
1830353 2558409
123212482 1.153.421.201
41,238,137 54,334,322
12,744,551

11,200,655

245,193
343 808 [13.744.251)
HaTEhE 12142753
£0.817,522 TEAT7 08
24,935 171 391887 180

g To.815,700 427 984,244
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EXHIBIT - F
PINELLAS COUNTY
HETRICT 5CHOGL BOARD
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERMNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES [N FUND BALANCES
T THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Yoar Endod June 30, 2008

Net Change in Fund Balances - Govemmental Fuends
Arcants reported for govemmentat activities in the sietement of aciivtics arg diffzrent hecausa:

Capitel cullays ane reported in the gavernmantal furds a5 expenditures. Howewer, In the
statarment of activilies, the cost of those ggsets i allocaied over thair estimated useful Ives
as depreciation expenss. This is the amount of cepital cutlays in excess of depreciztion
expanse in the cuement periad.

The Iess on tha dispazal of caphal azsets dunng the curment perod 18 reported in the
siatement of activilies. | the povernmentzl funds, he cost of these assets wazs
racocnized 25 an expendiura i the wear puchasad. Thus, the change in net ssseats
difers from he change in fund balance by the undepraciated cost of the disposad assets.

Long-term debt proceeds provide cument financial tescurces to the povemmeantal fondz, bul lssying
defft increases Ipng-term liabiliies in tha staternent of net aszats. Repayment of long-2m
deat is an expenditure In te govemmental funds, but the repayment redrces lang-tzcm
liabilites in the staternent of net essets. This ks the amount by which repaymeants excaedad
procesds in de curment paried,

In the stalamant of acthities, e cost of compensated zbsences s measured by Ihe ameunts
eamed during the year, whils in the govermmental Junds, expandituras ara racegnized baged an

‘he =mounts achially paid for compensaled absences. This is he net amaunt of compensated
abtesntes sarred in excass af the amoun! paxd in the cumant peried.

The net changes in the liabilily for pastemaloyment heaithears banefits is raported in the
goyemmert-wide satements, but naf in e govesnmartal funds statciments.

Intemal 2ervies fitnds are used by management to chame te cost of certain aciivities, such as
Esurance, to individual ends. The net revenue of miemal senvice fiends is cepartad
with govemmeartal aciivilies.
Change in Net Aszeis - Governmental Activities

Tha acecnpatwing notes to Anancial 2tatzments are an integral pen of his siztement.

el

3 TBATT 051

79,647,B91

{871,562

1020133

[3.076.016)

{4,176, 751

1,556,664

3 130,287,325
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EXHIBIT - G
PINELLAS COLUNTY
LDISTRICT SCHOOL BOGARD
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS -
FROFPRIETARY FUND
Jurre 30, 2008

Governimantal Activities -

frternal
Fanvice
Fund
ASSETS
Currant Assaets:

Cash ] 202,625

Investrients 22,375,104

Accounts Repeivable 437,248

|nterast Receiveble 38,372

Dule fram Sther Funds 2148 125
TOTAL ASSETS b3 25 212 572
LIAEBILITIES
Current Liakilfies:

Accounts Payvable 5 257,134

Cue te Hher Funds 2501

Estimated Insurance Claims Payable 4 455 419

Total Current Liabilities ) 4713144
Maongurrent Liakilities:

Estimated Insurance Claims Payable 15,701,071
Total Liahilities 20414 245
MET ASSETS
Unrastricted 4738497
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS ¥ 25 202 572

The accompanying notes to financial statemeants ars an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT-H
PINELLAS COUNTY

DISTRICT SCHOOL BCARL
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSBETS -

PROPRIETARY FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 38, 2008

OFERATIMNG REVEMNUES
Frermium Revenues

Govermrantal Activities -
Intemzl
Sarvice

Fund

4,588,202

OFERATING EXPENSES
Inzurance Claims
{iher Expenses

4112, 278
154,754

Total Operating Expenses

4,257,032

Operafing Income

721,170

MONOPERATING REVENLUES
Intarest

245,428

Change in Net Assets

Total Met Assets, July 1, 2007

1,866,558

2,921,698

Total Net Azsets, Juna 30, Z2D08

S

4,788,357

Tha aceompanying notes to Ananciz! siafements are an integrel par: of this statement.
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EXHIBIT- ¥
FINELLAS COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
PROPRIETARY FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003

Gavemmeantzl Activities -
Internal
Senrice
Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cesh Received from Bozrd Funds I 2,354 853

{ash Faymenis for Insurange Claims and Fees [5,573,268]
Met Cash Uszed by Qperating Activities 4,154.415)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES .
Procseds from Sales and Matinties of Invastients 2.403,390
Interest Received 1245459
Purchass of evestnents (2,396, 520)
Nt Cazh Provided by Investing Activities 4,252 308
Met Increasa in Gash a7, 044
Cash, Beginning 134,581
Cash, Ending 5 22 RE5
Feoanciligtion of Opemting Income o Met, Cash U=ed by Operating Activities:
Opearating Income 5 721,170
Adiustments 1o Reconcile Qpersting income ta Met Cash Used
by Operating Activilies:
Thanges In Azsats and Labilitias:
Diacregse In Accourts Recehwable 124,107
Increase it Interest Receivable (39,572
Desraase in Bge From Oiher Fumds 3,873,042
Ircrease in Aomaunls Payabls 154,754
Decrease in Due Ta Olhet Funds {B.251, 1254
Cacreass in Estimated Inzueance Claims Payable {2 466,990;
Totat Adjustments {4,805 585}
Net Cash Dsed by Cperating Activities S 41844151

The accoTnoanyng notes 1 financial statemcnis an: a0 integral part of this statemsant.
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EXHIBIT - J
PINELLAS COLUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOQIL BOARD
ETATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES -
FIDUCIARY FLINDS
June 30, 2008
Agancy
Funds
ASIETS
Current Assets:
Czsh and Cazh Equivalents b 7333814
Accounts Beceivable . 369,410
Intarest Receivable 3,888
Due from Other Funds T2 405
TOTAL ASSETS b F78.620
LIABILITIES
Accounts Pavable P 69,673
Cue to Other Funds 1.007 953 )
Cue 3o Other Agencies 24,057
Internat Accounts Pay=ble 8,678,057
TOTAE LIABILITIES b VTR B0

The accompanying notes to financial statements zre an integral par: of this statement.
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EXHIBIT - &

PINELLAS COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

#* Rcportn g Entity

The Dhstrict School Beard has direer responsibility {ot operation, control, and supervision of Dhstrct
schools and is considered 4 primry government for financial reporting. The Pinellas County School
Dristrier is considered par of the Florida syarem of public educadon, “Lhe EOTELING hod}' of rhe
school distner s the Pinellas County Distnct School Boasd which s composed of seven clocred
members. The appeinted Supconrendent of Schools is the executive officer of the Schno! Board.
Geographic boundaries of the Thsrret cotrespond with these of Pinellas County.

Crizeria for dstertrining if othes cotfies are potential companent units which shonld be reporred
within the Distoct's basic financia] sttements ate identified and deseribed in the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) Codifiation of Gasermments! Aroenting and Financial Reporvng
Ftundurdr, Sections 2100 anc 2600, The applicstion of these criters prowides for identification of any
cotrties for which the Tstder School Board is fnancially accountable and other organizations for
whick the nature and sigmificance of their relationship with the Schonl Board are such that exclusion
wonld cause the Tistricl’s basic fimancial staremecots o be misleadiag ot incomplere.

Based op the applicacon of these crireria, the folluwdng compenent units aze nchided wilhin e
District School Board's repotting eotity,

*  Discrotely Presented Component Uinjts. The component unit columns in the bagie Soancial

statemenis, Fxhebits A and B, include the financial dara of the Distdet’s componeat nnits.
These somponent wts consist of the Pinellas County Edncaden Foundation, Tne, and the
folinwing Bve chazber schools:  Academie 122 VWing Chatter School Fnc; ‘The Atheman
Academy Charmer School, Tne.; the Pinellas Preparatory Academy, Inc Pleto Academy; and Life
“kilts Charter School, Inc.

The Pinellas County Edueation Foundation, Inc. (Toundation}, is a separate nor-for-profit
cotpoation organized and operated 25 2 diect-support erganization under Sectica 1001.453,
Flodda Statures, to tecefve, hold, invest and admisister propenty and to make expendinares to or
for the benefit of (he Distnct Becawse of the namre and significance of its relationship wivh the
School Bosrd, the Powndadon i comsidered a composment mnit An anrmal audit of the
Foundation's Heancial statements is conduered by an independent cortified public 2ccounrant
and 15 filed in the District’s sdmindstrztve office,

The chazler schools are separar: noc-for-profit cotperalions organized pusuant to Chaprer 617,
Tlonds Stamates, the Floddda Net For Profit Corporation Act, and Section 1002.33, Flodda
Seatuies. The chamer schools operaze under chaters apptoved by their sponsos, the Pinellas
County District School Boand and are copsidered compomrent nnits of the Thisidet becanss they
ae fpeally dependent on the District 1o levy laxes. Audies of the charter schocls® financial
statcmaenis were conducted by Independeat cermfied public accountants and are Eled io the
Prsinet’s admimstradve office.
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EXHIEBIT - K (Continued)
PINELLAS COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2005

7 Basis of Presentation

Governmenr-wide Dinancis]l Sratrments — Governmenr-wide Goancs] staremenrs, tocluding the
sraremment of ner assets and the starement of acrvities, present information abeat the School Distder
as a whele, These staremens Incude the oonfidudary fnancs] activity of the pitesry governmesnr
and irs component units.

Governmenswids foasdal statements are prepared vsing the scopomic mEsourcss mesitement
ez, The sarement of acthdtes presents 4 compasison betecen ditecs expenses and progratm
tevenues for each functon or program of the Disttet’s govermmental aotivites. Direct expenses are
those that are specifically assoctated with 4 service, program, or department and are thereby cleardy
idenlifisble to a paticoler funcion. Deprecation expenses, which can be associated with a speaific
oropram or acevaty, arc allocated o the sehited funcaco, while receaining depreciabon sxpense i
repotied as unallocalad.

Program revennes incade charges paid by the secipicot of the poeds or services offersd by the
program and granls and conmbutdons hal are mescdcred o meeting che operadenzl oo capiwl
sequiremenis of a partiontar program Hevemues thet are oot classifed as progrim tevenues are
presented as general revenues. The comparison of derect expenses with program revenes idenafics
the extent to which cach povernmental foncden 15 selt-financing or draws frum the geners] revenues
of the ThHatrict,

The cfects of iorerfund acowity have been climupated from the goveornen-wide LGoancial
atatetmnents.

lund Minsncisl Statements - Fend Enancial stateceents report devailed informston abeoil the Disicl
in the govemmgental, propoelszy, and fiduciaty fuads  The foeus of governmental fund financial
sttcments 15 on mejor mods rather than repesonp funds by wpe. Each major fund is teporled o2
sepatate colemn, Nonmajor Aunds are ageregared and repodted in 2 single column, Because the
femus of govermmental fund finascial starements differs from the focus of govanmen-wide finaccsl
stalernents, & reconciliation is presenled with each of the governumenial fand fnascizl statements.

LI'he District reports the following: major povernniental fosds:

v enerdl Fund — o account for a1l financial resources not requited m be accounted for In
ancther fund, and For certain revennes eom the State chet arc lepally nesrdcted to be expended
tor spewhe cument uperstng putposes,

*  Capita]l Projecrs — Local Canieal Tmprewement Fond — o account for the financial resources
geoerated by the local capital improvement tas levy to be wsed for educational capital outlay
needs, inchrding newr consteuciion, renowation and remodeling projects.

Addnenalty, the Diistrict reports the fol'wwing propdetary and fduciry fund rrpes:
*  Inrerns Service Fund — Lo account fot the Distriet’s individmal selfinsurance programs.

*  Agency Munds - to accomnr for sesources of the achool internal funds, which are vsed to
acminister moncys, collecred at several schools o connection with school, snadenr athletic,
cless, and cloly activides.
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EXHIBIT - K (Continued)
PINELLAS COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 36, 2008

Bagiz of Acconnting

Basls of avcountog refers to when revenues and cxpendinires, o expenses, e Iecognized in the
aconunts and reported in che financial statements. Basis of accounting relares 1o the tining of the
tmeasuretnsnts made, regasdless of the measurcment focws applied,

The government-wide financial sratements ate prepared wsing the acctmal basis of accountng, az sre
the proptsbary fund sod Sduckny fund foandal stotements, Revenues are recognized when surned
and cxpenscs ase tecogrized when a labilior is mentred, repa-dless of the tming of the related cash
flerars. Propetly laxes are recogatsed In the year for which they ate levied, Revenues from granls,
cnodemenss, and donadons are recognized in the fiscal vear in which afl eligibility requirernents
impesed by the provider have Teen salished.

Grovernmental fiund financial statcments ace prepared wsing the modibied accmal basis of accounting,
Reverntes, except for certain granl revenues, are weeognized when they become measurable and
available, Kewvenues are considered to be avalable when they ate collectble withie the currenr penod
or soon enonugh thereafrer o pay labililies of the cumrent periodd The Thsinct considers tevenues (o
be avalable 1 they are collected wathing 21 days of the cnd of the curcent fscal year. When prant
[Ettns prm-'ide that the expenditure of resources 45 the prime factor for determining elimibiliy For
Fedesal, Stare, and other praot resoeoces, eveanc Is recogaized at the dme the expenditire s meacde,
[Inder the modified accrual basis of accounting, expenditures ate generally recognized when the
relabed fume habiity is incumed, cxcept for poncmal and lorerest oo leog-teom debt, dlaites and
judgments, and cornpensared absences, which are recognized when due. Allocations of cost, such as
deproctation, arc oot recopnized n povernmental fands,

Proprietary Funds are accounted fot as proprietaty sctivities under standards issued by the Financial
Acevunting Standatds Board through MNovember 1982 and applicable standsrds ssued by the
Ciovernmenral Accovnring Standards Board  Proprietary funds distingnish operating revernues and
expenses fom oosoperadoy ftems, Oooreting reveoees and oxpenses genesally result from proading
services. The principal operating revenues of the District’s internal service fond are charges m the
Drstoct fur workers' compessation, gencral llality, asd sutomobiic insurance preminms, Operatdng
expenses mclude insurance claims and acdministeative expenses and fees. All tevenues and expenses
nut meedny thes definiton are repoced as peeoperating revenuss and expenses,

When hoth restricred and unvesericted resources are available for use, it i3 the Districd's polier ro use
restocted mesources fost, then worestocted resources as they ane needed,

The chatter schonls ate accounted for as govermmenial orgmsizations and follow the same accounting
madel as the Distecr’s govemmental activities.

The Pionellas County Educaticn Fovndutos, Ine., shown as a dscretely presented compasent anid, 15
accounted for under the cot-foce-prefit basis of accountng and wnses the 2ccrual basis of acocunting
wigrely revenues are recogoized when earned and expenses are recogaized when incurred.

Deposis and Investments

Cash deposits ase held by banks qualified as public depositodes nader Flooda lawe. Al deposics aze
insured by Federal depusitory insurance zod collatemelized with secutites held in Fledds's moltiple
finaticial institodon eoliateral peol 45 required by Chaprer 280, Florida Statates. The stacemeinc of
cash flows consicers cash as those accounts nsed as demand depesiz accounts,
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EXHIBIT - K (Continued)
PINELTAS COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOQOL BOARD
NOTES 10 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2003

Iovesmments cunsist of stnounts placed in State Board of Adminisvagon Delit Service accounts for
irvesiment. of debr service moneys, amounts plced with the Srare Board of Admimistranon for
participation in the Local Government Sweplus Funds Trnst fuad iovestmment pools created bv
Sections 213405 and 218417, Plooda Stanires, and those made locally. On December 4, 2007, the
State Board of Administration restruciered the T.ocal CGovernment Sarplus Fouads Trust Fuod o alse
establish the Fund I3 Surpins Pends Tmse fand (Fuod B).

The local invesmments opersle under the gidelines establizbed by Scction 218.413, Flotida Sramtes.
The DMatrict™s investments in the Local Governmen: Surplus Funds Troest Fonds, which the Stage
Buand of Adminisiralion indicares 3 2 Securities and Mmchange Commissivn Rule 227-like exrermal
investmnent pool, 25 of Juac 30, 2008, are similar w money tarker fands in which shares are owned
in the fund malher than the underying vestments. These investments ate reported at fais walee,
which is amorozed cosa

The Disidier’s mvestrnents in che Fuad B are acoounted for as a ducteating net asset walue pool, wich
a fair velue factor of (.923331 at Jume 30, 2008, Pund B is not subject. to patcipant withdeasa
reaupests. [istributions from Mund B, as demommined by the Stale Board of Administranon, are
effected by mansfernng cligble cash or securdes o the Toeal Governmeat Surplus Fuads Trust
Fund, consstent with the pro ram allocadon of pocl sharcholders of record at the ereatton of Fund
B. Onec boodred percenr of suck distdbutions frotn Fund 13 are available as a Bquid belance within
(he Local Government Surpiue Funds Tmst [und.

lovesiments made locally comsist of obligations of United States Covernment Agencies and
Instramentafines, domestic bonds and nows, commercizl papet, bond mumal fonds, and money
mmacket mutual funds and are reported al fair value. Types and amounts of invesmments held ar Fiscal
yeat-end ate dezcrihed in a subscquent sote on Investments,

[nveniories

lnventorics consist of cxpendable supplies held for ¢consumption in the course of Distde: opetations.
Invenlores are stated af cost on o moving average basis, except the Usited Srares Depaniment of
Agrionbmire szrplus commodides are staled a1 theie faie value, a2 determined at the fime of donation
o lhe Distrie’s food service progrem by the [lodda Dcpartmtnt of Agticelure and Cemsumrer
Scrvices, Burcan of Food Distdbution, The costs of inventortes axe rocorded as expendilures when
used zalher than when purchased.

Capital Assers

Fxpenditnres for capital asses acquired or construered for general Thsorict purposes are reported in
the governmerlz] fund hat financed the acgnisition or construcdon. The capilal assers so acguired
are repotied at cost i the povernmencwide statetnent of ner assers bur are not reported in the
governmental fund financial ststements. Capital assets are céefined hy the Disidet as those costing
tnore than $73. Such asscts arc recorded st histodes] cost ot estmated histonecal cost if purchused
or comstructed. Domared assers are recorded ae fair walne at the date of dunatan.

Tnfetest aosts ncarred during coestruction of capital assels ate aol considered matcnal and are mot
capitalized as part of the cost of consttueton.

Capital assets are depreciated nsieg the straight-line method over the following estimrated useful lves:

-
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EXHIBIT - K (Continued}
PINELLAS COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL. BOARD
MNOTES TO FINANCIAY, STATEMENTS
Fuzie 30, 204

Description Estimafed Lives

Improvements Other Than Buildings 15 yaars

Buildings and Fixed Equipment 20 - 50 years

Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment & - 20 years

Metor Vehicles 4 - 12 vears

Audio Visual Materials and Computer Software 5= 10 yoars

Froperty Under Capital Leases 3- 12 years
Cument-vear infortustion relative o chauges e capital assets is desczibed in a subsequent nobs,

# Long-Tetrm Liabilities
Long-rerm obligetdons that will be fmanced fiom resources to be recelved i rhe foture b
governmental funds ate repoited as Haldities in the government-wide starernet of act assets.
In the governmental fund fmancial smtemenrs, bonds asd other losg-renn oblizations ase not
recognized as habilites vodl due,
In the government-wide financial statements, compensamd absences (L., pafd abseoces for emplovee
vacaton lesve and sick lesve) ate acezued as labilivies 1o the extent that it i probable that the
henefirs will result in termination paymenes. A lizbelity Is reparted i the govermmental fund tnaneiab
staternents only for the current porion of compensared absences cxpected to be padd vsing
expendable available sesnurces.
Changes in lony-remm Teldlites for the cument year are teported in a mbsequent note.
}

State Revenue Sources

Revermmes from Smate sources for current operativns sre pdmadly {rom the Florida Educsnon
Finance Program admedistersd by the Flotds Depatiment of Fducaiion (Depariment) under the
provisions of Secdon 101162, Florida Stamstes. In accordasce with this law, the District determines
and reports the oumber of full-tme equivalenl FTE) students and related data v the Depamment.
The Diepazrment performs certain edit checks ar the reported aumber of FIE sod pelated dam, and
calondates the allocation of funds to the Disdcl. The Dismict is permitted o amend its odgleal
reporting for a period of nine months folleaving the dase of the onginal reporting. Such amendrents
mey impact funding allocations for subsequent years. The Thepartment may also adpst sebsequent
fiscal period allocations based upon an andit of the Distrct’s compliance in determining and
reporting FIE and related date. Nommally, such adastments are treared as reductions or zdditions of
revenue it the vear when the adjusrments are made.

‘The State provides finandal assistance to administer cettadn categorical educationsl programs. Szave
Boand of Bdesation roles zeqgueive that revenne earmarced for cortmo programs. be eapended oaly for
the program for which the money is provided, and require thar the money not expended as of the

cluse of the fiseal year be carried forward into the following vear o be cxpended fur the same
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EXHIELT - K {Condnuead}
PINELTAS COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2603

categotical educilional prograsns. The Departroent generally regrives that cateporical educational
orogram rovenncs be acocunted for o the Geperal FPood, A pordon of the fund balance of the
Cremeral Fund i3 teserved in fhe governmmenmal funed financial starements For the unenoimbered
belance of categoricel educational psogram tesources.

The State allocates pross reosipts taxes, generally koown as Public Tducation Capiral Outlay moner,
o the 1hstrics o2 an anneral basis. The Distoer also recedved allocztions woder the Clissmooms fox
Riids and Class Stee Reduction Consiruclion Programs. The Distrier is anthotized 1o expend these
bunds only upon asplang for and recerving an cocumbrance authoozatos from the Departtment.

A schednle of revemee From State sources for the current Tedt 15 PT.’ES:EﬂT.Ed Ira subscqucn: bulatinl

Déstrict Property Taxes

The School Board i authonzed by State law o levy property tixes for distdet school opetations,
capital improvemenss, and debe service.

Pmpu:tj. taxes consist of ad valorem taves oz zeal and pemsons] properly withis the Tistrict
l’rnperrl;r valuez are determined by the Pinellas {0 cuncy Mroperty J'Lpp.ta.ascr arrd Ppropesty taxcs are
collected by the Proellas County Tax Collscror,

The School Beard adopted the 2008 fax levy on September 10, 2007, "L'ax bills arc mailed in Octobes
znd texes are pwyeble between November 1 of the yeat assessed and Murch 31 of the following vear
ar discounts of op to 4 percent for early payment

Taxes become o lien on the pruperty on Jaouery 1, and are delinguent on April 1, of the rear
iollowing the year of assessment. State law provides for coforconeat of co]chtmn uf personal
property taxes by selzure of the propesty to satsfy unpaid texes, and for enfotement of collecrion of
real propetty tames by the sale of ml:ereq'r—be:ﬂrmg t® cettiricares to sadsty nopad taxes,  The
procedures tesudt in Tl'u; collecdon of essentially all taxes poor Lo June 30 of the year following the
Fear of azsessimens.

Property tax mevenues are recogoived in the guvetament-wide financial statements when the Board
adopts the tex lewy.  Property tax sevenues ate recogpnized o the governmwaral fund finanaal
statetnents when taxes sre received by the Distrct, excepl thal revenue 13 accreed For taves enllected
by the Pirellas Cownty Tax Collector at fiscal vear-end but not vet romitted te the Distdet, Because
any delinquent texes collected after June 30 would not be maledad, delinguent taxes recetvable are not
accruedt and no delinguenc mx revenue deferral is recosded

Miflrzes and taxes lesded for the curnent year se presented in a sulsequent noce.

Fedcoral Revenue Sources

The Districr rereives FPedetal awards for the enhancement of various educational programs. 1federat
awards arc generally received based on applications swbimetted to, and appeoved by, vatdous graacing
agencies. For Federsl awards in which a claim 1o these grant proceeds is based on moursing eligible
crponditnes, wevenae is secogmzed o the ceenr that clgble cxpenditures have been Incurted.
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PINELLAS COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

2. BIDGETARY COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

‘The Board follows procedures cstablished by State smmites and Sute Board of Bducadon rules in

establishing budger balances {or guvernmenral furds, a5 described below:

-,
-

W

v

\‘:I_-\.l'

Budgess are prepared, public hearings e held, and otigingl budgets are adopted anzuelly for all
guvernmenoal fond types in accomdance with procedures and ame mtervals prescsibed by e and
State Board of Educaton mlcs.

Appropriations are controlled at the object level ez, salaries, purchased sendees, and capital outlay)
within each actviey (e, instracrion, pupil personned sendees, and school adminisrranon) and may be
amended by resolution at any School Board mecting prior fo the due date for the aanual fnancal
Teport.

Pudgets are prepared using the same tmodified accrual basis as is used to account for governmental
fonds, except that no budget appropoation is made for capiral leases in the year of incepuon.

ludgerary imloonston s Integrated no the scecumting system and, 1o facliote budzet comul,
hudgel balances are cocumbered when porchase onders ate ssued.  Appropoations lapse at fiscal
Fear-cnd and encusnbrasces ovtstanding are honored from the subsequent vear's apprapriations.
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EXHIBIT - K {Continned)
PINELLAS COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008

3. INVESTMENTS

As of Fone 30, 2008, the Districr has the following invesements and matimties:

Crederben Giesder ey C=slerthan
i Nk S o3 Tem s Four Ve recler B
iMvEETTENT Fardus TLeES DTenYerrs ko lFou Yeas to SxYaas S Wi
Skl teeard of Adririsirclon
el Gt Sorphoss Fincs T Furd Lnsesd e S0e2 [S) 5 v 3 1TRERTES R ) E 5
Fured D Suples Aoncg Trast fod 255137 2516157
Dl Sondos Acmuts g 112,13
Memiey Market Funds
Cyomrom Tmesey ko 45247 200
Wi Edaniey Prirme Forfoio £, 00 E0 £
The G Aad Shot-tam: Unilen Sk
CrawereTert Bond Furg 2,517,754 AT
Jprrrrciad Fecer [2) ) 5609307 SE0REH
Dbl gators of Uhiled Sisles Somimen goie:
ardlrsinererlae=
Emds erd Macs (1) . A0 40,550,355
il evalivest Nerlgags Chligtims £3) TOTEERZSE  CTANEL4EL A i]=r! TR 1H A42,E1 T oA s
Calateraers: Mrtgege Chligesores -
Fhasing R2es (1} Tl A SOET TOEE3H
L nimee 1 45,544 et 1T
CurreslicBondzand Motea: ]
Moreguacrmen femr Forker] (13 & 61416 o, Tal e T TN
Copirata [4) a5 175,000
Muricied () ALEATO B.0EG, 00
Toigl fovesiments, Frireny Gourarmaend $ ERAE § TRMOFD 5 HEOES F OMIMER | 455187 § 5o, O

btz {7y The Disrict ue=d tre Sfecive curtion: mefod indenmre merries Trhese meshments
I3 Tha Digkict ueerihe rifiedduration methcd Doéetarming metunitiss for st invesrents

i A e S0, 200, ot sipificant withrhaags fomte Loed GomnmeT Srpes Tet Furd nvestreest Fod may besuedios 2 pecart

sedenpicn fes by ihe Shate Epamiaf Acminisation.

£ The Disict Lsarlhe rroxdend dratien medhod “oetemring mRtitiss fior 35.475,000 of thescirmeatrarigant 1ead the effethe d reom

rretnod tocetaming mebiites orbe e neg 71,340,000 of Bost: rastmerls,

intca:est Rate Risk

¥ Seotian 21841317, Flonda Smtutes, Hrmes invesiment matsites to provide suffrcient liquidicy 1o
pay abligetions as they come due The Distsict’s Imvestment policy stales that the weighred average
duration of tee investment pottfolio shall not cxceed live yeats.

# The matudly of the Stare Board of Adnpmistration Local Government Lovestment Pool is hased an
the weizhted average of days to matudly {(¥AM). A portolic’s WAM reflects the average matunty
in days based on fing) manricy o reset date, 1n the case of floating rare instiments. WAM measures

The matudty of the Stete Boasd of

Administraton Fuod B Surphus Funds Trust Fund is based on the weighted average lfe (WAT). A

portfolie’s WAT. is the dollar weighted average length of time poml secudtes held reach mamiity.

the sensitivity of the porcdfolin to iorerest tate changes.

WAL 15 based oo legel fHinal maturicy dases as of June 50, 2008,
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PINELLAS COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BEOARD
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Junie 30, 20438
# Phe Distder hes %247,183,262 in obligtion: of United States Goveroment Agencies and
Instromentalities and 561314180 n oblimtons of nongovernment asset-backed secunones ther
include cmbedded opruns comsmsting of the options ot the discretion of the fsuers of debrors m all
their oblizations.  Thesc sccnates heve vaoous cell dawes and tajere berween July 2008 and

Ocrober 2017 (modified dutation wmanrity Sates).

Credis Risle

[istrict policies allowr for investments 1o

=

w

w7

W

\_':I'

Drizect obligmtions of the United States Freasory, obligations: of Federal spencics, povernment
sponsored enterphses, and instrumentalittes. As of [uze 30, 2008, the Districr’s investment poatfolio
included these types of sccadties with a tosl fidr marker value of $247 025559, At June 30, 2008,
honds and notes toraling 310,547,300 were rated A2A by Stundard & Poor’s. The collateralized
mortgage obligatons, mortpage-lucked secutities, and $29.842.096 of the bonds and notes wers
vomaled.

Asset-hacked securities when either the nnderlving asset Is guaranteed by the isseer or the seoucty
carries the lughest quehty radng by a natonelly recognized rating apency. As of June 30, 2008, the -
Diistrict’s investnent porifolie ncloded assct-backed secubtes wath o wial fair maclker value of
56,314,180, ‘These secuntes were meeed Aaa by Moody's Investoss Seoace or Add by Srandard &
Poor's, except for one securiy totzling $1,388,884, This secutty was wared AA by Standard &
Panrs. However, at the dme of purchase in December 2007, the scounsamy was rated A8 by
Stancatd & Poor's.

Short-term obligaticos emnmonly referred o a5 “moszey market instruments”, incloding bat noc
limited to commercial paper, provided such obligations cary the hiphest crodit mating from a
madenally tecosnized raring agency.  Investments In commercial paper st June 30, 2008, with a facre
walne of $9507 801 were not rated. Dhstoel policy allows :ecarities to be purchased that do noe meet
the above criletfa provided the serurity does aot cxceed 3 percent of the sl vahie of nvestments
o the settlement date of the iovesbnent.

Securitics and Uschanpe Commizsion tegistered momer matket fands wath the lughest crsdit quality
rating from @ nanonally fecopnized rating apency. Ar June 30, 2008, che Thsitier had investments in
the Hverpreen Institntiopal Treasuty Money Iatker Fund with a faie value of $48.240 and Morgan
Stapley Inslitulional Prime Portenlio Money Market [und witk a fair value of 35,001,806, Lodh fonds
were tared AAAm by Standard & Poors, :

Securities in open-end or cdosed-cod management type invesiment compatlies Or NvCeSTTent frusts
registered under the Investnent Corpany Act of 19400 Fhe Distner had investments with a fair
walue of 334,517,734 1 the Core Tund az June 30, 2008, The Cote Fund is a shea-term United
States Government bond Rend. This. fand was tated AAAT/S1+ br Standard & Poor’s.

Securtics that do not fall within the alwove categorties provided the mvested values of these secudlies
der nor exceed 3 percent of the fomal valne of Boazd funds on the settlement date of the nvestmens
The Distric had investreents in compotate and  municipal bonds totelng 323310000 at
June 30, 2008, (at fell within this caregory. Lhe momopsl bonds, totaling 6,093,000, and one

__a_'}_
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EXHIBIT - K (Continued)
PIMELILAS COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOCI. BOARD
™OTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Juate 361, 2008

corporate bond fssue for 51,600,000 were mated A by Fireh. The recraining corporate bonds were
wnrated.

The Discrict’s mvestments in the Smme Board of Adménistztion Drebt Serdee sccounis are bo provide
for debr scrvice payments on bond delat issued by the State Board of Edueation for the beaedit of the
District. The Thsrricr refies on policies developed by the State Board of Admisiscration for managing
crodet risk far thiz account,

Az of fune 303, 2008, the Distdc’s investment in the Loval {overnment Swplus Trands Trust Fund
irrvestment pool 15 Addm by Smndard & Poor’s, The Fund B Surphas Fueds Trost Faod b= unrated,

Cnsmodiel Crecht Risk

}__

Secoon 213413/8), Floode Stamtes, requires the Distdel o earmark all investrsenes and 1) i
registered wilh the fssuer ov its agents, the investmernt must be iImmediately placed for salekeeping in
z location thar protocs the poverning body’s dnterest in the securing 2) i in book entry form, the
imvesiment st he held for the credit of the governing body by a deposilone chartered by the
tiederal Govemment, the Stote, of any other state or territory of the Unfted Seates which has w
branch or principal place of business In this Staw, or by 2 netional sssoaation arganized and existing
mder the laws of the Umted Stales which is suthorized 1o accept and execnre trmsts and which is
doing laxsiness in this Smace, and must be kepr by the depository In an account separate and apart
from the asscts of the Anancal instcon; or 31 56 physically lssued oo the holder but oot regmstersd
wirh the imer or its agenfs, must be inmediately placed for safekeeping in 2 secured vaudt The
Distder investment policy addresses custedial visk in that all securities shall be propedy designated as
an asset of the School Board of Mncllas Covary, Flodda and held in safe-kesping by a third party
cnstodian,

The Pustrict’s jnvestments tomfing $342,259,340 i obligarions of United States Govermmenl
Agencies and Tnstromentalities, commercial paper, and domestic bonds and notes are held by the
Bdistaer’s cusmodial agenst in the oume of the EXstricr.

Concentralion of Credit Risk

# 'lhe Distrct’s invesmment policy dioes not limic the amount the Distice may invest ik any one issuer.

AG-
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EXHIBIT - K (Continued)
FIMNELLAS COUNTY
DISTRICT SCEHOOL BOARD
WOTES TO FINANCLAL STATEMENTS

: June 306, 2008

¢, CHANGES IN CAPITAL ARSETS

Changes in copitel sssets are presenied in the talils belos.

Baree Arkitions Deletions Ezlsne
77 A
SOWERNEMTAL AZTRATIES
Copiid Amets Mot Bérng Davecized:
Land 5 s e i o c B BNl k] 5 GiF 4L 052
Land Improsements - Mondepmdizhie 22 717,588 23T RS
Comefrugtionin Prooress 17,2308 447 BY 575, 508 B, 424 78,815,522
Titd Cepitd fgsds Mot Being Cepreciztead 133,172,124 71, E82 458 EL95 423 164,025,172
CapiE Ases Pang Deprizat
Inproseras Cther Than Bildings 247,268 541,020 4,587 35
Buidiros s Foed Equipmet 1,7E062, 775 A, 5% @0 1831302456
Fumriivre, Fodmes, snd BEqéprert TEER R B B4 A2 3041 145,554 551
Mt Wehicks S5 48 B, 185,134 188,14 55775431
Frooerty Lrdar Capitzl Leases 27 OB, AR 11,264,855 a5 400
Audoisue Maerids aud
Conputa Sofueere 14,180,458 1,733,048 1,019,583 14,534 24
Totd Capitd Aszets Baing Tepractded 20XET, T 761502, 223 25,243, 445 2 U7, 420 512
Lesz Accumukted Depraciabon o .
Impresements Ctber Than Bildings 143,158 T 406 4E5 53
Burines o Fied Equinment 214,375,525 36,351,796 AED TR
Furiture, Fidbez, 2nd Erjdpment 1104685, 076 13,208,851 12553,450 103, 440477
nhaler vebicks 25T TG 374160 151630 3 FrIBE
Property Undar Copital Lesees A1, 823 7,402 006 13,003 500
Aofovisie Maeids and
Cerapoder Bofhiare 28T, 381 1,278,062 1,023, 52 1G543411
Tatd Acoumidatd Cepredaion B0 856249 B& 387,350 224,783 B0 541 B2
Tatd Cepitd Assds Being Deprecided, Ma 1,461 555,485 13,754,883 &r1.662 1,464,575 656
Goenmerdd Achiies Cante Asset, Met g 15852783 §  BETaT.E $  B&M1.581 5 1,662,603 852

The classes of property undet capital leases are presented in Note 5,
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DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Drepreciarion expense was charged o fmctions as follows:

5

Function

Amaunt

GOVERMMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Inetruction

Pupil Parsennel Servioes
|netructions| Media Services

Inefruction and Curriculum Devel opm en; Services

Irstructions| Staff Training Services
Irefruction Relaied Technalogy
Board of Education

CGanaral Administration

School Adminietration

Facilities Acgisition and Construction
Fismal Servicas

Food Services

Cenfral Semvices

Pupil Tmnsponaion Services
Cpzration of Plant

Maintenance of Plant
Administrative Technology Services
Community Senvices

Unalleeatad

Twtal Depreciation Expense - Gavernmental Actvities

OBRLIGATTONS UNDER CAPTTAL LEASES

5,535 155
a5 201
118 .£43
225 889
70,936
7,275,941
4,207

88, 204
85,674
8,581,510
22 0545
£33 262
187,510
34,260
a3 420
124,041
4,471

24 277
34,050,654

2,357,360

The classes and ameounts of property being acquiced under caparal leases ate as follows:

Prata Processing Equipment

Busas

Tatal

Assot Balance
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PINELIAS COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
MNOTES T FINANWCTAL STATEMEMNTS

' June 30, 2008

lature sdndtrurne capital lease peyments and the prosent walue of e minimmm lease payments as of June 30

are az fodlows:

Fiscal ¥Vear Ending June 30 Totaf FPrincipal Iriseest

2009 5 IRTeRFE3 F I0BDoEE4 855,079
2010 3642 772 6,268,500 Jr3ZT2
2011 1,816,558 1,720,707 &5 831
2012 A2 436 Ire.838 22 TED
2MN3 37 0a83 251,035 9314

Tatal Mintrurn Lesse Payrents 20867355 9§ 1963001V § 1957346

The imngruked inverest rates are 3,43 percent on she bus leases and range from 04 1o 7.69 pencent o the duta

DACESsiNg equiTREnL
6. BONDS PAYABLE

Bends parable az Junc 30, 2008, ate as follows:

Bord Typs Armount Intenest Anaual
Ontstanding Faes M afuarity
(Perosnt) Ta

Stats School BEonds:

Saries 20004 % 4240,000 5000-5.125 2010

Series 2007TA 285,000 AZ2-50 2021

Series 20056, Refnding 30 045,000 =41} 2020
Tatal Bonds Pavable 3 34 BAD OO0

The waricus bonds wete issued to finance capital oudar projects of the Disirier The folfowing s 2

description of the bonded del dssues:

Siatc School Bonds

These bonds ans issued by the Stere Board of Hdocation on bebalf of the Disiict The bonds matere
seally, and are secored by a pladee of the Distdet's pordon of the Stete-assessed motor velide leense aax
The Slale’s full faith and credir is akso pledged as secusicy for these honds. Principal and inrerest payioects,
nvestment of Debr Service Fund resoutees, and compliance with reserve fequircsents 2re adounistered by
the Suate Board of Educebon and the State Board of Administration.

30
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FINELLAS COLNNTY

DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Juie 30, 2008

Avrrual requirements o amosrize 2l bonded debt outstnding as of June 30, 2008, aze a3 followes:

Fiscal ¥ear Tatal Frincipal Interes:
Ending
June.3l
2008 F 4,018,430 § 2,285,000 5 $.733 430
2010 4. 018,700 2,400,000 1,619,700
2011 4.40327,1328 2530, 0G0 1,497,138
2012 4 023,918 2,650,000 1,370,918
2013 4 018,554 2.78qQ,000 .25 8 5494
2014-2018 20,018 6582 16,045 000 3,871,662
2015-2021 B.408,750 5 U540 GOD 450,750
Total Stzte Schaal Bands F46. 522,193 3 Sil1.882.183

7. DEFEASED DEBT

4 640,000

[n prior yeass, perfions of the Stete School Bonds, Senes 20004, were vefinded by the 1donda Department

of Ldvcaton end considered defeased in substance by placing 2 portion of the proceeds of new Slale Seheool

Bonds in an dtrevoeabls lrusl (o provide for funwe debt scevice peynrents ea the old Stae Schoal Bonds.

Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the 1n-substance defgased Srare School Bonds are

aot incloded in the Distoct’s fioandal statements. On Fune 30, 2008, Sate School Bonds, Seocs 20004,

totehng F3HAA00.000 are cunsidersd delessed fn substance.

% CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The following is a sumunary of changes in lemg-term Labilifes:

Dezcrpdian Balarca Addtions Dealctions Belanc= Cesesin
7107 5-30-C4 Onz Yaar

GOAVERRMERTAL ACTIWETIES

Chleations Under Capital Leases 12825180 5 1i1E93EEG 3 nEaeTEm % 19630,0i7 & 10, 205 554

Brnes Payahle 36,565,000 202500 34 640 000 2,265,000

Esimated Insurana: Clatns Payvable 2EE21450 2401702 4 857,72 2,15 450 4,453 459

Campensatad Ansmoss Payabis 107601 235 £3005,057 2,828,021 110,677 262 10,58, 748

Foeiprmplayment Baaltmre Basafits Payable BAA0 ES2 27034927 £ 17, T8

Toal Gowermmerial Adtifies 153512858 5 341871587 3 30421513 F  188Z2TEEER %

27,728,851

e —

Tor the governmental sotivities, compensated absences are generally hquidated with resovrces of the General

Fuod,
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PINELLAS COUNTY
LISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

9. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

The following i 4 sumroaty of interfused recetvables and pavables reported i the fund Snanaal skzbemenls:

Funds . Intefund
Feosivables Pavakbles
Mejar:
General i 28088 860 % 10,978 747
Capital Prajests:

Local Capitel Improvement 5,008 817 21,068 161
Wonmajor Govemmental 1073627 5.362 335
Intermal Service 2148123 2,591
Fiduciary T240E 1.007.853
Tutal $ 26408837 % 368402837

[oterfund belances are a result of expenditures, such as warehonse detivery charges, contral prodng, and
ragintenance work orders, which were made by one fund for ancther fund, and will be repaid withia
12 months, 25 well as reclassificadons of expenditires berewen capital project Gands, and short term cash

Howe bormowdng, Al balanoes are expectsd o be repaid within one vear.

The {ollowdng 35 o surnmaty of interfund tranzfers veported in the find finsnosl statemests:

Frnds !nte:‘iung“
Trenefars In Transfors Dut
Major:
Geaneral ' 3 13,744 351 #
Capital PFrojects:
Locsl Capital Improvement 13,103,343
Nonmajer Governmental ) E41 808
Teotal 5 13,744,881 i 13,744 951

A 56,136,930 transfer made from the Capitel Projects -- Local Capital Impoovemsent Fund was 10 cover
capital ountlay cxpendimures thar were incurred in the Geoeral Fund. A 36,260,413 transfer made from the
Capite]l Projects — Locel Capital bBoprovement Fund was o cover propeny Dabilty msurance
expenditures that were Incutred in the Genera! Fond. ';l"he 641 08 tansfer from the Nonpicwjor

Gowernmental Fund to the General Fund weas t0 cover capital outlay disbursements w the charter schools.

1.
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EXHIBIT - K {Contirnad)
PINELEAS COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL. BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2003

0. RESERVE FOR ENCUMBRANCES

Appooptiations in govemmenta! funds are encumbered upon issuance of purchase osders for poods and
servces, Pwen though appropratons lapse at the cnd of the fHscal wear, uefilled purchase osders of the
cuttenl year dre cattied forwatd and the nest vears appropdagons are Hkewise encurnlened.

The Florida Trepartment of Rducarion requites thar furd balances he reserved ar flseal vear-end To repolt an

amit hely to be expended foom the 2000-09 fiscal year badget 25 a esult of purchase orders cutstanding:
at June 30, 2003,

1. SCHEDULE OF STATE REVENUE SOURCES

The following is a schedule of the Dizrtiet’s State tevenne for the 200708 facal vear

Saurce Amount
Florida Educaticn Finance Program ¥ 205362099
Categancal Educational Frograms:
Clazs Size Reduction 108,174 201
Trangpotaion 20,724 7R3
Instructional Materals 10,751 808
Florida School Recogrition Program 2,367,151
Florida Teachers Lead Progmmm 1,861,147
Other 5382515
Workforce Cevelenment Program 2731817
Clags Size Reductinn Constriction 2EEFEZ213
Gross Receipts Tax (Puidic Edugation CapHal Cutlay) 16,406,525
Classroom for Kids 13,759,113
Discretionzry Lottery Funds 5,801 832
Maotar Wehicle Liverse Tax (Captal Outiay and Debt Servics) 4,557 588
Mabile Heome License Tax 501 805
Adults with Disabilities 551 DRE
Food Service Supplement 555 458
Charter Schoaol Capigl Cutlay 541 608
MMizcell aneous 2400322
Tokal £ A54 553 523

Accountng pelicies selating to cermain Stare revense sousces are descobred 1o Mot 1

e
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EXHIBIT - K (Continued)
PINELLAS COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

PROPERTY TAXES

The following is a summary of roillages and raxes levied on the 2007 1ax eoll for the 2007-08 fiscal rear

hillages Taxes Levied

GEMERAL FUMNE
Motvoted School Tax:

Feguired Local Effort 4730 $  373.5BON1B

Basic Discretionary Local Effor: R.519 40,851,736

Supplermental Diseretionary Local Effort 0,141 11,244 209
Woted Tax:

Local Referendum 0.800 40,050,742
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
Monvoted Tax:

Local Caplial Impiovamerits 1850 148,187,745
Tatal 7731 £ £819,2684.57

FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM

All regular emplovees of the THatrier are covered by the Stare-administered Florida Refirement Spatem (FRS).
Provasions relavnp o RS are cstablished by Chapress 121 and 122, loada Statstes; Chapier 112, Pan IV,
Flonida Statutes; Chapter 258, Flooda Statutes; and Flodda Reticereene Sysrem Fules, Chapter 605, Flodda
Adsninisteative Code, wherein eligibilily, contrdbutions, and benefits are defined and described in derail
Fazensizlly all repielar employees of participating emplovers are eligible and must enroll as members of RS
IEE 15 2 single retiserpent system adminizstered by the Flotida Department of Management Services, Division
of Renretmnent, and conststs of two cost-shanng, rm.ﬂﬁ.plu-cmpiﬂycz retirement plans and other nunintegrated
programms,  These izclude a deBoed benefit pension plen (Plen), a Defented Relrement Opuan Progeam
(DR, and a defined contriletion plan, referced to as the Public Enyplavee Opdonal Reticement PProgram
(PEORIY.

Benehts 1 the Plan west ac six pears of sermce. All vested members are elipible for normat retirement
benefits at age 62 or at any age after 30 years of service, whick may incdlede up o 4 veurs of credit for
toifilary semvice except tor members clissihed as special nsk whoe are elighle for nommal redetnent enefits

at age 55 or ar any age afler 25 vears of service The Plan also includes an eadly retizemen provizion;

_43
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EXHIBIT - K {Condnned)
PINELLAS COUNTY -
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
WOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMEMNTS
Fune 30, 2008

hewever, there is a benefit reductton Zor cach vear @ member retites before his or her normal retirement

cate. The Plan provides retitemens, dusabifity, and death benctets 2nd anomal cost-of-lmng acjustncents,

[3ROIP, sulkeer to provisions of Secdvo 121,09, Flodda Stetwtes. pemmits emplovees elgble for oormal
reorement under the Plan o defer raeeipr of monthly henefit pagments while eotuinuing emplovtnenl with
an FRE employer. An cmployee may participate in DRON? for a perind not to exceed 60 months afrer
glecling o parbcpete, except that cortma instructional personscl mey parncipate for up oo 96 months.
During the perind of TYROP participation, deferred monthly benefits are held in the FRS Trust Fund aod

TCCELE IDEEITED

As provided in Section 1214501, Flodda Statutes, cligble I'RS mambers may clec to pamcipate in PEORP
in lien of the Plan. Disrrict emplovess participadng in DROP are mot «ligible to participate in PEORP,
Linployes cmﬁibuﬂnns are defined by law, howewer, the oltimate benelil depends i patt on the
perfomnance of iowestment funds, The PEORR = funded by cmpleover contbunons that are bazed on
salary and membemstup class (Regulat, Speaal Risk, cte), Contdbutons are directed to tndsadual member
gecountz, and the individual members allocate coatribudons and secount balances among vadouws approved
investment choices.  Benefits in PHORT west after ooe vear of service. There were 1,77 BMsorict
participants dudng the 200708 fiscal year.  Required emplover conmibutions made to PHORP torated

£3,808,450.

FES Retrement Conribudon Rates
The Flodda Legislatume establishes, and imay 2mend, contribution rates for cach membership class of FRE.

Diuring the 200708 fiscal year, contdbuton rates were as follows:
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EXTEIT - E {Continued)
PINELLAS COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TG FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2088

Class Percent of Gross Salary
Emiployes Employer
(&)
Flonida Refirement System, Regutar : R 985
Flofida Refirement System, Elected County Officars 0.00 16.53
Flaiida Eefirement System, Senior Managemeant Sarvice 0.00 1312
Florida Retirement System, Special Risk : 040 2082
Dieferred Refirement Opfion Program - Applicable o
iembers from Al of the Above Classas .00 10,81
Tlorida Retirement System, Reemployad Retiras (B (B}

Motes: {A) Employer rates include 141 percent for the postemployment health insurance
subsidy. Afsn, employer rates, other than for DROP parlicipants, inciude
0.05 percent for admimiztrative costs of the Public Employee Optional Retirernent
Frogrsmm.
(8) Contribution rates are dependent upon refirement class in which reemployed,

The Diszdet’s hability for paricipatton o the Plan is linited to the payment of the required contabation al
the tates and feequences estabhished by law o= fatere payrolls of the Districr. The Distriets concrthutions
for the fscal vears ended fame 30, 2006, Tune 30, 2007, and Tune 30, 2008, totded 344,383,126, 57,349,506,

and $33.507 213, respectively, which were equal 1o the required contsbulions for each fscal veat,

The foancial starcmcns and other supplemenrary inﬁ::ummt“ic;n of FRE are included in the cotmprehensive
ammual foancdd regort of the Stawe of Floada, which may be obraned from the Blorida Depastment of
Finaneial Services.  Also, an aoousl repurt oo FRS, which incdudes it= financial smtements, required
supplernenzary informariom, actuadal reporl, aod olher relevant informadoen, s avaflable from the Flonda

Dwepartenent of Manapement Scrvices, Division of Reriretnens,
FOSTEMTPLOYMEMNT BEEALTHCARE BEENEFLTS

Fiffective for the 200708 fiscal veat, the District implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 45, Aaving wnd Finanaal Reporting by Bnpiovers for Poctercpdoyment Bewgfiis Otber Than Penriaar,
for certain postemplopment healtheare benefits provided ly (he Disticl. The tequirements of this statemens
are belng inplemenred prospectwely, wath the acmmarislly determined lzbiline of $66,384,5368 at the July
1, 21007, date of transiion amortzed m.'{:r 30 years. Accordingly, for fimencial reporting purposes, no Hahilicy

is reprorted {ot the postemployment healcheare benefits Labalery at the date of transition

AR
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EXHIBIT - K (Continncd)
PINELLAS COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Func 30, 2008

Plan Descripion. ‘The Postemployment Health Care Beoefizs Plan is » single-emplover defined benelin
plon admimistered by the Disdict, Pumuant to the provisions of Section 112.0801, Florida Sesates, former
emiplayess who tetiee from the Districr and eligible dependents, may continme to pameipate in the Distact’s
tully imsured group health plan. The Iiseet subsidizes the preminme rates patd by setimees v ailowing them
o pzrticipare in the plan at rednced or blended provp (impicitly subsidized) premdum rates for both active
and retited emplovees. These mtes provide an Imphdl sebady for retitees becauze, on an actuarial bass,
theit current and futare claims arve expected o tesuls i higher costs to the plan on sverage then those of
active ciplofees. Retrees are required to cxzcoll in the Vederal Medicare progratn for their pritoaty coverags
s soon a5 they zre eligible, The Postemployment ealth Caze Benefits Plan does not issue a stand-alone

zeporl and s ool ingluded in the report of 2 Pollic Emplovee Retitement Svatem (PURS) or another cotity,

Frnding Polfev: For the Poztemplorment Health Care Benehs Plan, contabucon megquiretments of the
District are established and mey be amended through action from the Bosrd  The Distrier has not
sdvance-funded o established 2 funding methodoloagy for the anmel ather postemplorment benehr (GFLEE)
cosls or the net OPER obligation. For the 200708 fscal year, 876 retirees and 30F olipible depeadents
seceived postemplorment healtheare benefsts, The Distact provided sequited conmibaebons of 52,703,921
oward the anoual OPEE cost, compnsed of benefit pavments made on behalf of retirees for claios

capemses (el of reinsutance), adrmimsicatve expenses, and reinsumance preminms, and ner of et

conriburions raling §5,464,479.

Annpal OPEER Cost and Net OFEER Oblization Vhe Distnet’s aomal OPER cost I:t':.pcua&} 15 calonlated

based on the anoual required commbudon (ARCY, an smount acluatially detersined in accordamce wich
parameters of Governmentsl Accounting Standurds Board Swatement No. 45, Asouwting and Fieandal
Reportieg fv Bl for Perttmpitrmenz Bewglere Otéer Thaw Pervdowi. The following tzble shows the Distdet's
armuzl (PR cost for the vear, the amount acmzlly contnbuied to the plan. and changes in the Distrier’s net

{JPED oblipation for postemnplovment healtheare beoefs:

46-
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EXTHITEIT - K (Continued)
FINELLAS COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCLAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

Deecrintion Amount
Momal Cost {senice cost for one yaar) ¥ 4 345 123
Amorgzation of Unfunded Actusrial :

Accrued Liability 2,370,247
Interest an Mormal Cost and Armortizaficn 254 G42
Annual Required Commbubon 6880682
Arnual OFEB Cost (Expensal &,580, 652
Contribution: Tawsard the OPEE Cost [, 703 5210
Inerease i Net GPEB Chligation 4,976,761

Met OPEER Ohligation, Beginning of Year

Net OFEE Obligation, End of Year 5 4175, 781

The Priscrict's anmual OPEEB cast, the pescentage of anonal OPLEE cost conrchuted o the plar, and the net

{IPEL obligation as of fzne 30, 2008 {fwst vear of implementation), was as folows:

Fiscal Annual Percenfages of Met DOFEB
Year OPEE Cos Antual Otligation
OPER Cost
Cortributed
Beginning Balance, 7AGY 3 3
2007-08 5 Ba0 682 38.3% 4 175,761

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of July 1. 2006, lhe most recent actedial valenon date, zhe
actuanal accrred lability for benefits was 566,384,568, and the actuarial value of 2sscts was 0, resuling 1nan
unfuaded actuareial acemned lability of 66,384,568, and a funded raco of 9 percent. The coversd payoodl
fannual payroll of active participating emplovees) was $020152 815, and the mtio of the tnfusded acnearial

accrued liabilicy to the covered payroll was 14T percens.

Actianal valmations of an ongoing plan involve estimeres of the value of repormed amounrs and assumptions
about the probability of events fat into the future Examples include assnmptions about fature employment
and termination, mottalicy and the healtheare cost trends. Amounts determmned regarding the funded stans
of the plan and the antual required conteibutions of the employer are sabject bo contiomes] tevison 25 actal

tesilts ate eompared with pzst expectatons and new csmmates ase made about the fulure
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EXHIBIT - K {Continued)
PINELLAS COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2003

Acruzriaf Methods and Assumptions.  Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based
un the substandee plae provisions, as undersioad by the emplover and parteipaling m|=_:1-:nbers, and mcinde
lhe 1vpes of benefits provided ai the time of cach valuation and the hislorical pagern of shaonp of benetit
costs besween the emoloyer and pardcipating messhers.  The acmarial mechods and assumnptions nsed
inclode tochniques that ate desigped 1o reduce the effects of short-term volafility in aeoarizl accrned

lighilities and [he scruarial valoe of assets, consisteat with the long-term perspeciive of the calenlinions.

The Districr’s initiaf OPEER actuadal valuadon as of July 1, 2006, uzed the ety age achmacal method o
catipate the nofunded acsredal Eabilily a3 of June 34, 2008, and the anmual requized contobulion. Bacamze
the OPES kability is currentdy unfanded, che acmanal sssumpdons incluadsd g 4 percent rare of seturn on
invested assets. The acqearal assumpoons also 1xcluded a salugy scale of 4.3 petcent et voar, paveoll mrowth
taze of 3.3 percent per vear, and an anpual healthoars cost trend rate of 11.5 percent intnally for the 2007-05
fiscsl year, reduced by 1. percent per vear, 0 ap uldmate rate of 3.3 percenl for fiscal Fear cndiog
Tune 30, 2014. The unrended acorarial accmied Labidity is being wmortized as 2 level percentape of PIﬂjcctuL{

pavrcll on a closed hasis. The remaienp amortzation peood et Jene 30, 2008, was 2% years.
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT COMMITMENTS
The follwing Is 2 summany of major constriction contract commirments remaining af fiscal year-end:

Project ' Contract Lompleted ’ Balanze:
ArmoLnt to Datz Carmmitterd

Boca Ciege High Schosl: .
Architect 5 SBB1EY B ATTERAS F 1685852

Comtractor 349,518,850 2,503,457 35 B35 433
Curtis Fundamenta Schoal:

Architesct 1,256,444 1,136,474 188 870

Contractor 12,157,560 317818 3579,778
Tarpon Springs Elementsry School;

Architect 539,397 924,252 B5 145

Contractor . 24634 167 22 7R B0E 1,874 278
Tyrona Elementary Schoc:

Architect 1,359,545 1,183,508 . 17E03F

Contractor 28,723,861 20,535,607 6,135 234
Total 5 111542201 % 20,530,852 3 81,011,549
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EXHIBIT - K (Continued)
PINELLAS COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHQOL BOARD
NOTES 1'0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 20038

RISE MANAGEMENT PROGRAMS

The Dhstricr is exposed to varions risks of loss relared to torts; theft of, damage o, and destmucnon of assets;
errars and omissions; npeles to emplopees; and oatural disssters,  Wotkers comnpensation, automobdls
babiliry, and gencral lability coverage are being provided on 2 selitnaured basis up to specitied Limits. The
Diistrict has entered into agreements with various insaranee companics to provide speafic excess coverage of
claitn armaunts above the stated ameunt on an indivdual claim basis, and aggregate excess coverage when
total claims mums specific cxcess coverage exeeeds the Joss fund esrablished anmzlly by the Dot The
Liistrict has contoacted with an insuvmipee administzaror to adeunister these selfinsurance progrars,

ipcluding e processing, investigaring, and papment of claims,

A lability in the amount of $20,154490 was scuagally delermined to cover estimared 1mcnrred, but net

reported, msurance claims payable at Juns 30, 2002.

The fullonwing schedule represents the changes in claims lability for the past two fiscal years for the Dismnes's

sell-ingurance program:

Beqginning-oi- Current-Year Claimsa Balance at
Figgal-Year Claims and Paymenis Fisgal
Lizbilizy Zhanges in Year-End
Estimates
Z008-07 % 22.978,072 ) 4 870 456 3 (5,247 048] % 22821430
200708 22621480 G 112278 [6,579,233) 20,154,440

Property protecdon, botler and machinery, emors and omissions, emplovment pracdoes Babilities, employee
dishonesty, and other coverges deetned necessary by the Board arc being provided through purchascd
commetcial imsussnce with minimeon dednefibles for cach line of covetage. In addition, hesldh and
hospitalization, denral, hit, and ncomc protection coverages for THstrict emplovecs are being offered

through purchased commercial msurance.

Settled clsims reswting from these dsks have not excended commercial coverage in any of the past three

fiscal yeazs,

40
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EXHIBIT - K {Continned)
PINELLAS COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2603

7. LITIGATION

The Board s invelved in several peading zod dweatened lepal acoons. The range of powndal loss from all
sich cladms amd actdons, as esteated by the Boeard’s legal covnsel apd management, should oot m,..’,tt:]:l.d.]l".

affect the Board's financial positon.
15, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Eninaal markets expetenced sipnibicant velatihity snbsequent to fiscal pear-eod due o the credit marker
crisiz and eoncerns abwoul global recession and olher tmarkel faclors. Due 1o this, the mortgage-backed
scouritics market became wery Hliguid.  The ThHsrricr sold siv eollareratized moogage obligadons and
vollateralized mortgagze oblipations — floating rare secunries wizh a book value of $110L305.134 betereen
Augrest and Decetaber 2008 ot realised losses totafing $5,059,085. At December 31, 2005, the Edsidols

mvesmnent portiolio sooled FH80,087 306,
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EXHIET - L
FINELLAS COLNTY
DISTRET SCHOOL EOARD
REQLYREL SUPFLEMENTARY INFORMSTION - SUDGETAR Y COMPARISAN SCHEDLLE -
SENERAL FLUNO
Far i Oeca! ¥Year Cadad Juas Jo, 2008

Sanerml ferd
Ceigival Sinal Achaal “Warlance wth
Surpet Hudpet Final Badgut -
Pasbiec
Fokigaliand
Reverues
Intergevammermal:
Foxorel Ciresl -3 FBELUHI] a 215,203 L MG SLE %
Freeral Thiaugh Hide and Lo 2,200,007 1232 482 T RERATZ
e 413,177,185 o e sl o] BEH G < H
I 28l
Taxes 447 476,10 A ad? 343 A 457 H12
MaczlsrcaLs FA3B17Ti6 12 535,202 13,063,312 2 At
Tatal Rawanues E01 5C0 03] Ev1 771,083 A1 T EaE 2 445
Expendiares
Surrert « Saucabon:
InxTamkan REQ SRR T2 CEL,ZANSET 2, 04 YU RN K]
Pupil Personae Servizes 36, TEG S RT3 55,885,143 &1£T4
Indrazikanal Mocdla Sorvices 13824 308 12230561 13,726.534 12, L85
Instrtstion ard Curicubam Davel cpment Seryoes. 13,928,327 11,399,785 11445779 105447
Insiracioal Stakt Iranrg Serdoes A0z B 13,254 &R 27T 203 552
Inzlrezlion Pecsned Tasmakegy . <135 1,595,505 1,527 oda 3£,0C8
Bcord of Sducalian 2,424,250 2,050 Bed 2 LA 55 . et
Gereral At rialiation 6242 262 &R0 258 5,57E 947 22,551
Schazl Aeminslaion =588 TET 3,548,210 EER - R SR 4T
Fazlfics oo sHion and Cansinsicn 1432057 253,124 [ =YY 21,588
Fizgul Survizus 4550, 185 4,476 205 L4-1,58% B4 34E
Food Serveees R ] 1095 %255
Gt Servms . 13494,830 “H19143 12, BT0 877 12104
Fup! Trarsporthor: Sy ces 45,511,753 &5,42H A0d ag,  BE T 32,927
Dparala of Fanl G573 B80T 55T 83231038 ZMEAZE
Manlerance of Sork 24 275, 0Ea Az 2aa At 246, SRT 500 1,236,579
Afminisiratie Techrolesy Sendcas 5.3, £ d&% D 52B27135 131,274
Comnmurity Sennioes B4, 0 7R 1.562819 R
Fived DARIA QLAY
Maslties Acquisiter. and Constnocticn AET 314 ST e
Qlhar SRECER CLoey 3,B56 324 + 5B, 205 [&431.372)
Diubt Servicy:
Frncipal 1.028,251 2,128347M1 1,884,165 74508
Irterosl ard Fissal Cliarguy 1RE 051 1323501
Tidal Ezpadilyma a3 B0 975,56y 740 FERTAF T T I0E 5a2
Exncass [Tafcleney] of Ravanues Cuar Expandituras TRT7.840 24,774 501 ZETEIZED T 1FALUC
Omar Fikanelng Sources
Transes In E.00] CCO 13,74 81 AF, 7 e, Bl
Clligxions Urda- Cupital L=ases RE AT2 051977
IrsLrance Loss Racaweses [T e o] 242, 13 260 103
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EXHIBIT - M
PINELLAS COUNTY
DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Juoe 30, 2003

1. EXFENDITI/RES OVER AFPROPRIATIONNS IN INDIVIDUAT, FUINDS

Frr ihe fiscal vear ended |une 30, 2008, cxpendimres cxceeded sppropdations for the following ndividual

hinds:
Fundifclivity Expend iteres
Budget Acioal Vasiance
Unizvoranle
Gensrzl:
Fized Capital Qutlay:
Cther Capital Detlay § 3806334 F4 .B0B, 206 % (B51,872)
Debt Sarvice:
Interest and Fecal Charges 159,030 (159.050]

2 GAAFP TO BLDMGET COMPARIZON

Ludgets are adopted on a basis consistent with gencrally accepled sccounting principles except chat
penerelly sooepted accoundne prnciples for capitsl leases cequire the recording of z capital outlay
expendilure and 4 cormesponding Anancing resousce i the current pedod; whersas, budget basis
ACCOTTCng tecuites approptiations in the cursent and funire pededs ondy to the extent of the annoeal capdts!
irasc pavments,

Genersl Funcé
Expenditures -
Fixed Capital Qutiay: Cther Financing
Cher Capital Gublay Sources (lses)

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 5 43808306 § 951,972
Adjustment for Capital Leasaes {851,975 (951 972
Budget Basis, Exhibi L 5 3,856,334 §
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AUDITOR GENERAL

STATE OF FLORIDA

G74 Claude Pepper Building

David W. Martn, CPA 111 West Madison Street 550-455-5534

A GRNE: L i
UDIEOR GRNFRAL Tallabassee, Flotida 32399-1450 Fax: H30-488-637

The I*zesident of the Senate, the Speaker of the
Flouse of Representatves, amd the
Lepislative Anditing Commrmee

INDEPENDENT AUDRITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND CTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITIH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

We have aundited the financial starements of the governmenml acivibes, the agpregate discretely prresenred
compoasnt wiits, each major fend, and ke aggregare remaining fund information of the Pinellas County Diistoct
School Board as of and for he fiseal vear ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the Distnet’s basic
Financial statemments, and have msued our report thereon included under the beading INDEPENDENT
ATDITOR'S REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. Cur repret on the basic financial starcments whs
modified i incude a reference to other auditors. We conducred ovir andit in sooordance with auditing standards
zeacrally accepied in the United Staves of Asnerica and the standueds applicable to financial audirs concaned in
Goermment Awditing Standardr Isued by the Comptrolier Geperal of the Ulaited States, Other audivors audited the
Financial statements of the agoverate discrctely presented companent unirs, as desctibed in e repon on the Pinellas
Comnty Dismcl School Board's Anancal statements. This report does nef inchide the results of the other anditors’
tesling of nteral conrral over fngncial repomup or cotnphiaoce and other matters thal are reported oo sepasately
by those auditors,

Internal Contrnal Over Financial Reporting

. Inplanning and pecforming our audit, we considesed the District’s internal control over fnancial reporhing as & hans
for desipning our awliling procedures for the putpose of expressing suz opinions on the Gnancal statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an vpinion on the cffccuveness of the Distrcts miernal conten] oer financial
tepotting.  Accordmngly, we do oot Expreés ar opimion on the effectwencss of the District’s intemal conuel over

financial seportng.

A controf dyfzensy exists when the Jesign or operation of a coatrol does ot allow management or employecs, in the
nornal course of performing thedr assiened fanctions, to prevent o detect missiatements oz a tmely basis. A
Hrifteant defidengy 15 w control deficiency, oz combination of conrrol deficiendes, thar adversely affects the Thsrrict's
zbility o inidale, authorize, record, provess, ot seport anandal data relially in accordance with genevally accepred
accounting principies such that there is more than a remote lkelihood that 2 missteternent of the Dhsroct’s Anancial
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statetnents that i3 more than inconscquentdal will not be prevented or detected by the Thistrict’s internal coatrol We
crmsider Finsncial Smtement Fading Nos. 1, 2, anc 3, which are deseribed in the SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
AND QUESTIONED COSTS section of this repost, to be sipmftcant deficiendes In dmuetreal conorol over
Enencial repotting.

A materia! weskwers Is a sigmificant defickency, or combinalion of significant deficiencics, that resules in mmore Lhan 4
remote Hhelthood that a marenial muisstatement of the financial statements wifl nol e prevented or detected by the

Frizitier's mnternal conteel

e considerstion of inkernal conlesl over financial repotting was for the lmired purpose descriled in the first
puragzaph of this section and would oot necessarly identify all deficiencies o inremal eonwel that might be
significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessanily disciose all significont dehaendes that are also
considered o be materal weaknesses. Howevet, of the significant deSacnaes descnbed :'Ln.Lht SCHEDULE OF
FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS section of s réport, we consider Financial Steternent Finding

Mo 1 to be a macedal weakoess,

Complance and Ciher Matters

As parz of obtaininy seasonable assurance about whether the Thsteier financiel statoments ame free of tpaletal
misstatemment, we performed lests of its complisnce with certain provisicss of laws, noles, regmlaans, conrracts, and
grant agreemnents, noncompliance with which comld have o direct and marerial effecs on the determination of
fnancial statement amounts.  owever, providing an opinion on eompliance with those provisions was not an
objective of out zudil and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our rests disclosed no

instances of noncompliance or other mattets that are required to be reported under Genermmsns Luditing S tandarie.

W noted cermam addiliong] svatress thar are discussed i the SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND
CUESTIONED COSTS scction of this report.

Management's response to the Andings deserlied in the SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED
COSTS section of this report 33 imcloded 2z Exhibis - X We did not awdil macagement’s tesponse and

zecordingly, we cxpress 1o opin:oag on i

Parsuant to Sechon 11.43(45, Flomda Stamites, this repor iz a public record znd its discdbunon is not limited
Auditing standards genedally accepted in the United States of Ameros tequeire us to indicate that this report i
intended solcly for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing Unmmittee, members of the Flotida Senate
and the Flodda Tlowse of Representztives, Federsl and other grarting apendies, and applicable management and s
oot inlended to be and should ot be used by anvese other then these specified parties.

Respectfully snbmitred,

(L0 ) e

Dravid W, Maron, CFA
hlarch 24, 20409

_ER_



MARCII 2000 BEPORT NG, 20{8-186

AUDITOR GENERAL
STATE OF FLORIDA

(74 Claude Pepper Building

Daid W, Martin, CPA 111 West Madison Street Faf;ags.;iESS-: :ﬁ;;'.-‘s
AUTHTOR GRNERAL T'altahassee, Florida 32399-1450

"The Presidenor of the Senate, the Speaker of the
Hruse of Reprazentatives, and the
Legslatyve Awditing Comnmithes

INDEPENDENT ALUTHTOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCIE
WITH REEQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PREOGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPIIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH OMEB CIRCULAR A-133

Compliance

We have audited (he Pinellas County Distrct School Board's compliance wilh the wpes of compliance tequirerments
described iz the United Stares Office of Management and Budged's {0dE) Cirwdir A-7 77 Compliamer Sagpiemes that
arc apphicable to each of s major [Federal programs for the frscal yeas coded June 30, 2008, The Disthors trajor
Federal programs are identified in the SUMMARY OF AUUDITORS BESULTS section ns the SCHEDULDL
OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COS1S.  Complance with the equirements of laws, tegulatons,
cuntracts, and grants appliceble to cach of the Distmet’s major Feder] progmatms is the responsibility of Disriet
tnacagement. Our responsibality is to express an opindon on the District’s compliares based on our andis

We conducred our audit of comphence i accordance wiach auditeng stendards geoerally accepted in the Tondred Suates
of Amenca; the standerds applicable to Boanciel audits contuined in Gemmmensnr Asditing Stawdands, sered by the
Compitoler General of the United States; and the (OME's Chavder 4-723, Aadits of Sater, Loge! Gooersaenis, and
MNow-Profr Ohganizatiors, Those stindards and OMB Ciemeder #1733 requite that we plan and perform the audit o
oblain teasonable assurance aboul whether voneompliance with the ypes of compliance requirements referred o
above that could have a direct and material effect on a nwjor Federal program ocoumred. An audit includes
cxamiaing, oo a test besis, evidence about the Distdet’s compliance with these requitetnents and performing auch
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our avdic prowades a reasonable
basis for cur opindon.  Owr andic decs oot provide a legal detenminadon of the Distoct’s compliance with those

LEULIEITE LS,

In cur apindan, the Disrrict eomplied, in afl matesial respects, with the requiremnents referred to above that are
applicable to cack of its major Mederal programs foc 'ri‘n: vear coded June 30, 2008, However, the wsults of ouz
andrting procedures dizclosed sosw 1nstances of ooncompliance with these tequirstmenls, which are teowired o be
reponted in sceondanes wirth OME Cirzdar A-133 and which are deserihed in the SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
AND QUESTIONED COSTS section of this tepost 23 Federal Awmards Hinding Moz, 1 2nd 2,
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Internal Conerol Over Compliance

Blistrict mastagerment iz responsibile [or establishing and maipteining cffective interoal conmol over cozopliance with
requiremicirs of laws, rognlazons, contracts, and grants applicable to Federal programa. In planning and petforming
ot gudit, we considersd the Distdet’s interna® conmol over comphiance with the requumements thet could have a
direct and material effect an a major Federal program in order 1o detertmins out anditing procedures ot the purpose
uf CEpIessing ol opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinicn on the cffcctivezess of
nrerngl conimel over cotnpiiance, Accordingly, we do not express an opimon on tee effocdveness of the Distdets

soremal contrel srer compliance.

Crur consideration of Internal control over compliance was for the lmited purpose described o the preceding
paragraph and would not necessatly Weoufy sl dediciendes in the Distocts Interow]l condol that might Le
stzzuficant defiaenoies or material weaknesses as defined helow. However, as discussed below, we identitied cerrain

deficdencies i internal conuo] over compliznce that we consddercd to be sigmbicant defclenaes,

A confred geffeieny 0 the Distaer’s intemnal concrol over compliance exists when the design or operation of 2 contrnl
does pet allva mansgemnent of cmployecs, 0 the oormal comrse of performing their assipned fonctons, o provent
o: derect nomepmpliance with & type of cotmplisnce tequiretnent of a Fedetal program on a tmely basis. A sy
deficdensy I 2 cvatred defiaeacy, ar combination of conoel deficiencies, thet adversely affects the Districts abifity to
adrminister a Federal progam such thar chere is more than a remote kehbood that noncompiance: with a tpe of
compliance requisement of a Federal program that is mote than incoasequentiad will nor be prevenied or derected by
the Dhstdet’s internal control. We consider the deficiencics in nrersal control over compliance desedbed i the
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS section of this repotl as Fedesal Awards Finding
MNos 1 and 2 to be sigmbcant deficicncies.

A meararial weaknsir 15 3 significenl defidency, or combinaton of sigmbcant dediaences, that results in mote than a
semote lilkelilood that material noncompliance with 4 tpe of complance tegairernent of & Federal program will nor
e prevented or detected by the Distnct’s intemal control We did wor consider any of the Vederal Awards coorel
deflciencies described in the SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS section of this

report to be matenal wealmesses.

Ianagesnent’s mesponse o ke Bodings desenbed 10 the SCHEDTLE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED
COSES zection of this report i3 incheded s Exhildl — N0 We did nol awdil management's response amd,

accomingly, we cxpress 0o opinion on it

Puzsuanr Lo Seclion 11450, Flodda Statutes, this seport 3s a public record snd its distebution is not Hmited,
Andifing standards generally accepted in the Toiled Stales of Amerca require ws o indicate thar this report iz
intended solely fur the informadon aad use of the Lepishatve Avedinng Comaittee, members of the Flodds Senare
and rhe Flovida Howse of Representagves, Federal and uthet pranbng agencies, and spplicable mamaeinent and 13

oot nrended to be and should not be wed by anvone other than these specified parides.

Respectfully submiced,

(L2 4] it

Dravad 3. Mattin, CPA.
Mlarch 24 200%
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SLMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Financial Statements
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Slgmificant deBciencies Wenufied hal s

not considered oo be material wealknesses?
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Federal Awards
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harerial weakness identified?

Slpmifteant deficiencies denliied that
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Material Weakness
{Combination of Finding Nes. 1A through 1H)

Finding No. I Investment Controls

The Dastect’s controls ovet ivs menaped tvestments could be wmeoroved as discussed o Finding MNos. 1A through
1L AL June 30, 2008, the Distdet had approximately §402 million of investmenrs.  The Districr’s managed
irvestment portiolin incloded obligations of [Fieed Srates CGovernment agencies and ansrmmentahdes, corporate
debt, mutuzl funds, commercial paper, and shares in the State Board of Administration’s Local Goverument Surplus
Funds Trst Fund investment pools. Truring the 2007-08 Rscel vear, the Districr’s managed mvestment program
micluded 81 nvestment scounry purchases, omling approsmately 3708 million, and 50 mvestment secunby siles,

tokahiog approsimately $413 milfion,

The TMstict has established Board Policr 7.24 which authorizes the Manager nf Cash and lowestments {Manager),
under the supenasion of the Chisd Business Otheer [CBOY, to conduct Investmenl Uansaciions in accounts at
Baard-appromed financial institudons, condast other hanking and financtal transactions n lsard approved fnancial
mstitntions, make individnal investment decisions, and ditect the third party custodian 1o act on said decisivns. In

addifien, the Pulicy authonies the Maneger, o his backug, to execute electrome funds cansfers.

Finding WNa. 1A: Tovestment Prooram Manacement

A mvestment frnction needs complete, well-documented poboies snd procedures to desedibe e soope of the
furcrion and assizn relared roles and tesponsibilities refalive to such matters 25 assef dccess, TanN3acTion Cxoowhod,
performace eporting, scourity vzluanen, complance mesitonng, and ethics pelices, Sound polices and
procedures contrbute to cffective contzols by cosiwing the clear commumcation of management expecrarions,
preawiding benchmatks agsinst which compliance can be measored, and assering thas an appropriatc scparagon of

menmpanble dotics 15 maintained

The Board sdopted policies and procedures in Board Policy 7.24 {het establish the Board’s directives for managiag
school board investments. These directives address avthorized investments, mamsity and hqeidity sequircments, the
myestmens overstght committee responsibilitics, cthical swandards, cestain internsl controls and other wselal
guidance for Distdet staff.  Tlowever, given the complexities and voladlily of the cument invesmment environtnent,
the Board's vestment policies and procedures shoald be expanded to further address areas, such as cthics peficies;
benchmarks that more closcly match the Board’s iwestnent and wvestiment performance objectves; specific
procedures fur investment fTansacton and performance monitonng; enhanced conttols over the preparation of cash
flovar peodections: and accounting and electromic Tunds ansfer eonrols. These aveas are discussed in more detail mn
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the dndings below, Wichout adequane comprehensve wdtten polices sod procsdutes, the dsk 15 inezessed tha

investment polictes may mot be followed consdstently and in a masmet putseant o Board inentions.

Also, forther enbancements of the Distdct’s werigten polictes and procedwres could be made relatec oo waing
sotvides, For esample, while the policy requures the Blanaper to anouslly comoplete elght hours of conlindng
eitncation classes related w investtnenl pracuces and products, Tistrct policies and procedures do nor require thar
backup for the Mansger obtaw and snemntsin simalar trammg should the BManager become wnable to perform his
work-telaled dubes. Tpon audit ngudsy, it was determsed that two individeals, e Finaneial Bepochag Analyst and
Aeconnring Supervisor, wete designared az backep For che Managet: however, Distriet records did not crdence that
these employees have coootved any tzaneeg on the proceduercs neccssasy o oeanage the Dhsthot’s investment
pottiolio and ensure the Distdels Lguidity needs sre mel. Absent a requirement for proper training of these
pessomel, or alternative procedures in the even: of the loas of the Managee's serviees, these 15 2n ncreased osk of

Toss of invesimment value, earnings, and Hguadity,

Recommendation: The Ddstrict shonld expand its policies and procednres to provide farther gmidance in
safegparding the THswrict’s investments, including ethics policies; benchmarks that more closely match 1ts
investment ahd invesmment performance objectives; investment transaction and performance monitoring
preparation of cash flow projections; accounting and electronic funds transfer controls; and sufficient and
adcquate training of the backarp for the Manager.

Linding No. 1B: Fthics Policics
Beard Poloy 7.2400) tequires that the Manager, wnder the supetsision of the CBO, make investnents with
judment and cars, undler ciroumstances then prevallimg, which persons of prudence, discretion, and
intclligence emecrcise in the management of thelr own affairs, not for speculation, but for iovestment,
consideting the probable safety of theit capital as well as the probable income 10 be dertved from the
Investment. While the policy provides = general basiz for prizdent and ethical standards, 1t docs eot cleatly set
forth the details of how these standarés may be applicd.  For exsample, the policy could be sirenpthened o
recize that emplovees responsible for managing the Board's imrestment portiolie:
#  Avold persemal social, cmplovment or business reladonships thar reflecr adversely os the individuals
abjecovary, creare conflicts of wwerest o intericre wich the proper pedformance of offiaal dutes a=d shall

have o afffoma e duty to disclose and mire conflicts of interest;

#  Tully disclose any perseral finandal or investment postdons that could be related to che perfommance of the
investment porliolio; and, disclose any toaterial inkerests in Gnancial nstirtions swiry which they condner
busitiess ca behalf of the Disooct;

# Wot e the presrige or influence of their position ¢ District resousces o obtain personal, foancizl or

polacal gan o provete advantage for themsclecs, thew family or an organtzaton with which they are

associated;

# Not seck or accopt pifts, monoey, preforengal treatment or propesty thar would infloence, or appear o
inflaence, official dueies; and

¥ Use cere and discretton in the handling of conBdential infermalion and not diselose or use comfiden ial

mformation for personal gam or private advantage.
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Tithical policies shonld dleady communicate thar persons responsible for managing the Distier’s investnent
portfodio see held in public tmust, and obfigated o honesty and mregrite in fulbilling these responsibiimies.
Paramnount m that trast is the principle that public emmployment may nol be used for persoaal jain or povats

advantage,

Recommendativn: The Distrct shonld enbance dis ethical policies and procedures so that employees
responsible for managing the Board’s investments are cleatly held to standards which protect the
District™s resoutces, tedoce the dek of frand or 2buse, and advance the public’s interest,

Finding Mo, 10 Tavesrment Progearn Perfommanee Objectives

Bozrd Policy 724030 prowades thar the petformanes meassrement objective of the School Board™s investmens
pottlolio was to ex¢eed the Stare Boand of Adminisiraton’s Local Governmnent Sarples Tost faod wecstment pool

Pool) vicld. We found that as she corrunensirate levels of intersst tate risk siguificandy differ belween the Poal and
the Dhstoet™s investrnents, the wse of the Pool as a benchmark may net prowide a reliable measure of the Daseriet’s
invesrment pastfolio’s performance. The benchtmark index sebected showld be commensurare witk the levels of dsk,
inclmding interest rate nsk, permivied in the Eistrier’s investment plan and portfolio. The Pool aperites in a nanmet
strnifar o a SFC Rule 227 like pocl, with the dotent of prosdding full houdicy and Hmited ioterest rate nsk Coder
SLC Bule 2a.7, the dellasweighted average porifolic manwice oy aor excesd M davs, and the reporred weighted
average matunty of the Pool ar Juoe 30, 2008, 2od June 30, 2007, was 20.22 days and 26 days, respeorvely,

The Distriet’s policy allows the purchase of ivestment secuttes with simificently longer mutubities, and ths,
potentaly greater levels of inrcrest rate sisk than thet allowed in the Pool  To addition, the poliey allows the
welghled averags duration of the Distdet’s investment portfolio to not cxcced fve vears, and the welghted averape
durztinon of the Distriet’s investments ar Jume 30, 2008, and Tupe 30, 2007, was 267 years and 419 years,

respectvely

Recommendation: The IMstrict should adopt a benchmark or benchmarks that more closely match its
Bwestment vhjectyves and poliey, Such benchmarks may better aid the District in craluating investmeat
performance.

Finding No. ¥ Investment Transaction Monitoring

Lffecdwe complance monrkodng procedures asc necessaty oo provide assusance thar the secucites puechased are
congstent wilh the approved Investtnent strategies and in comphance with any applicable regulatory requirements,
Thromgh ineiry and review of Distdet zecords, we detetmined that procedures over mveslinen: transsclion

momtenay could be eohanced, as discnssed belows

# 1he CBO verhally infarored s thar he reviews the propriety of investmesnt putchases and sales made by the
Manuger ooce confomation recolpds ae secerved. We tested ten iowestment transactions, ncleding
purchases, foraling approvimately 391 milion, and sales, totaling approsimately 3100 rodlion, to determine
whether Dostricr eooords cwmdenced timely appeowal of the transacdons.  Owr test disclosed that Thsoriet
tecords did oot evideoce 2 review by the CBO for sm of these wansactions.  “Lhe remanieg four

transactions in ous fesl occumed froma 3 to 13 tlays Lefore the CBO"s documented reviesar date,
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lhurther, i analvzing investment wansactions and suppormng docnments, we noted thet for one Hrvestmont,
the Manager sold the same Invesiment twice and had to bur the scennry seeded to cover the scoend sale
and for another investment, the Masager mimkenly sold ke investrment and boughs it back, for cotrlbned
losaes mtﬂiﬂg 74110

Linard polic].' T2ATY reqmres invesnrient insiremenis o have the highest qualicy as rared By a mﬁ.rioﬂa]l}r

w

recogoized radnp sgency at the time of prurchase. 1 the sating of an mvestmcnt 25 dowagraded to less than
the highest guality ralizg, the Maoager, in consultafon with the Iovestment Oversight Committee, 13
tesponsible for deciding whether the investment 15 1o be sold or rerained. However, the policy does not
speafy the timeframe in which such dedsloss should be made or provide proper owersight and
accouneability for such transactons.  Effecrive monitoting of downgraded secusities requires that
descmmisatons be made timelr a5 oo the most pmdest cousse of action rogasdang retaining or sclling the

downgraded secuddes.,
Timely, independent review and approval of nvestment teensactioms, theluding purchases, szles, and raring
dovwegrades, would reduce the nsk thet 1nvestment transactioas not conformeng o the Distact’s policy may occer

or escape deraciion.

Becommendation: To ensure the appropriateness of investtment activities, the District should provide for
tmcly, independent review and approval of investment transactions, including purchases, sales, and any
secutily rating downgrades.

Findin i Enw urtam Porfnomance, Reporting and Munitoring -

The Manager prepares quarn&r]]_:' MVESTMeTtt po-rrﬁ::u]in veports which coniain quacter-end rvestnent valies and
Lacume statements. and compansons of this Informaden te simdlar data from the presdoss yeen hoaewver, the reports

foor the 2007-08 fiseal ear were nor presented 1o the Board in 4 timely toanner, as shown below:

___Imvestment Portfolio Reports

Murnber
Qiarter Board of
Ending Approval Days
[rates Dates Elapsed
(A) {E) (B) - (A}
/302007 LE2008 100
1273102007 SM32003 134
343142008 2BIZ003 152
B/30/2008 111112008 134
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ln addifion, preparation of the quanedy investment portfulio repers by informed individmals ndependant of the
msnagement of the investrnent activity would provide additions] assutances to the Board mperding the ohjectvity of

the inktontnuton provided,

We also noted that rhe Tnvestment Cvezsight Committee was composed of only twn of the required three Schonl
Board persoonel anpd did not meet at least quarterly, conlmty o Board policv. For the gnertess ending
Septermnber 30, 2007, asd June 30, 2008, dhe Commattee met oo December 4, 2007, and Seperember 4, 2008,
respecuvely. For the guerters ending Decerober 31, 2007, and March 31, 2008, the Manager c-matled Commuttee
metnbers on June 6, 2008, and Awgust 14, 2008, respectively, the amenda and quartetly investment portfolio.
Committes members were requested o e-mail questons and commenis i the Manager; howerer, no vasponzes

wiere cecerved by the Maneger from the Coramities tnembezs.

When teports of InvesTment actvity ace 0ot tmely commumicated 1o Boazd and other approptizie maragement,
there 1= an increased risk that marters requiring correclive avdon mey not be timely detocred investigated, and

resalved,

Becommendation: The District shouwld provide for tmely and independent preparation and snbmission of
investment reporls 1o the Board, The District should also ensure that the Investment Owersight
Commitrce incindes the requisite sumber of gualified members and mects in such 4 mannet to tmely
review ipvestument activitics,

Finding TS : ow Projfections

The Manager prepared a cash fow wotkshesl which projected whea cash inflows end catflows would ocour for alk
fuods except the agency funds, asd mvestmcnt parchases and sales wrere based on this workshest, [Towever, there

was o ndependenr review of the workshest to determine the wesoneblencss of the Dismicts projected cash needs.

Independent preparation, teview, and approval of the reasonableress of the determinedon of projected cash oeods

would reduce the sk of inappropoate deasions weparding rrecstment purchases and sales cratsacrions.

Recommeadation: “I'o provide for timely, independent review and approval of the projected cash flow
needs, the Distefct should place responsibility for the preparation of the cash flows wotksheet with persons
independent of the investment purchases and sales,

Finding Neo. 1G: Accounting Controls

Improwements are necded o the Bistict’s sccounting procedures for journal enudes and reconcliatons over

mestment rransachions as folloaws:

#  Jowmal Emirdes. The Manager prepares the jownal entries to recard the investment fransactions ingluding
those relaning to interest revenue and fait value adjustments to the lovestment values,  Althongh the
Mansger docs oot mnpur the entzies into the THatrior's sccounting systesn, there was 0o supemvisuoy feview
and approval of the joumal enmes. Char renew of mrvestment tansactions o deretmine whether intezest
revenue earnings wene accounted fur correctly in the Distdet’s geacra! ledges disclosed several hand-written
sdjnstrents made by the Mamages on the supporting documentaton of intetest sarpings esch menth. The
net balance after the hasd-w=itten adjustnenis was the amount recerded i the general ledger as inierest

earned  Upon inguiry, the Maoager tnfontned os that these types of sdjustmenrs were necessasy as the
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softwarne used by the Distnct to track interest carmnps did not always calculate = comeetly, Tland-writben:
adjustmentls often consisted of ope amount thet could have Deen comprsed of several individual
adjustnents to tultiple invesrments.  As the MWanager adjusred the interest eartings in the sofwarc for
ooted crross, docrmentanon was oot always preparcd to support the hand-weniten adju:.stn:u:ﬂts. For
example, o March 2008, an adjustment in the amount of FE05,438 was noled a: 8 cumulative incrsase to
snterest carnings from July 2007 theomgh Febrmary 2008, The adfssment did not speaify the specific
tovestrzent to which the sarmings applicd. nor was Gocumentation available to suppott the adjus et

An informed independent review and approwal of journal encies o adjust the valee and earcings of

orestmients would poovide addittonal assorance of the poepaery of such cntdes,

v

Recogciliadons. The staff accomntans petformed monthly and fiscal vear-te-date reconcibetons of
ioterest earmings and far vahoe adjusioments to the geoeral ledger and the subsidmey ledger maintadned by the
Mlanager., However, ot teview disclosed (Gal the Tistricr vecords did not evidence doommentstion =
suppor two reconciling ems of $75,364 and $206,083, Asted on the fune 2008 econchaton and two
reconciling ttetnys of 3253092 and $208,083, listed on the Gseal year-lo-dale reconaliation. The MManager
indicazed the $200,083 listed on both reconciliations was a reconciting item From the 2006-07 fiscal year;
howewver, the Distnet records did not evidenoe the bess fur the reconciling item. The Manazer fuether
indicared thar the software nzed by the THsorict 1o tracl inferest eataings did not alweys calewlare It conrectly
and waas the cawse for the other reconcling mems, Without timely resolution of recoaaling items, there is

an ineteased msk of teporung tncomest amounts of Iovestmenls and intetest sarnings.

While the reconciliations performed by the stff accountant were ndependent of the Manager who was
responsible {for initadng and avthodeing investment felated transaclions, the s1aff accountanr obraned
guidence from the Manager to identity the basiz for teconciling items and how they should be resolved.
White the staff sccountant mav cccasieeally obtin cladficadon from the Manager for cermain reoonaling
iterns, the recopcilialion process could be strenglhened if the siaff sccountant independently resolved iterns
with limited discussion or influence from the Manager. Tn additicn, doe to the compleaty of the softwarce
system used for subsidiary records, wooray be bepefiaal i the Distsict prosddes additions]l trdning for the
slafl accountanl 1o furlher vndersiand the system and it relationship o the investment antivities.

Recommendaton: To cnsore the appropratencss of journal entdes and reconciliations #mpacting
investment activities, the District should provide for fimely, informed, independent review, approval and
reconciliadon of such itcms,

Finding Wo. 1H: Electronic Funds Transfers

State Board of Educadon [SBE) Rale 8A-1.0012, Fuooda Admimsrative Code (FACH provides the minimum
security measures for eectronic fimds transters including a sequitement o mainmin written documentanca sipned
be the authenzcd person and persor: makeng the mansfers. While the Manaper, Inencial Reporiog Analyst, and
Accounting Supervisor have the capability to inidste and meke elecoonic funds lensfets for all of the Distriet’s
brantk accounts, there was no independent docwnentaion of the tmansfers from the bank to the Msticr o confirm
the transacders, contrery to the requircments of SELE Bule 6A-1.0002, AT, In additon, thers was 2o omely aod
independent review by a Distdet emploves to venfy the validity of these ttansfers, Withowt such verification, there
is an increased risk that unasthorized rransfers eould ceoor and not be gmely detecied.
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Recommendation:  The District should implement appropriate procedures to comply with the
requirements of SBE Hule 8A-1.0012, FAC, and te provide for a timely and independent review of the
validity of electronic funds transfers.

Significant Deficicneies

(hir review of the Distder’s 200708 fscel year zonual fnancil seport, as presented for andit, ndicated chat
enhancemenis o procedires could be made for reperdng certain account bhalances on the bAnancmal statetnenls. Foo

exane:

# Theto oversight, the District did oot propedly identfy and reporr expenditures and othes financing scirces,
totaling approximacely $11 rillion each, in the Capital Projects — Lacal Capiral Traprovement fund for
obhgations nnder capital leases envered imo dudng the 2007-02 fizcal vear

¥ Dot pesonnel also exclnded appromimotely $40 million from the nareserved fund balance in the
(reneral Fund, and musclrssified it as reserved for gther purposcs. Stnce this atnount did not represcot
moneys tal were Jegally segregated for specific furare use, it shoald be inclnded i the amount reported as

wrrtesetrved.

We extended oor audit procedures w determine the adjnstmens necessery, and adpstments were accepted by the
Dhsther e properly report the accomat balinces,  Addibons] Matters Fincing No. 7, Capital Asset Controls,
discusses additional deficiencics which itnpacted the notes to financial statements.

Recommendation: To facilitaite necessary financial teporting, the Distriet should chhanee procedares o
ensure that account balances and transactions ate properly reported on the financial statements.

Effactive internat contral procedurcs It:ttlLLth: that reconetliztions of bank account balanees with the Thiserict’s goneral
ledzer balances be prepared in a ‘timely manner to provide assurance lhat the Dizrtict™s cash collecton and
dishursemment records are in agrecment wark back records. The Thsrrics maintained 13 bank sceounts during the
audit perind. {dur review of bank reconaiiaions disclosed the following:

=

# The THstricr did not prepare monthly baok reconeiliations for two bank accounts (teserve accounts) for
July 2007 through Juse 2008 and ane bank aceouns {tax shelrer annuily bank sceount) was not recoeciled
fur May or June 2008, These three bank accounts of Generad Fund moneys, totabng approximately $0.5
million and $3.4 million, respectvely, for the reserve accounts, and 30 for the tax shelter annuity, ar june 30,
2008, were maintaiaed by the Masager of Cash and lovestments, According to Thasrier persoanel, one of
the rwo reserve acoounts was not timely reconciled because interest eanups were the orly activily relared

the acermnt, znd the tax shelrer annadty ocount was moc reconciied due to an eversight

% The monthly bank reconcifiztions isidally prepared for the ensendial mvestment bank acecunt disclosed that
reconcilianions for July through Noverrber 2007, had been complewd from 33 1o 99 days atter monrh end,
and contained unexplaised reconciling irems of approdmetely 303,000 each month. We farther ooted thet
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the December 2007 bank reconciliation ¢ontzined an wnexolarned recoociling dtemn of approximately
3136,000.  According m 1distrct porsonoel, these accounts were nol reconciled tmely because the
reconciling tems could oot be inigally deteomined. In June 2008, the Distoict prepared revised bank
reconcibations, id entifving and elirinaging the previousty enesplamed reconciling dtems,

TWitheuwt lirmely hank reconcilistions, these Iz Limited assurasce thar the cosk and investment assets agree wich those

rocordes fothe accountng recods.

Recommendation: The District shonld comdoue its cffotts to tmely secongile all bank statements ang
document and resolve all reconelling items.

épiration of Daities

'Fhe Distdet eould enhance it intermal conreol over the mamtenmnce, warchouse, and wanspotrtaton departiment
inventories by adequately scparating awthorzation of ioventry putchase requisitions, assct costody znd record
keeping responsibéilifies, and limiling access (o inventory storage arcas,  lhe maintecance, warehouse, and
transpotiation inventoties mtaled $2,287 971, $934.28% and 31,035,637, respeclvely, af Tune 30, 2008

Theee emplovees o the maintenance departtnent, lwe etnployees in the warchouse departiment and five amployees
in the ransportation deparcment had unresoicted physical access o the inventory gnd mainrained the perpetual
inventory records. 1n addition, one of the thtee maintenance department ernplovees and one of the two warshouse
department employees, noted above, had the authority to approve purchase requisidions, Under these condinons,
there 3 an increased risk that errors of frand, sheuld they ocour, would nel be timely detecred. A sinular fiadeng was
noted in our report Mo, 20016-188, Dufing the Z008-0% fiscal year, Dizirict procedures were enhanced o provide an
mdependent review af Inventory entries on a monthly basis for mamtenance inventodes and cquarterly for warchowse

TrEnIOTes.

Recommendation: The District shonld continue #is efforts to provide for an adeguate separation of dotics
associated with the maintcnance, warchouse and (ransportation departments’ inventorics to the sxtent
practicable wilh existing personnel or implement compensating controls such as perfodic: review of
inventory purchases and issues by staff independent of the inventory function.

Enhancetnentz conld he made in LHsoict disburscment procodures by sc:g;tgafiug tnemmpatitde dueties. Our eview
of disbussement processing disclosed that #wo semor account clerks, one accountant end ae accounrs payable
coordinator, had update access capalalities to make changes to the vendor informeation in the accounting system,
such as adding new vendors and changing mailing addresses, and elso had vouchering capehilties, J'..ﬁcluding
iniriating payments to vendors. o compensate, in part, for these control deliciencies, an covployer independent of
the disbursement process verfied the propriety of vendor addiwons.  Also, in Apdl 2008, the EHstrics™s A3
department enhangedd i3 accounring svastem o caprure the user 1D of the person whe adds the vendor o the

accounting systom; however, the lecompatible duties could allow papments to be mede o Acttous vendors or
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avroents 1o he diverted 1o lmproper malling addresses wilhout being preveated or derecled it a ducly manner, A
pa) prop i = p ;

stzovilar tinding was noted In our report Ne, 20006-188.

Recommendation: ‘The Districr should enhance procedurtes to separate the incompatible duties related to
disbutsement processing or implement compensating controls such as an indepeadent periudic review of
vendor pavinents made by emplovees who added, of made changes to, vendors in the gccounting systcm.

An effective systemn of intermal comtrol includes procedures that provide for general kedger accounts be
pedodically recomciled with detailed suppordag records o provide reasonabie assurance thae asser and Ealuhbly
balances are comprsed of properly valued amounes. {her review of the Babiliny general ledper account halances for
the Distdcr’s health plans diselozed that one accounts payalle and three pavrofl dedvction geveral ledges accounts,
which rppically should have credit balanoes, had delic balances, toraling $833,777, at June 30, 2008, The last
accounting cnttes made to these accousts were deted from Decernber 2003 ro December 2005, Distrier petsonnel
indicabed hat these acconnts weore no lonper being used, aad becanse of oversights by he Thsorict, these acoounts
fad noz been climisated, Under these conditions, the Districe’s ability to subsrantiate the basis for these general

Sedper balinoes ds Itedred.

Recommendatdon: The District should enhance procodures wm ensure Lability accounts are toely
reconciled te supporting docnmentation to cosure the validity of those accounts.

Improvements ate needed in the District’s accounting procedures For capital outlay and capilal 2536t transactons as
ol grois:

# The Districr lacks detailed hstings of all Il improvernents and buildings and fixed equipment. Currerlly,
the Distdat esleulsles its vear-end balance for land improvernents and buildings and fixed equipment
accoutts by adding current year addittons 4o the priot year balance for the site; however, there is no detad
of the ndividual building or land imgeovement by site for these asset categoties. In the event of the sale,
losd, or impaitzeent of any of the Distic’s land teoprovernents or buildings and fived equipment, it may not
e possible for the Distdcs to dereomine the cost of the assct for removal frosn the Distriet’s fnencsl
tecords. A similar finding was noted in oor report Mo, 2006-1238,

Ao

For the 200708 Ascal vear, sddinons to the deniled property ecords for furmiture, tiztres, and equipmment
(WU, moter vehicles, and awlic wizral materals and compulér softerare (AN /OS5 did not agree with
zpplicable capital ouday expendimecs due to A cospurer syStem pLOgTamming error. VWhale the
June 30, 2008, ending balances for these capital asser types were correctly reported on the {zuancial
statcments, the prograsssing error resnlied in the addifions and deletions for these assels being overstated
on the notes to finendal stetcments in the anouad financial sepoct. The total diffesence for these accounts

aminanted to 530,232 072, a: disclosed belowr,
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Clapiral Asset Capital Assct Capitel Outlay
Type Addirtons Lvpenditnres Trfletence
FFE 1 17,313,927 £ DETLE24 % T ARDA0E
Aotor Vehicles 331471 6,133,194 2145277
AV/CS 2,359,541 1,763,049 356,492
Tertals 5 28004939 $ 17772880 § 0232072

Limely reconclisdons of capital asset subsidiary recosds and capital ouclay expendimures imay seduce the hkelibood
that chuanges in capital assers are incorrectly disclosed in the notes to the finandal statetnenls, We extended our
audic procedurez to detcrmine the necessary revisions w the Bisercl’s note disclosuras fot capiral ssscts, and the

chanpes were acvepred by the Pistor

Recommendation: The Distdet showld strengthen procedures o ensure the adequacy and accuracy of
capital asset records and the related balances disclosed in the notes to fhancial statements,

The Disttict mepotled local food service revenmes mteling appromimately $14.9 million for the 2007-08 Hacal pear
(dar review indicated thar controls over Distic food service collectons were generally adequare;, howeses, we noted
cermain improvernents that could be made in intermel controls over food service cash collecions. Callectons from a
la canie sales rotaled $200.801 ar Sc Perershburg High School We noted that cash boxes wers used to account for
comain a la carte food sales as these fems were sold 4t vadous locations withen the iph schooll Heowewver,
procedures such s Jwventory conrrols or the use of receipting devices were oot in place Lo evidence ihe
rezzomableness of reported sales. Withous sdequate controls over individuad 2 Ta carre sales, the District’s 2bility to

propedy account for such sales &5 limited,

Becommmendation: “U'he District shonld cnhance contrel procedutes 1o provide for proper accountability of
food scovice a la catte sales. Such enhanced control procedures may include ibventory comiral procedures
and the nse of the point-of-sale cash registers.

The Distoel incumed costs, totaling $1,819,909, from its capiral onday millege levy funds hat wers not, of record,
allowable unéer the provisions of Section 1011.71{2), Flodda Statules.  This secrion provided that the Board may
lewv apainst the taxable value mot more than 2 mills for capital outlay purposcs, and provided the allowable uses of
capital oullay millage levy procesds. Such wses incded, among other things, funding new constracrion and
remogleling projects, mainrenance, rencvaton, snd repair of extsting school plants; school bus purchases; purchases
of new and replacement equipment; and payments due under lease-purchase agreements for educational fealites
and sites,

The Dhstrict recorded a 31,319,909 budgered transfer from the Local Capitad Tprovernent (J1.07) Fond w the
(Seneral Fund to reimburse the cost of cettuin eatbaok and classrootn reference book purchases durng the 2007-08
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fiscal vear.  Although the purchase of the opening day collection for = new school's hbrary medin center 15 &n
allowsble use of capimal cutlay millage peoceeds, the purchase of textbooks using these proceeds is not provided For
o law, Subscquent to our fnguiry, the Distact reimbuzsed the LCT Fusd foe the guesrioned costs by tansferaca
funds from the General Fund in the 200309 Escal vear.

Recommendation: The Distrdor should continwe its eflforts to ensure that it Hmits nse of capital owtlay
millage funds o the purposes set forth in Section 1011.71{2), Florida Statutes.

Putsuant to Section 1013.45{1), Florida Statctes, 2 school distrier may contract for the conpstmuction or reoovabon of

facilities with 2 consomction management entity {CME). Under the CWE process, contractor profic and overhead
are conmactally agreed vpon, and the CME 3 responsible for schedubing and coordination in both the desige and
comstection prhazes and i generally tesponsible for the successtul cmely, acd cconomucal completon of the

CONSTICNOn projoce

We reviewed the THsorict’s adminisrration of guaranreed mexitmnm pnoe {OMY) conreacts, toraling spprosinately
3278 million, $23.5 nullion and $3.6 million, respecowely, for the Tyene Bletnentary School, Dirnedin Elementary
School, and Leadman Pus Cotnpound projecls. The Discrict entered info contracts for the Tvrone Tlemeatary,
Drunedin Flemeneary, and Lealman Bus Compound projects m Oomober 2006, Apal 2005, and March 20H7,
Lespoctvely, znd had cumulatve expenditures for thess tliree projects Lolaling approximately 3216 millkon, 3233
todllioa, and 552 million, respecrively, us of June 30, 2008

Under GMP contracts, the Dismoct may realize cost savings if the cost of consiruction i less than the GMP. As
such, u GIP conttuct requires Distdel personngl 10 closely monirot consomiction costs. Crar seview disclosed that

the Disrsict conld enhance itk control: over constnuction contracang, as discessed below:

#  The corrtacts mequited the CMWEs 1o take competithre hids and preparc 2 bid tabulades that would be
fumished o the Distrct and architect IFacilides Deparment petsonne indicaled rhar they participated =
the CME’s subeontmactor bid openmngs aod tabulatdons of bid inforation; however, Listret recoxds, suck
az bid rabulations, were not signed and dated by Listrict personnel wo docement their Iovelvemment i this
process. Participadens in the subcontractor bad process, and docutmentation of such participation, provides

the Distoel assurance thal potenial cosl savings ate realined vnder GMP contracs.

DHsroct reconds did oot evidence that the Distdct teopitored the ChE's veritication that subcontractars

e

were properly Heensed.  Chaprer 489, Florida Srastes, establishes cortarn cestification mquitetnents {or
petsens engaged n constcton contracting, mcluding Leensing requirements for specialty conrractors such
as clectocel, air condidoning, plumbing, zod roofing conlmetors.  Verifieation of subeoatractor Leenses
provides the Thstric additional assurance that the subcontractoss met the qualifiendons to peclomm the
wotk for which they were copaged, A stmilar finding was noted in ot repost Neo. 2000-188. Sabsequene o
our ]:.ﬂill'.kit}', the Distdet indicated that procedurss wers implemented to vorify leensure of major
suboonrractors sech as mechanival, electzical, and rooting, which were pre-guafificd by the CME.

We also veviewed the Distoct’s procedures for Setermining whether construction expendilures for the three projecrs

were adequately supported.  Cur revdew disclosed that enhancements could he made tn verifving amounis paid for
general reguitement scheduled costs and amounts paid t subcontractors, as descabed below,
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# The genems] tequitement scheduled costs mchuded direet and indirect lebor costs for CME staff, such us
project managers and superintendents, and other costs, such as cleaning, cotmmundcations, and urilities.
Hemrewer, DistAct records did not always evidence sdequate support for these Exp.Eﬂd'ltlltcs. O tesss of
CME genera] tequirement scheduled costs, totaling approsimately 3671000, disclosed thet DMster econds,
such 15 payroll warrant registers for labor costs and vendor tovesces for payment and pesformance bonds,
cormunmnicaton, and wolity costs, could oot be provided 1 support costs, toraling approximarely 5643,000.
In response to this finding, Distrcl personnel indicated that they perform 2 review of each CME pay
zequest o confirm the sigrature of the P.mjo& architect. the conslruction cootdisator, and a representanve
of the Board architect’s office. however, no Berther explanation was provided for the imissing

docnamentasion.

W

Sulcomtracion invoics: were not always submitted with the {MUC's appheations for pavinenl. Qut tests of
{MFE expendioies inclided subcontractor paymenss, totaling approcdmarely $3.7 milicn. 14strict records,
such as subcontractor invodoes, were nal avallable fo substantiare approximarcly 3160000 of that atcount,
Thisirict persoane] did not provide an explananion of why these subcontrector invedess were not part of the

reconds to suppost thess changes,

¥ s review of nine snbcontractor involoes with contract atmeanls, moling $1009 million, and payment
request smounts, totaling 311 million, disclosed that these did not alears apree wath the amovnes incuded
in the CME's applicatinne for papments. The CMIVs applicetion for pavtments inchuded concract amounts
1nd paymest request amovnts for these nine subcanteactors 22 $11.6 meilfion and $1.6 million sespecnvely,
cr ditferences of $0.7 millicn and .3 mallion. Dastoct recerds did oot document che reasons that these

decrmments were different

Sufficient adequete documenletion o suppott smounrs chatged for general requirernent scheduled cosls ad

subcantvactors 5 necessary i evidence that charges are consistent with cuntmect terms and THstict exprectatinns.

Reecommendation: The Distdet showld docoment is involvement in thre CME’s subcontractor selection
prrocess and enhance its monitoring procedures to include the CME?s vexification that subeontractors are
properly licensed. In addition, the District shonld enhance procedures to ensure that documentation is
timely received, reviewed, approved, and maintained to support charges and paymenis to CMEs, including
those for subconttactors,

g Noi11: Warldorcé Education Postsccondary St

Section 1009.22, Flonda Sttumes, provides the suthodey and requitemaents for the Districr in charge fees o students
eorclled in workforce educalion programs.  During the 2007-08 Becal pear, the Distoct transterred adult general
sduearion and poscecondary vocational conrse foos, wotaling $931,359. within (he General Fund From the woskforce

development propram account to an norestacted account,

Upon our inquiry of the Disidet’s authority (o transfer and use these foes, the Dismict presented sn opinien from
the School Board Attormey. The opinion stated “pursmant to Secdon 1001.32(2), Flonda Statates, the Board may
exercise any power crccpt as cxprossly prohibited by the State Consbilation o general lawe. This “Home mle” power
would (in his opinion) permit the Distdel Lo determine how to ase workfosce development fees where Legislative
direction i+ slenr. Absenr Tegislarive direction o she conrtrary, the Distoct is lawfully petmilied to we mch fees far
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non-workfotee related porposes. Whether sach fees should be used for noo-workforse related purposes iz a policy

question for the Board to consider upon recomsmendaton bo tee Superinlendest.”™

Besed on comespundence froms the Florida Department of Eduecation {FDOL) of whether postsecondary werkforce
education prograrn studest fees tay be used for programs other than postsecondary workfores education, FEXOF
considers that the anthedry, provided by Secton 100922, Florida Stalutes, to cherge tuition iz based on she loreat
o have studests pay a portion of the cost of postsecondary educanon, and allowing tuitien tunds 1o be used to
support districe K-12 operations wonld viclate that intent. ko our report No 2006-138, we recorrrnended that the
Distder discontoue its practive of lansfemiog siadent fees foom the wotkinree developmest program account o
lhe General Fond for unvestricred pusposes, and setmburse the fees, otehog 2,636,153, tansierred during the
200403 fraczl vear to the workforce development program accounl,  Howewer, the District did not make this
reimbursement, and transferted addidional fees, rotling 33,501,783, for the 2005-06 throngh 2007-08 fscat years.

Recommendation: The Dismict should discoutinue its practice of transferring student fees from the
wotrkforce development program account in the General Fund to an unrestricied accownt, In additon, the
District should reimburse the fees totaling 56,157,956 w the workforce development program acconnt.

In cur zeport Mo, 2006-188, we nowed thar the District changed certain schaol and districr indirect cosss to the
workforee educalion postsecondary pragran based on the District’s anonal program cost repor. Fhese costs wene
tranzfecred within the Generzl l'nnd from the workforce development prograte aceount 1o reimburse the District

porestdeted accounts for school and distdel level indirect costs allocable to the postsecondary workforce educadon
Drogratn.

Wie noted thar Chapter 2004-265, Levws of Flodda, Specific Appropriation 1928 of the Genesal Aporopristions Act,
provided thel wotkiome development fands provided by this appropaation are not to be bsed to supporl K12
programs of the Districr K-12 administradve indivect costs,  Our feview disclosed thay, in determining the school
and district level indirect costs to be used i the allocation process, Trsmict staff mcleded crpenditires for
secondury programs (grades & through 12 Therefore, the Distict tansferned $3,033,923 more to the General Fund

frat tndirect costs than was allowable by Law,

W rocommended that the Distder should reurs 33,033,923 1o the worktoece developrnent program accouzt znd
rewise itz methadology over the allocation of indirect costs to cosure that wotkforee development fimds are 2ot nsed
to support K12 proprams or the Districr E-12 edmimdstradve indizect costs. Our review of the crrent penod’s
location of Indirect costs 10 Lhe wotkfores development poogram disclosed that the Distoet had tevised s
trethodolagy aver the allocation process so thar workforce develepment fusds wete nod wed fo srppoer K-12
programs or the Distact K-12 admaistrative fodirect costs, Tlowever the Dsiricr had not retirned the 53,033,923
program funds transferred o the General Fund in excess of the arnoent allowable by low,

Recommendation: The District should return to the workforce development program account the
53,033,923 transferred to the General Fund daring the 2004-85 fizcal year.
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The Legisiatuze has acknowledeed n Section 110071{5)(w), Florida Sfanates, the necessip of collecAng social
security numbers (S5Ns) for cortain puzposes because of their acceptance over tme as a unigue numeric idennber

for identity verfication and other legitimate purpeses. The Lepishature has also recognizecd that 85Ns can be used to
acquite sensitive personal informaton, the release of which could resalr in frand against indrdduals o cause other
Enancial or personal harm,  Therefore, public eatities are reqnired to provdde extrs cure in mintaining such

nformeton to ensure s confidendal srams.

Effective Clerobar 1, 2007, Sccton 119.071{5)(a), Flotida Statates, as 2mended by Chaprer 2007-231, Taws of
Florida, provides that the Distrct muay nol enllect an individaal's 33N voless the Distdel has stared in wiiting the
purpose {ot ils eollecrion and unless It s specifically aathomtsed by law to do S0 o imperatree for the perfonmance of
the THstrict's dutics and responsibilides as prescribed hy faw. Additionally, tis secdon requites that, a5 the Disooc
coflects an individusl's 53N, it must prowide the individual with » copy of the weimen staremenr mdicating the
putpose for coflecting the oumber. Purther, this seoion prowides that 55Ms collected by the Distmicl mar nor he
nsed by the Distact for any purpose other than the purpose provided in the written statement. This scction 2lse
requites that the Distriet review whether its collecton of 38N is in compliance with the abowve reguiteiments;
immediately discontinue the collection of 35Ns for perposes that are oot in compliznee; and cetfify to the Presidenr
of the Senabe and the Spesker of the Homnse of Feprescatatives its compliance with these regmirements no later than
Jarmuary 31, 2008, Yumher, by this dare, the Distticl was required 1o file a repart with the Execulive Offfice of the
Croveenar, the President of the Senate, and the Speaker of the House of Representatives lsting the identity of all
cummercial enlities that have requested social secubty oumberts duting the preceding calendar yeoar and the specific
putposes stzted by cach commmerdial entity regarding its need for 88Ns. I no disclosere requesrs were mmade, the

TiEstrict was required ro so indicate.

The THatrict requires applicants for employment w provide theit $5N on coployment spolications; however, uniil
Jamzary 2008, a statement, in writing, segarding why the applicant’s 88N wus requested was not proaded to the
zpolicant. While student S3Ns wete obtained for certain fonms such as enrollment applicatons, the Distdor oold
nor docnment that 2 whten starement regerdicg te purposs for its collectson was provided o the patent of legal
gozrdian Tor the 2008-00 fiseal year, wriren statements were provided o the patent or legal goardian chrough
distrbution of the Code of Smdoat Conduct, We further noled b the requited report of commercial entires
obraining 55Nz and cordfication of compliance were filed wath the Governor and Legislamre, as applcable, on
Jemmary 29, 2008,

Recommendaton: The Disttict should continne its efforts to comply with Section 118.0671(5){(a), Flerida
Btamtes, and propetly monitor its collecton and use of social sceutity numbes.

The Districe should improve its prucedures for timely obeaining Angerprinrs and background screenings for
mstrctonal and noninstoections] staff that have diceo contact with studens. Sections (0125609 and HZ465,
Florids Stanes, tequive thar instructional personnel tenewing their reaching cernficetes and noninstructional
personnel underpo required backgrouod sereening, which includes fmgerprinting, every five vears Enllomang inttal
screcning upun emplovtoent. [n a memorsndnm dated June 25, 2004, the Florida Department of Education
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(FOE) terommended that distrcts conduct background seresnings for certified instructonal employees every e
years, at the time of renewdl of their 1eaching cerrificates, and that backgruusd sereenings be obmined for
approxitmztely 20 percent of the nontnstrctional employees each year, beginning with the 2004-05 fiscal yeur, in
urder to complete backgronnd scrcenings for all emplovess aver the five-vear pertod ending July 1, 2009

The Distdct had & procedurs in place {or performing the requred Backgtound scersenings frr newly hired
employees. However, as noted i ons report No.o 2006-185, the Trziriet lacked a procedure fur Dackgeound
soreenings for cxisong instmuctonal and mordinstrucrional emplovees. The District enlered info a contract o
petform these required fiogerprintng and backeround screenings on May 15, 2008, As of Jone 30, 2008, the
Dhsider identified 6931 nsomcdonal and noniostroclhons] emplovees who had not obtudoed the required
fingerpeinting and background scresmings. Absent the tequired fingerprnting and background screenings, there is
an increased fsk thal staff wich mnsuitable hackgrounds may be allowed access ro students.

Recommcrdaton: The District shoeld enhance its procedurcs to casure that required fingerprinting and
background screenings are performed for all instructional and noninstructonal staff as required.

‘The Distriel provided cellnfar telephones (coll phopes) b cerin emplovees For use i perdorming their duries.
Aecording to the Distder's records, 923 cell phones wete used during the 2007-08 fscel year al a.cost of $427511

Pupsuant to Unired States Treasuy Regulations, Sccoon 1.274-5T(kl, an employes may nor exclude from gross
incame any amount of the Talne of property listed o Secion 280Fd; ) of the [nternal Revenue Code (FRC), unless
the emplovee substanlistes the amount of the exclusion in zecomdance with e requizemnents of Secnon 274{d) IRC,
and Uniled Srates Treasury Repuladons, Secton 1.274-5T. Berause cell phoncs are listed property, their nse is
subject o the substancation requiretnents of the United Sates Treaswry Reguladons, Seclion 1.274-5T(h(5), winch
require employess Lo subtnit records to the Districe o establish the smoeans, date, place, and business puzpuss for
each business call. A notated copy of the employes’s el phone Lil? is an example of such o tecord. To arddirinn,
etrplovers must review the emplovee’s celi phone hills to contirm the cell phoae was enly wsed for business.

The BEstoict had ool deveioped and wmplemened policdes and procedutes requoring emplorees to matntan notated
copies of cell phone bills or a log of business calls delafling the dare, ome, csmblishment called, and husiness
prarnose of tie call As such, the Distder showld have reported to the Internal Revenue Service {IRS) the value of
coll plrone services provided o each cmployee assigned a cell phone. Cur teview discloscd that che Disidet had not

incinded the value of these services in the income repotted for these cooployoes,

Recommendation: The District should confer with the IRS regarding development and implementation of
a policy and procedute, as appropriste, and any correctve actions reganding previously unreported
ncome.

Froprovements arc needed in Distoct procedures for monitoring asnd roviewing certan activities of i cherter
schools, Dheting the 2007-08 fiseal year, the Distoct sponsored six charer schools 2nd the contracts with these
schuols tequived them to provide cvidence of insutance For general lisbiliry, automobile Hability, workers’
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compensation/ cmployers’ lisbility, school leaders” errors snd omissions, and property damage insumance. “Lhe

contracks elso recuire that the Disider e included 25 an addidona? insered o the policies.

Suhsequent to our nguiry, the Bistrier requested evidence of msnrance fom the six charter schools. Ot review of
these pelicies disclosed the folfowing:

# The Tistrict lacked decumentation of commmercial general habiliey end automebde Taldite insurance Eot
Academis D Vina Chaerter School, Ine,

¥ Cherter school contracts required school leader’s and ertars and omissions nsurence of 31 mulhon per claim
and 32 millicn antmal aggregare.  Howevet, the nsurance certficates for Academis T Vingd Charrer
School Inc., Pinellas Preperatory Acadetny, Inc, and Plato Academy indicare 20 annnal ageregate mit of
51 million. In addition, the Dismec did not provnde dommenntion of school leader’s and erross and
omisstens insurance for Life Sklls Chader School, Inge

# Lhe Athenien Academy Charter School, Inc., and Life Skills Charter School, Tne, conrtracts cach required
wiotkess” compensation,/emplovers’ lability msurance with mminmim lmits of $1 milion per ocourtenes and
52 mullion annual aggeegate; heraever, the insutance cerlificates for these schools oaly indicate policy limirs
of $3HL000 per poourrence and aggpregate and $1 muithen per octurtcoce and aggregats, tespectively.

Two charter schoots, Pincllas Preparatory Academy, Inc., 2nd The Atheman Acadesny Charter School, Inc,
did mow provide evidencs of properly insutasce ooverage, althourh the charter schools” financial statements
indicated thar there were capital assets which would need 4o be protected from loss by thefi or damage.

b

#  The insoramee certificate for Plare Academy did sor name the School Boand as additionally nsured for
comimeraist general Babdlity insurance, coslraty o the charter school contrac.

In the absence of procedures to mesiror and wenfy thet the chamer sckouls have e tequired insurance coverage,

the Distdel may be subject o potential Bability in the svent oninsured clains oo ar the charter schools.

Recommendation: The District shoold develop procedutes o ensuve that the charter schools provide
evidence of all regeirved insurance coverage.

Finding' No

Cnbancements could be mede in monttotng procedures 1o ensume the adequacy of msurance coverage for work
performed by architecrs. Disteict procedures require architecmral firres to provide professiopal habiliy insurance of
#1 million. The [istict entered into a contract with az architecmral fitm to provide architeceal sesvices for the
replacenent faclity for Tarpon Springs Elementary with construction costs of $24 ithon; however, our review of
the cersficate of liability coverage prowided by the Distnct disciosed the architectuza] fom only carvied general
Hability insurance of $1 million, irstead of professiona] lelality.  Withou! adeguate procedures to monitor the
nsurance coverage of anchitects, there s an increased risk thar such eoverage may not be adequate, subjectng Lhe

THzstiet te pocential losses.

Ruecommendation: The Distrct should enhance procedures to ensere that adequate insurance protection
iz obtained for the design of Distrct building projects.

Mansgetnent should have 2 contral process n pilace to peripdically review and confirme aocess dghts to help neduce
the risk of errors, fraud, misuse, or nnaucherized aberatcs. The Distoct bad implemented wset access confrot
r
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procedurcs that sequited a department or school’s scounty adosinstrator o complets @ System Service Request
(S5R) form to wdd o new wer, change a user’s access povileges, or delete a4 wser. The Thstrics, however, lacked
polictes and procedures that would requize pericdic review by management of uwser access accounts, A similar

Endeng waz noted 10 owr repor Mo, 2006-138.

Recommendadon: To provide increased assurance that the access provided is appropriate and authorized,
the Distict should implement procedures to petiodically review all user application access accounts for
appropriateness and verify that the acress granted iz evidenced by a written and approved 85R form.

Serutity comtrols are intended to protect the confidentality, Integtity, andd availability of dara and infoemeation
technolegy (1) sesounrces. Orer andit disclosed cemam DHstict seourity concrels that aceded improvemment, W ame
net dscdosing speafic details of the ssues in this report tu avedd the possibility of comproraizing Thatrier date and
IT rearurces. I—iowew_-rn we have notified approptiate THanier mansgement of the specific issues. Withour adecuate
semoty contreds, the conbdendality, integoty, and avallability of deta asd T1' resources may be cotnpromised,
ingreasing the sk that Thsrrct da and TT zesources may be subject to improper disclosure, modification o
destruction. Sundsr bndings were alse noted i owr report Ne. 2006- 182

Recowmmendaton: The District shonld implement appropriate security controls to ensure the comtinued
confidentality, integrity, and availability of District data and IT resources.

Eiffcctive controls ower chanpes w0 applicadon programs are mtended te cosuse that oaoly suchodred and propedy

fenchoning changes are implemented. Program change conttols incude procedures 10 ensure thar 2lF changes are
propetly awthorized, tested, and approved for tnglemengation. Progeam change contonds that are typacally comployed
to casmre the contwed fntepncy of applicetion svstems meclode mamtaring whtten evideoce of the progrun
changes control process, thorough testing and approving of changes by 2 persan ar group independent of the
mdradual makieg the changes, and scparating the tesponsibility for cooving appreved chenpes 1oto the produsdon

envirentnent from persoss whe developed the changes,

Our testing of 13 systenn service requests for progratn modifcaton: disclosed thar, in one instance, the approval to
™Ove Progrﬁm changes oo predumion was done |:>.'J;r the same person esponsible for making the program change, In
acdition, in L instances, Lhere was no documentadon of who approved the move to production. Allowing the
sime person to cieage of change a program and approve the mowve tn producoos mcreascs the dsk that

nmanthodzed or ceoepcous programs will be tmplemented without tomely detection.

Recommendation: The Bistrict should ensure appropriate separatiom of duties exisis rega.rdiug the
movement of progrzms to production and document who approved the move to producton.

Effective access controly include provisions Lo mely remove emplofes access privileges when employment

errinatons ocoir  Prompt action 15 poccssary o coswee that a foomer cmployee does mot retadn IT aceess
_Th.
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prvileges that would aliow misspproptiaion or abuse of Dhstrict assets. Addidonally, sound practces for menaging
svstemn access privleges include mazinaining an austomated fop o document the dates and measoms that access
randificstions were made.  The District’s A%/400 system allows access to the Total Fduestional Resource
Mamagement System (TERMS) whick sccounls for fimance, hutnan resources, pavroll, and capital asset information.
Although, the THstrict ndicared that ims genecal practice was m nots¥ the Distoct Systemn Administmalor of emploves
torminations to provide for the prompt removal of access povilemes, we noted deficiencies n controlling these

povileses, as discussed Delow:

# "Lhe Distdet did not maietic autemated logs of T access mnodifications to evidence that former employess’
agcess privileges were removed fimely. Without lops of 11 access modificatons, the Thstrict may be unable
o deremmoine when a user's access was modified and the Disidcr’s ability fo pinpainr accomntability for a
breach of secudly, should A6 occur, may be hindetedd  The Disoriet did mamntsin @ maneal log which Hsted
rthe employee and the date wser access was terminated, Howewer, the log dud oor document access

modifications other than the date user acoess was Lemminared.

# Our test of 10 emplovees who temminated dunng the 2007-08 fiscal vear disclozed computer access
prvileges were not promptly deleted. For the AR 4H) systemy, the povileges wers deleted for mine of the
farmer employees from 23 to 332 days after the terminzion dales. For TRRMS, privileges were deleted for
the mine fommier eroplovess oo 13 10 492 Zays afber the termination dares, Tfor the other employes, who
tevminated employment on fuly 31, 2007, the mansal records showed AS/400 and related THRMS nsce
accosses were deleted in August 2007, Withow dmely deletion of forrmer emplovees” access, the msk s

increased that access prinleges conld be misused by the forreer cooploves or others,
Although our tosts of fevemue and cxpendiniee wansactons did ool disclose any wstances of coors or

misappropiations as a tesult of the conlzol deficiendes noted above, the District 13 cxposed to a preater msk of loss

when it daes nof timely terminaie the 1T access privileges of tocmer cooployees,

Recommendation: The Distict should enhance controls over the tmely deleton of IT access privileges
for former employees in order to minimize the risk of compromising the District’s data and IT vesources.

Efiective securiry awareness fraining for emplovees mchdes periodic updates to promote awareness of practices thas

protect against harm from failberes affecong confidentiality, istegmity, and avadability of the District’s Il resorerces.
Distect management stated that the Distdel’s secudty swatenes: training consisted of Disrnet Poloy No. 733 which
addresses unaceeptable wies of passwords or accounts; prevention of vinuses; confidende] informetian; and penalties
for noneompliance. [n addition, now TERMS nsers are provided a memorandurn which instruers how to seeup and
actvate passwords and setves # an agreernent that by activating a user ID the anpleyee agrees not to shure the 10
ot password with anvone  The memorandum also refess new users to a TERMS Tser Masual for addivional
informanon on password change procederes, The Distoct dié not bave an ;;}tlgoiﬂg program of seclcity waning on

topics such as incident hendling, social engineeting, suspicions or unwelcome e-mails, and wirs dsks,

A lack of comprehensive secarity owareness fraining in arees of sk mcreases the lkelhood that usess will fail o
tecognize and respond aporoprately to cxternal threats, These failuzes could result in wims-infecred compurers or

access to confdental of senslive data Ty unanthozized indmiduals.
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Recommendation: The Dismict’s sccurdty awarcocss iraining should be expanded to address relevant
secutity risks to which employees conld be subject, including the fteins listed above, to enhance the ability
of employees to assist the IHstrict io maintaining a safe computing covitonerent.

FmdmgNo 23: I_n ommtmn Tbchnology—Disastcr Recoﬁe_f_j:}'-

Physical secuziiy memtrols are designed to imorove custndy ewer 2sscts and prevenr wnoeodoms] or accidenlal
desmuction of data.  ‘These conotrols should seme a5 preventive meascres as well as providing for bah the
replacenent of records thal may be desiwoved and the contnpity of aperations foillowing 2 major hardware or
software fallure, A cisaster fecovery phin should idennfy the edoeal applicanons, provide ot ackups of critical
dala sets, und provide a step-by-step plan for mecovery,  The plan shoeld inclode 2 writren sgreeseent for an
altetnacive processing facility thar can he wrilized for continwity of operations, meluding the spedfic responstilities
of both parties rclative to the availability of, and usc of, the facility, In addition, pian eletnents showld be rested, ata

rningrrurn, soncally o disclose any areas sot addressed and 1o facilitare proper conduct ke an acmnal emerpency.

The Disteies had developed a Disaster Recovery Plan Procedural Haandbook that eudined cideal sysietns and an
alternare site for provessing in the event of a processing distuption. Section 10.30(2) of the plan haadbook equices
rhat the plan be fested af lezac onee annually. The DHserict has noc tested the plan since 2005, Ar the time of this
testing, the Distnct determined that the programs wete unable o tun successTully due 1o hardware imcompashbility.
Far THstrict sanzgement, the Districr i onrrently in negotiarions for a hat-shte in order to mmplement 165 contioudty

of operaticss plan, A simibar fnding was noted most recenrdy In our repom o, 2006-158.

Recommendation: ‘The Disirict should finalize its negotations for a hot-site and test #s disaster recovery
plan at least once a year as provided in Scetion 10.532) of its plan handbook.

Level of Effort — Supplement Mot Supplant  The Pistrct did wot decemenr that salzdes asd benefits padd foom

File 1 fonds to cortsin Distic: emplovees mer the sepplement oot supplant compliunce requiressenr, resuling in
euestioned costs, Inilialy wialing $1,304,732, Pablic Law 107-110, United States Code, nrovides in part, that Tide 1
program funds shall be vsed to sepplement the funds ther would, in the absence of such Tedera? funds, be mads
avalable irom non-Federal sources for the educaton of puptls pattivipating in prograrms assisted under this part, and
20Ut suppiant such funds. The Unired States CHice of Management and Budget Cirowdar 4737 provides thet it 1s
presumed supplanting has ocenrced i the local edwration agency (LELA) has used the Federal funds 1o provide
services that the PEA provided with non-Federal funds in the poor year

The United States Deparsnent of Education (USERY) perfommed & monttoring review of the Tide [ program for che
2007-00 Fscal vear which discloscd, m par, chat the Distoct did nor seeet the requirements for supplemsnt nol

T
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supplaet. The Distder puid salages and fringe bengfits, tombng $103,720, for un assticiate superiateadent, oifice
trznager, sadd four staff developers from the Title | program funds dudng the 2007-08 fiscal vear; however, dudng
the 2006-07 fscal year, these salanes were paid from the Genergl Fund. In these circumstances, the salaries and
benefits patd from Tite I funds, are presumed to have sepplanted becanse the sulares and benefits were provided
from non-Federal funds in the prins vear and, therefore, reoresent questionsd costs. In addinon, the Distnct pad 2
plant operators, 13 staff dovelopers, and a murse with eombined salarics and benefie costs, tolaling 3901,032, from
Title T progratn {funds deting the 200708 fiscal wear.  However, USED derermined thaz the Dastnct dig nos
docemen: that these costs met the supplement oot supplint ¢omglisnce reguirement The Distnet testoted
322,873 of the questoned costs by translemding expendinires seprescnong salanes and benefils costs (o the {rencral
Tund iz July 2008, According o [Mserict persouncl as of Jeouary 2009, the Districr iz aweliting officiz] nobficadon

Feom the Flodda Departinent of Educatios regasding any tetpaining finds that manst be restared,

Recommendation: ‘The District should document to the granros (USED the allowability of the rematning
questoned costs of $1LOT79,87Y, or these moneys showld be restored to the program.

Listrict Coovact Person: Charlis Eubanks, Ditecior, Special Projects Otfice

Ypecial Tests and Provisions — Highly Qualified Teachers. 1de 34, Secton 20035, Code of Hederal
Regulabions, requizes that school districts ensure that afl public elementary and secondary schoel teachers who teach
core acadermnie subjects in a propram supported with the Tide T fends, such as Title [ schoolwdde program, including
teachers emploved by the Disttict ko pravide services to eligible private schoal studenrs be highly qualitied. Title 34,
Sechon 200.36, Code of Federsl Regnlaiions, supnlaws, amony other (rings, that a reacher must be cerdfied in cach
cowe academic subiect assizned, geocrally through State lesting or addirional coursework, to be highly qumlified.

Fhe USED's monirodag review disclosed that teachers emploved by the Distrct to provide services m climble
privame school students did oot meet the requircments to be ighly qualified For the core academic sabject he ox she
was teachieg, Chr reviow of Distoct recnmds disclosed salaries and benefrts, totaling $163,858, paid ro 19 teachers
who did not mest the highly gealified reacher requirement during the 2007-08 fscal vear. The Districr indicated dhat
these kowrly teachers were undes divect supervision of a dasstootn teacher and were now considered teachers of
recosd for core academics in Pinellas Coonly Schools. Based on this, the Distect did cot consider 1hern as subject
to the highly gquelified reaching requirements; however, this view appears conzery to the Federal sepulatoes,
Fuziher, the Dhstrict is cerrently identiffing and monitodng compliance with the highly qualtfred requirements fox
teachets providing services in privete schools. Tlaving bighly qualified smff would enhance the Districss ability to
properly educale Title T sordents and consribiste toward meeting the adequale peacly progress stendards set by the
TISED. The szlary and benefits costs, toraling 163,858 paid o these employees wlule assigned to these reaching

posifons represent questionsd costs subject 1o dsallowance by the prantor,

e
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Recommendartion: The District shonld enhance procedures to ensure that all teachers hired to teach corc
academic subjects in Title I privare schocls are highly qualificd. In addition, the Istrict showld docunrent
to the grantor (Florida Depactment of Education) the allowability of the $163,858 in questoned costs of
those moneys shcru]ﬁ be restored to the program.

District Comtact Person: Charlie Hubsnks, Directon, Spedial Projects Oifhee

Exeempr 23 dizcussedd in the preceding parsgraphs, the Districr had taken comectve aciors for bndings meluded 1o

peovious zudit repars.

Management’s response iz ncluded as Bxhibic — N

T
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Pinellas Count',;r Dis’r.rict School Board Responses Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

Finding No. 1 Investmeni Controls

Finding 14

Thea Manager of Cash and investments (MCI1) will begin trainihg sessions with backup persennel in
various investment transaction activities. Subject to funding availahility, the District will work towards
having at l=ast one, preferably both, backup persennel, attend annual training. Other items in this
finding are coverad individually in the paragraphs that follow.

Finding 1B

Vhila the examples cited by the AG are indeed specific standards that may be applied, they are alzo
not all encompassing. Such a prescriptive policy could become cumbearsome by attempting to cutline
every single possibility of ethical behaviar. The current policy was formulated with the input of the
Investment Oversight Committes {1OC)L

Finding 1C

Atthe March 3, 2009 [OC meeting, the issue of 3 new banchmark was discussed. The MCI will
formulate an alternative benchmark based on the District's specific risk profile. A suggestion was
made that the MC| also attempt to formulate a benchmark based on the returns achieved by other
governmental entities fn the state of Florda, specifically school Districts if availabls.

Fidinag 10

Audit findings were that the review of individual transactions was inconsistent and that the process for
review and downgraded securities was not specific enocugh as to timeliness. The procadure for
having confimmations reviewed by the Chief Business Offticer {CBC) has been reviewed and approved
as follows. The Staff Accountant will create a checklist of investment activity based on the
confirmations and screan prints that she recaives from the MCI. She will review the checklist and
make sure that confirmations are raceived on a timealy basis from the CBO. The procedure for
reviewing downgraded securities has been reviewed and improved as follows. The MU will review
the District's porifolio at month end and determine whether any holdings have been downgraded.
Downgrades are algo released to the newswire an Bloomberg, which is mooitorad by the MCL
Downgrades are also watched intently by the brokerfirader community. VWhen a downgrade afiects a
District bond, it benefits the broker to inform the MCT as i represents a possible trade. This has
happened in at least one instance. As soon as the MCI defermines that an investment has been
downgraded, the MCI will send an e-mail to the 10C, and obiain concurrence as to the most prudent
course of action.

Finding 1E

The timeliness of the review of the quarterly investment reporis and presentation to the Board was
hamperad by what staff feels were one-ime issues, specifically, the difficully in reconciling the
investment activity during the year. Additional staff resources were temporarily assigned to the
reconciliation issue. Siaff will be more diligent in a timely review of the quarterly investment reports by
tha 10C and subseguent prasentation of those same reports to the Beard. A third internal staff
member has been identifiad and addad to the IOC. That individual has aftended the most recent 100
meating,
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Finding 1F
Staff faels that the nature of the cash flow projections, in as much as they are based on thoroughly

reviewead budget figures, is sufficient to ensure reasonablensss. However, the MG will review the
assumptions used in the cash flow projection with the CBD and the Assistant Superintendent for
Finance and Business Senvices prior to the start of each fizcal year.

Finding 1&G

13 The process for creating and posting the wire transfer entrias to record investment activities has
been reviewed and improved. YWhen the MCI has created a wire fransfer endry, he will give it to the
Dhirector of Accounting for review. The Director will then initial the first page of the wire transfer entry
and give it to the account clerk responsibis for pufiing info TERMS. 2) The MCEwill more tharoughly
document any adjustments that are made 1o the final SymPro reporls used {0 record investment
eamings activity. 3} The Staff Accountant will more thorguahly dosument any reconclling items that
are identifiad on the investment aceount reconsillations. 4) The investmant account reconciliation
process is complex and it is expected that anyone performing the reconciliation will have a significant
learning curve. The MO feels that the Staff Accountant with this job function is performing as
expected given the ttime on the job and the training she has received. Each new reconciling tem is a
“teaching moment” and staff feels thal the procass wilt become mare indapandeant each maonth.

Finding 1H

The process for executing electronic funds transfers has been reviewed and improved. Upon the
completion of a wire transfer from a District account to a destination outside District contral, the MO
will inform the Financial Repaorting Anabyst in the Finance Departmant. Sha will then review the wire
transfer enfry and sign on fo the District's banking web site and confirm that the transaction(s) was
completed carractly. She will then sign the wire fransfer enlry indicating the trangaction has been
venfied. This individual reparts directly to the CBO.

Finding No. 2 Financial Reporting

The District will enhance its procedures to ensure accurate reporting on the finaneial statements.

Finding 3 Bank Account Reconciliations

Audit finding was that not all District bank accounts were reconciled, nor were some of the
reconciligtions completed fimealy. The process of reconciling District bank accounts was reviewed and
improved. The bank accounts with non-standard or incomplete reconciliations are now reconcilad by
the same parson responsible for all of the other District bank accounts. Efforts will be made to
improve the imeliness of the recenclliations and the comection of any reconciling items.

B
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Finding No. 4 — Separation of Dulies

« Maintenance -- The District’s Business Management Depariment located at Walter Pownall
senvice Center is responsible for providing an independent review of invantory purchases,
usage and cycle count adjustments on a monthly basis. Althouab we have identified these
iterns, this action has not been successfully implameanted due to the high volume of inventory
transactions, personnel reductions, and past and future expected operating expense
reductions. Because of the aforementionad izsues, we were unable to achieve a separation of
duties and appropriate infernal confrols. The District recognizes the nesd o maintain adequate
imternal contrels and separate duties, We will cordinue to review options {0 improve whenever
possile, .

e Warehouse — The District's Business Management Depariment is responsible for providing an
indapandent review of inventary entries on a monthly basis. During the fiscal year 2008/2009,
the Wareshouse Depariment has provided transaction data quarnterly for Business Management
to do an independent review of certain inventory enfries. The department staffing fimits the
flexibility of assigning separate and non-overlapping duties. The District will continue to look at

oplions o improve these processes wherever possible,

= Transporiation — The District's Business Management Department is responsible for providing
an independent review on 2 monthly basis. Due to the thres parts rooms located across the
county, the same volume experience as pravious years and strong controts limiting overtime,
the District must resort fo overlapping duties to maintain efficient operations. FThe Disfrict wil
continue 1o examine options o increase separation of duties and internal contrals.

Finding No. & = Separation of Duties

The Digtriet has raany layars of mitinating internal controls which we believe help prevent and detect
payment to fictitious vendors, or diversion of paymeants to an improper maiting addrass. The Pistnct
engaged an independent ferensic auditing firm to audit the accounts payable system and the payroll
system. In auditing the accounts payable system, the scope of the audit examined all accounts
payable fransactions for a period of two vears. The audit examined such things as fictitious vendors,
employess posing as vendors and vendaor payments sent fo ficlitious or erroneous addresses. Aftera
review of 21l accounts payable tansactions for 2 two year parind, no inappropriate transactions were
found by the independent firm. The Districf is confident that its internal controlg in the area of
aceounts payable are strong and the independent forensic audit has provided evidence to that fact.
However, in an effart to further enhance the infernal control structure, management will requast a
report from the MIS deparbment which shows the user ID of the individuat effecting changes 10 vendor
records. That report will be reviewed for appropriateness of such changesfadditions which will
provide a review independent of the accounts payakle process,

-&4
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Finding No. 6 - Accounts Payable and Payroll Deductions and Withholdings General Ledger
Accounts

The District has enhanced its procedures to reconcile and adjust general ledger health plan accounts.

Finding No. 7 — Capital Asset Conirols

{a) The District maintains subsidiary records for ifs buildings by individual site or location. Building
improvernents, such as wing addiions or roof replacements become chattels of the building and
therefore, indistinguishable from the building. As such, it is neither practical nor cost effective to
maintain separate records for those improveiments that become incorporated as pant of the structure
as a whale. Individual buildings at any given site are readily identifiable and the District removes such
buildings from the subsidiary when it is {0 be razed and the cost is identifalile. When the facilty was
ariginally constructed it is unlikely that the contractor identified costs assoclated by building; rather the
completion price would more likely have been for the facility as a whole. Therefore, it is dificult to
determine an accurate value to remove from the subsidiary if ordy 1 or 2 buildings are razed on a site
of multiple buildings. The District has a reasonable process in place for the accountability of its
huildings.

The District also maintains subsidiary records for land and site improvements in the agaregale by site.
The District does not maintain detalled subsidiary records for individual kand or sife improvemeants.
Mormally, land and site improvemeants are made {o ready a site for use and become part of the total
cost of the site. For example, the District does not maintain a separate subsidiary for the value of sod
installzd at a site.

The District will koweaver, evaluate the practicality and cost effectiveness of maintaining detailed
ledgers for future additions and site improvements.

{b A computer system programming efror cceurrad in August 2007 and was discoverad on the
month-end reconciliation report. 1 took MIS several months fo find all the errors and make the
corrections; however, this still did not balance the month-end reconcilialions. This eriginal problem
masked another protlem with one of the month-end reports which was duplicating entries every
month. These figuras had to be manually backed out of the month-end tetals, which was time-
consuming and delayved the month-end reconciliations even further. K tock until Juby of 2008 for MIS
to courect this second system error. Since then, we have been balancing consisteniiy gvery month.

Finding Mo, 8 — Faod Service Colleﬁions

The Disirict has enhanced is procedures for ala care sales and has made them effective February 25,
2008, and has made them a permansnt part of the Cperations Manuat.

25
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Finding No. 8 — Ad Valorermn Taxes

When the computation to transfer allowable costs from capital outlay millage funds was parformead,
the District inadvertently included certain unallowable costs. VWhen this error was discoverad, the
District took immediate corrective action to transfer the $1,819,90% back to capital outiay millage
funds. The District will enhance s procedures for performing future calculations.

Finding Ne 10 — Construction Administration

The District has made many changes in the Facilities Department since tha last Auditor General
Report. The Director of Facilifies and the Manager of Construction positions have besn eliminated and
the School Board Architect pesition remains unfiled. In addition, three Construction Technician
positions and one Clerical position were eliminated. Because of these changes, which represent a
great foss of institutional knowledge, the District decided to move forward by authorizing the Director
of Busingss Management to engage Cuthill & Eddy LLC, now known as Carr, Riggs & tngram LLE
{CRI} after @ recent merger of the CPA firms. They were engaged to parform attestation services
regarding the construction contracts for Lealman Intenmediate Middle School — Canstrustion Manager
{CM) = Walbridge Aldinger Construction (Walbridge) and Oak Grove Middle Schoot - CM = Peter
Brown Construction {Peter Brown).

CRI completed its reports and recommended that Walbridge refund the District $11,850 for costs paid
to them that exceeded the Gross Maximum Price {GMP). They did 50 on May 8, 2008. CRI also
reported that Peter Brown spent $85,720 mere than the GMP and would not be reimbursed. All
findings and recommendations by CRI have been forwarded to the Superiniendent, the Chief
Business Ufficer, the School Beard Attorney, Financa/Budgat Management and Facilities and
Operations Division Management. These reports were also provided to Auditor Generat staff during
the current examination. These recommendations as well as other changes have been incorporated
into a draft version of the Construction Contract and CM Agreement and will be updated in the near
future.

The District has engaged CRI during the Fiscal Year 2008/2009 for the same senvices to be applied 1o
the recently completed construction contracts for High Point Elementary School — CM — Skanska USA
Butlding {Skanszka} and Dunedin Elementary Schoal — CM — Bunbury Construstion Co. {Bunbury). The
attestation sarvices include a review and reconciliation of sufficient, adequate documentation to
suppart amounts charged for general requirement scheduled costs and subcontractor costs to
avidence that charges are consistent with contract tenms and District expectations.

The District recently approved the Director, Building Official to overses the Facilities Department.
Along with direction from the Director of Business Managerneni, we will document our involvement in
the CM's subcontractor process and enhance its monitoring procedures to include the CM's
verfication that subcontractors are properly censed. in addition, the Dislrict will enhance procedures
to ensure that documentation is timely received, reviewed, approved, and maintainzd to support
eharges and payments to CM's, Inciuding these for subcontractors.
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Finding No, 11 Workforce Fducation Postsecondary Student Fees

The recommendation is duly noted. However, the communication received from Florida Department
of Education staff appears to be a policy statement and not a legal interpretation of statute. The
District's legal counsel maintains its position as previously stated.

Finding MNo. 12 Workforce Education Programs — Indirect Costs

The District has modified its procedures for allocating indirect cost to the waorkforce development fund.

Finding No. 13 — Collection of Social Security Numbers

As noted in the finding. the District has implemented procedures and is in compliance with Section
119.071(5)(a), Florida Statutes.

Finding No. 14 — Fingerprinting Requirerments

Pinellas County Schools contracted with PrideRock/ABG to perform all of the requisite re-
nngerprinting of current employess pursuart {0 the statute. There were 10,636 employees two years
ago that neadad {o be printed by June 2008, To date, the remaining number of employees is
approximately 2244 and thase will be completed by this spring under cur current schedule. That
number may be less based on attrition.

Finding No. 15 — Cellutar Telephones

Cell phones in the District are provided for employees to use for business purposes only and
employees do sign a "Cell Phone Agreement” acknowledging and agreeing to this and if violated are
subject io disciplinary action per School Board Policy. After reviewing the IRS website regarding celi
rhones, and as per the recommendation, we will confer with the IRS regarding the developmeani of 2
pabcy and procedure for verifying the employee’s phone hiliings to confirm that personal calls are nat
baing mads or received,

BT
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Finding No. 16 — Beview of Charter Schoals

The District is reviewing its procedures for monitoring and reviewing documentation of key charter
school processes, with specific attention to each charler school’s insurance coverage. [n the fuiire,
the process will be more effective i ensuring all required insurance is met,

Finding No.17 = Architect insurance

District procedures carried out by the Office of the School Board Architect requite architectural firms to
provide professional Habifity insurance of 310, A checklist will be developed to ensure that each item
necessary io be completed will not be overlooked. This list will ba menitorad by the managar of
design or his designee. This action will decrease the risk and provide adequate protection to the
District from potential losses.

Finding Mo, 18 - Information Technology — User Application Access Condrols

Pineflas County Schools (PCE) will institute periodic review of accounts that are inactive, have change
of work assignment, andfor have change of other status for careful review. The Director of User
Support & Core Systems will also do spot checks of 20 random accounts quarterly to verify comect
access levels are assigned for network (Active Directory) and Tems.

tinding Mo. 19 - Information Technology — Sec:ﬁr]m Confrols

FCS is committed to proper and effective security controls and has already taken action on
recommendations and will continee to do s0 where feasible and budget allows. The District recently
instited a 10 minute inactivity workstation lockout that requires users to log back into the network in
order to ensure that staff member's access is not used after leaving 2 workstation unatiended. Qther
specifics about security control measures taken are not pradent fo discuss in this forarm.

Finding No. 20 - Information Technoiogy — Program Change Controls

The current paper process allows for signatures for change and approval from the same person even
though the procedures and training of programmers does not allow this. The District is in the process
of implementing a new online SS5R and change contrdl log. The new onling system will have business
and change management rules built in that will not allow changes to forward without propar approval.

Finding No. 21- Information Technology — Terminated Emplovee Accass

This finding has resulted in the MIS department including access control changes as part of the online
S8R and change contfrol system. All changes fo access to major systems (network (ADY, Terms, and
Student Information System) will be loggad through creation and completion of tickets in this new
system. Supervisors and Principals will be reminded that terminated employees must be reported to
MIS within 24-hours via this anline process. There will also be a report of terminated emplovess
generated by MIS to check to make sure that access has been disahled.

_RR_
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Finding No. 22- Information Technology — Security Awareness Training

Hinelias County Schools MIS has formed a security team to identify thraats and look for solufions.
This team has alse agreed to produce online training and district wide communications abaut Known
threats to sectirity fo raise awareness. In addition to the dynamic set of threats to security, the email
update and the accompanying online training will specify in details specific to PCS systems
unacceptable uses of passwords or accounts,; prevention of vinises; confidential information; and
penalties for nen-compliance, PCS agrees with the Auditor General that awarensssis a key
componant to the success of security measures and is fully committed to rafsing such awarenzss
through increased efforts in this area.

Finding No. 23 - nformation Technology — Disasier Recovery

The Dislrict has beah actively pursuing partnerships o provide a facility for off-site backup and &
connection 1o that facility that will be viabla for the massive amount of data that would need {o be sent.
Although this has been a challenge given recent budgetary constraints, PGS will continue to aftempt
to find a partner that can provide a back-up site for storage of data offsite and abkility to provide for
some continuify of operations should a disaster ocour.

Federal Awards Findings

Finding Mo. 1- Level of Effort Supplament not Supplant

District systems and practices were reviewed following receipt of the Federal Title | monitoring repont
in 2008, resulting in the following imprevemeants and rmodifications to District oversight of the Titls |
oiogram expendiures, :

» A school nurse position is no longer funded by Title | as of the 08-09 fizcal year.

o Plant operators paid with Tile [ funds are responsible for cleaning and maintaining only facilities
that serve the Title | program. Supervisor oversight ensures documeniation o that effect.

« Staff developers paid with Title | funds seive ondy Title | schools. Supervisor oversight ensures
documentation to that effect.

+ Siaff developers paid with District operating funds serve Tile | and non-Title | schools equitzhly.
Supervisar oversight ensures documentation to that effect.

Findina No. 2- Special Tesis and Provisions—Hiahly Qualified Teachers

District systems and practices were reviewed following receipt of the Faderal Title 1 monitoring report
in 2008, resulting in the following improvernent and modification to District oveesight of the Titke |
program expenditures.

 The District identthes and moniters compliance with NCLB HOT requirements for parl-
timedhourly teachers of record delivering core academic Title | services it private schools, using
the same process that is used for monitoring compliance it all other HR areas of the District.
Administrater eversight ensures documentation to that effect.
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Most recent quarterly
report of investment
portfolio available online.

DATE: July 28, 200%,

TO: MEMBERS OF THE SCHOOL BOARD OF PINELLAS COUNTY
FROM:  JULIE M. JANSSEN, ED.D., SUPERINTENDERNT
RE: Reguest Approval of the Investment Parbiolio Financial Statements for the Quarter

Ended March 31, 2009

EATIOMNALE:

Continuing investment activities have a positive impact on interest earnings.
STRATEGIC DIRECTION/GOAL: Effective and Efficient Operations

ALTERMNATIVES:

1. Approve the financial stataments.
2 Do not approve the financial staterments.

RECOMMENDATION:

Altarnative 1 is recommended.

BACKGROUND:

The most recent quartery unaudited financial statements of the Board's investrnent activities
are included herein. The Board’s approval of this approach to investments has resulted in
greater investment income than previously oblainable.  The format inchides comparative
information with respect to earnings padormance. The actual and Pre Forma information are
condensed o facilitale comparisons.

IMPACT STATEMENT:

The Managed Investmant Program (MiP} earnings for the quarter ended March 31, 2009 totaled
a $2.717.,084 after recognizing a market value adjustment of §701,672 {as noted in footnote 2 of
the Quarterly Statements). The State Board of Administralion potential altermative for the
current quarter ended was $1,284,162. For the quarter, the MIP out performed the State Board
of Administration by $1,432,902. The MIP earnings have exceaded the potential State Board of
Administration by $18,796,307 since inception {as noted in footnote 3). The District's MIP
currertly has an unrealized market loss of $6,5683,824. Since the District's policy is to buy and
hold securities, this loss will eventually be refurned as principal is returned, or bonds mature.” If
the Bigtricts bonds were priced at par (100} as of March 31, 2009, the Disinet's cumuolative
return over the SBA would be $25,360.131.

CATA SOURCE:

Lansing K. Johansen, Chief Businass Officer
Andrew 5. Jacobsan, Manager, Cash & Investments
Iovestrment Ovearsight Committes {6/29)

SUBMITTED BY:
Lansing K. Johansen, Chief Business Officer
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Schoo! Board of Pinellas County, Flonda
Managed Investment Portfolio - Asset Value and Income Statement
Unaudited

March 31, 2609

Portfolin Assets

Investment in ULS, Treasury and Agency Securifies:
Tvestments (scourities at market valuge)
The Core Fund
State Board of Adminmstration Furcl 13
Accrued Intevest Receivable and Prepaid Intercst

Towal U8, Treasury and Agency Securities

Cazh Investrnents

G302008

F396,125120
33,449,157
|,546,757
748,391

3433,007 925

5342397220

37,033,850

796,813

$380,227,525

State Board of Administration LGIF 23,169 17,628,769
Money market funds 62,460,337 5,030,045
Rank accounts (DDA & WhA) 2,06 541 166594251
Total Cash nvestments 574544 847 £39.373.065
Tofal Wanaged Investnent Portlolio Waloe F502 202772 $419 600,990
CQuarter Ended Fiscal ¥-T-B Prior Fiacal Year
Fortiolio Tncome 353152009 33120009 &30/ 2008
Net increase’{decrease) in fiie valre of investiments - Note 2 302,692 (53,733,482} S1.052.125
Tntarest Revenue .
.5, Government Securities {inclades Accrucd nterest) 2,099,305 T.B13 368 17,127,347
SEA Trust Pool & hIMFs 67,891 311,214 1,E63 4435
larerast Incomwe from hank accoumts 464,672 210,070 1,143,935
Todal Managsed Investment Portfolio Tneome 12,717,064 $41.801, 105 $20,486, 850
Average Tnvesmaent Value of Managed [nvestment Portfalio B615.116,915 $475,745,857 FO6T 4T 404
Annualized Eate of Return on the Average Managed
Ivestrmend Portlolio - Page 5 1.709% 1.34% 3.07%
Anmalized Pro-Forma Rate of Botum on Average Alternative
Imvestonent in 5134 - Page 5 0.83% L.38% 1.76%
Total Income {from above) $2.717,064 4. 801,105 520,486,330
Prolorma Earnines (SBA alternative - Page 7) 1284162 4916215 £18.391,201
Income abovef{undery SBA alicrnative SE432,002 (51i5,113) FL095.548
The notes on pass 2 aee ar intesral part of this statement,
{ash Manuserment
Ouartecly Keport 09-03 x15m Pupe 1




School Board of Pinellas Counly, Flonda
Managed Investment Portfolio - Notes to Quarterly Statement
Lnaudited

March 31, 2009

Wote 1 - deenzities ¥aduadon - Portfolin at March 37, 2003

Stucling June 30, [997, hevestinends are walised &6 surment rrarkes valoe. Prinr b Avgust 12, 1992 adl cash vwas invested with the 5BA. The
Manzaed nvestment Proaramn (MIF) refars to assers actively managed for groater meeresit and wapital gains ineome, ncinding gome amount: held
at §B.A for proper Bming of investrrenl decisions, Astounts o7 the SBA, banks, and morey markel funds (o Sarreat necds ae rEzmed 1o s
Casch Invesnnents, {fenerelly speaking, Bomds are pocing by vomparige e coupon o ach dond with the eorrespondinge vield cffered tot a
siretilar bond oo the open macker, When the eoupem on 1 hond 15 Fooed and mackst retes rise, the market valee of that bond will fall. When eates
rists, e ke valus will inereass. The markst value of Bands with variahle rates will &od b be 1nore stable since the coupon pervdizlly resets
tn current market rates. Donds with call feateres will tend to have groawr swings in macket value dupending on whether imarket interest rabes
makeg it moms likely, ot Jes Bhely, Gl tbe calf is axerctied. Mortsage-basked donds have schedoled principal payments and unscheduled pre-
prrvienis of prineipal. The merket valoe of thess bonds wikl tend 1o Nuctuate Cnversciy) with markst interast ales, however, s mparket

valuz will Alse fweman depending nn whether prepuymenks of poncipal speed up ar slow down,

Note 2 - Calcolation of Mot increasc{decrease) i Faic value o investnients

The Gevermental Acspuating Standards Brard (GASD) Slalement 3E requizes that a1l Gevermmental enities mast adjost the book valoe

ul their nvestrent seeuritizs to eument markst vale. "he amount of the wljustmenl positive of hegative, il bz added o or sublucted fom
the income [or the reposting period. The coly seaimivics cxerpted from this sdjustment ase: 1) those it Tavs 8 foeed interest rate and a set
mamby duls, a1 purchase, ol one year or less, and 2) those that cannat be reasemably prived and are of insieniticatt vales, lnvestments in
mnoy market funds wre whis exenpt The secutities In the Disticts portfolio 2hat are exempt fom GAST Statement 31, ar deseribed heloar
ANy seenrifics that arc cxempe from CRASH Stelement 31 will coulinue o aposar o the District's honbs at amertieed ot

The Diswrict recaives & marke valuo report fram a third parly vendur sach mosth, On & quancrly basis this rpor s weed Lo galéudate e
emmount of fi market value adjnstment. On Mareh 31, 200% the hook valee of sach securly was comzarcd to the market value. The
differmos far sach seeorily vwas applied ta the ook value 20 the new hook value metched the curesat market valoe, & like adjostment
was mads b invesimenl ircoee [or (he Guarke.

Crrrently most of the Distriets investments meed the noynirement for markes wahie adjustroent. The District also owis, be virviag doemis,
ether securizics that ars excmipt becanse they have Hxed inlerest rules and rwturities, 3t putehase, within one vear. The Distracl's ivesanent in
the ST and modgey warkst fands arc alsa exerpe The table below shows The breakdown of the replized gaing and losses and e ket value

adjustment

Carker Endesd 373 105 Figcal ¥'-T-D 3/531/09 Prior Tigcal Year
Fealized CainsLosses L168,980) - (3504 Be3} 11,370,627
WY Adjustment fur Peried T AT2 1,371.3482 {3,021,4538)
et Inpreased Decssase} m A vulos of investmenots 502,692 (3730 AB2) {9,404, 560

Mute 3 - Comalative Reloro Over (he SBEA

For the % rromths srding 373709, fhe MEP, incloding e GASD 31 adjustment, bad & retum oader the Stete Doard of Admanisieation's (5B &)
Itvestment pocl o $113,171, Sinae Avguost 1992 the BAUP has had o cauadfative reom ovet the $RA'S fnvestment pool of 518, T96307.

The method o comparizon to the 384 used in Tecomber and March has been vhanged. Far the prier tawo quartees, the macket valwe adjustisei
tox thee 384 Fund B aceounte was taken e considerarion, For 1ecomber we huve excluded Ust adinstrenc and restated she curmulutive
comnpanisan figure for the Decemnber and hdorch quarters. The adinstmeat, for e [evember snd Barch gueickers, to the Cfm over the S84 was
a negative F10,180, 71468,

Mate 4 - Fffeet of Unrealized Guios/Losses oo Income

The Districts MIP comently has zn unresbiosd market loss of (36,563,824). Dus to GASR Statercent 31, the effects of this lo2s Iag beon
relied eeainst interest income, Since the [ismices pelicy @ W buy and hold secweities, this loss witl eventosily be retumed &5 principal 8
returnest, ar boends mamge, 1l the Disgric's honds ware priced t pac {10073 s of harch 31, 200% the Digimict's cumulative tetam over e
SBEA wonld he $25 360,131,

Wote 3 - Ratings 05 Mortease Bicked 3ecovites (MB4s) and Collateralieed Modgage Oblizatons (Ch ()
MBS and Cadf) bomds ewmed by the districr ave por rated T 2y racing ageney. Howeser, dies ot Rret Tt these honds are ool ladery lized
ar otherwize backed foe the tmderclymg mortzegs sarinise, these boads are treated ag if oy ware AAA uled boods.

Mate & - Prior period adjustments
A combinatian of cotry eron and "hums” in the sollware wead Lo tack the portfolio have crose minor reporting srmors b previous quattsthy
meports. These arroes arc being comeeicd on thiz repore Hefer o Quarlerly Report reconcifiations tor desail

Ca:d harapemen?
Qeartssly Report (203, x1sm Page 2



School Board of Pinellas County, Florida
Managed Investment Porttolio - Total Investment Value

Unaudited
March 31, 2009
Prepaid & Total
TTreealized Avcrued [narasterenT »od.
Seonnity Description Gook Value  Market Valne - GainTLoss Tnlerest Yalue Lax Do
_

Money Market Fortfolia - F27N%
{lancord Mmutemen Caratal CF 19,994 067 19,954 6a7 ] [ S15,uad 08T Al 0.0
Concord Mmuwemen Cazila CF 24 053917 24068917 0 i 524 06g 91T A 0.1s |
TFountan Squere CF 14 993 519 14 289,515 (S0 [ 514089315 A 0.1z
Tountais Square O 24,849,037 24 09 03T 0 0 534,949 017 LY Nn.14
FHLE 2.25% 23,191,565 23,191,643 1] 257505 23448977 AAm DSE
FHLE 2.635% 14,041 801 10,041,501 0 BNUAZ 10172435 aAsaa 027
FHLAC 9.9 (% L3, 000000 43,000 G0 il Bl L2 09 540 AAA 0.8a

sl ETRG, 130,004 F165, 134508 EIU0; Ga32gw0 160,367,300 ]
Federzl Agency Dehentores - 1.2T%:
FHLE &.%3% &,043 281 &,062 585 21,306 BT76S 40,130,330 AAL 027

subalal 58,045 281 o002 5638 ) S67,7483 34,130,350 nxr
Coerporate ABS - 18.32%
Audlvanta Bus, Cand Trust Gh-43 A3 264, THG 4142012 [LL2,370 10,186 2H133000  AA .20
Amgricredic Ausy Trust O0-AF A3 2,609,713 34809713 0 13,5896 130230608 AssF (119
ERW Voh, Leass Trwst 07-1 474 654,043 H50283 a2 1,345 FO52,351  AAA 0.0
Capitel Auko Bee, Trosl 07-882 A2 SAG3I TS 5A30083 (33,792 3,273 35433558 AAA 0.o7
Capital Ooe Aot Tewst 96-C A3A 314134 TARR AL (30,525 3418 3E4R3730  BBE n.23
Capirgl Ooe Auto Trsta7-4 A3 1,235,970 1.239,145 [26,825; 2935 1292079 A n.o7y
OPS Autn Trust 07-0 A2 547,534 20542 (5890) 1,309 ¥332250  AAA 0.08
Lthermemz Saoppes Trust 04-1a A 1,934 734 [.934 740 I TRE 3055538 Aan 0.3l
Daimlec-Chr, Aute Trusl 07-A ASA 32,744 826 32112 H50 [G31,770) 106,213 32219065 AAA 0.93
L Dealer Flooepian Touse 361 A 4 919,090 A48T 500 53,310 0z 4973515 AAA n.03
GE Dealer Fioorpian Tt 06-3 A 3815785 3,712,575 (la2 310y T35 FRN3IT0E AAA .13
Fouschold Auty Trost 05-3 Al 1,264,544 1,268,571 727 2,363 $1,767534  AAA D0F
Mot £l Stedemr Lo Trust 072 A 21,768,113 19,355 446 {2,182 067 T,420 819,547 888 AAN 0.ac
Tusguise Casd Becked Sec 06-1A A 1,355,593 [.556,532 [ 403 35,356905  AAAN 0.12
Tumqoise Comd Boched Sec 07-1 A 1,212,423 [212,637 4 343 F1212R72  AAA 0.0
LTPFC Avte TrazgO7-B A2 a, 102 257 004,135 (3, 122% 153752 240,100, KR A LIRS
Wollepaagen A Trust (7-1 A3 213072 £13.47% 407 33 F13,817  AAA 0.1z
warld Fin Coodit Card ot 044 A 1,188,305 1,195,220 4T 3493 33,1935813 AAN 0.2

subiolal FAL Q1R G2 Fu2a3.230 [ EN RS =) F1e0 035 5231102495 n.4ar
Cash Manasement
Cuarlerly Beporl 08-03 xlz0 FPage 3



School Board of Pinellas County, Flonda
Managed Investment Portfolio - Total Investment Value

Unaudited
March 31, 2009
Prepaid & Toml
) Unrzalized Acemed Invostroent Mol
Security Description Book Value  Marksl Value {ain/Lass interest Valuc Rig T,

Federal Agerey MBS UCMEs - 3.09%
FHE 3531& £L AHG02 £7,121 19 308 5e74I0 AAA 0.0
PR 2312 71 £25 280 424 350 1M 1,450 Fa425347  Aaa O
FIM 2386 PH A4 20 4241755 (32 155] 15,473 54255408 Aah 049
FHR 2593 GE 1,084 533 LAESET 33,062 3530 51525547 AAN 0 OB
FHE Z8495 KT T3.235 04,5351 1,295 2200 Fron 21 AAA 1.51
FAW 0401 144 £ (1540 4,103 453 31483 18,383 SII11RET AAA 04T
KIEEW S ) 4005519 4 302122 [15.697) Lk B4.590.085  AaA 540

rubitntal 13,382,361 FAEEEELT S71,0:8 e AT FL5700245R 1.93
Federal Agency FR MBS (3{)s - 22711
FHR 3297 FB 4,321,638 45185 552 {126,005 L5l 24007151 AAA 1M
FHE 3344 FU L1,713,0%8 11 5400005 226,007 4 864 FILMAREE AL 164
FAR OT-13FA 6.980,5334 713206 (267,641 gl 56,714,318 Aah 203
PR O7-86 FY 4,830,982 4,735,152 104,331 40 84756500 AAA 1.
FMR (77-35 BF 3T,535260 36,770,412 (754,358 4300 FIS7TEEIT AAA 144
CiNR O7-55% PF T2e230 PRIk £2:40,236) 1,587 STAIIATY  AAA 1.35
R GBS0 LF 9685212 9420215 (272597 a8 SN423590 AAA L3
GHE GE-52 PF 14,327 953 13845131 (37T AT 4,356 F13.040 487  Aah L&d
GMT GE-4T EBF 21093517 AT 5 (420,363 11,3435 204878800 ANA .74

subtosal TR aER ARG E[TEITR A5 H2.334.357) S3E30T 0 RLLS,305,710 T3T
Cash, MMFs, & Investoent Pials - 21.91%
Margan Stanley MMF 3,000,752 1000, T2 [ 1] FILO00TEL  AAdm  GOD
The Cors Fund 35,735,12% 33,449,157 R ] 55440037 AAAr 009
Bemik Accts (DDA & MBAY L3051 34 a3 0 0 F12,061,301 (.01
504 Fund B8 2262793 15346757 (21a,03a) n %1,346,757 2.0
i LGP 23,168 25,168 n i 523389 Aasdm Q0
Cuztody MMF F1AFRETE 31,458,373 il I FILASSET: Asa G0

suiplotit pllznes 70k Lol S40.060] TR I3 O0E) E I AN [
Managed Tvesmoent Trogram 2’651.4,{)2‘?,?“:? S50T 65,551 R S0 24 FT4E 421 3305212771 BRI
Uneealicsed GainLoss as a peccent of tarzl mafket valee: ST
* Zrting agency hag Tlaced security on downgreds wetch.
Cash Mansgement
Cuasterhy Repact G403 xlam Page 4



School Board of Pinellas County, Florida _
Managed Investment Portfolio - MIP vs. Proforima Rate of Return Comparison

Unaudited
March 31, 2009
(Quarter ~ Fiscal Prior
Ending Y-T-D Fiscal Year
35312009 3/31/2009 6/30/2008
Averﬂga Tnvestment . 565,186,015 547,749,857 __ 2867,471,404
Annualized Rate of Return Calculation
Met Inereass/{Decrease) in bair value of investenents 2692 (3733487 1.052,125
Intercst Barned:
Crollsoled: .
Securities 2,059 504 7.413,301 17,127,347
S13A Trast Pool & MMFs 67 84 311214 1,163,443
income trom Sweep to MMF - Demand Aves 46,672 20070 1,143,935
Teotal Tnterest Earned ’ §2214372 58,534,588 19,434,724
Total Managed Investment Portfolio Earnings L2 717 064 54,801,105 $20,486,850
Annvolized Rate Of Return 1.79%, 1.34% 3.07%
Proforma Investment in SBA
Proforma Intercst Earnings:
Perind Accumalation 3,632,054 18,393,201
1/31/20059 423,167 423,167 _ n
HIR2O00 448277 448,277 1]
/312009 412,71% 4t2718 n
Foral Proforma SBA Inlerest Earning’s 51284 162 54916216 £18,391,201
Proforma Annualized Rote Of Return 0.85% 1.38% 2.76%

Cash Banagement
Qzarterty Reoorl 0903 xlsm Puge 3



School Board of Pincllas County, Flonda
Managed Investment Portfolio - Risk Disclosures

Unaudited
March 31, 2009
Credil Risk
Market ¥alue Average Rating

Corporate Conomersiaf Papor 84,901,335 Al
Apency Fived Conpon Debemiies S8T.295.T53 AAS
Corporabs Agset Backed Seouriiies 563,943 230 AAA
MOE CHI0s S11.061 2066 AR
MBS Floating Rare 5617710146 AAA
Irvestment Poals & Yiks 5105 Do, D0E AMAM
Eaymypt Tnveslmenls 533,646.613
Won-cemplisar [ovestmrent 31346, 737

Totals -~ ’ 5307463 831

Beewrities In the Exemet category inchude U8, Government obligations and obligations wath an explicit TL5. Covernmeant guarantee.

Ths nom-geroplianl calegory consists of The disncrs mvesoment in SBA Fund B zceoures. This investment is fiozen by the 3BA, Tunds

arz distribited as they matnre. The distrier's Funds Mapagement Policy (7-24) permils fovestments n LS povectmtent and US government
gnarznleed homls, Federal apzncy {Oivvermment Sponsored Enterprize, 5E) bonds, bonds collaterafized with hand assebs, and sharl-lerm,
money market investments. The district bas $%2.943,230 in corporbe assel-hacked securies. The ceedit enhaneatnents, short durstion,

and, for the tansl pact kigh, eatings of thass boads demonstrate the safery and liquidity of these Bopds, Whils Faur of these bonds do sl Bave
the higkest rating, the cxdremcly short dombon (averags oF 017 years) ol these bands wake i highly likaly they will pay of in full,

Concentration of Credit Risk

Yszper Fercent of Total [ssner Full Name

Exempt L 3EEm

L OO L) ¥

CMSERA R 8.35% Colonial Minutemen CP
FOUNSQ 7T g Foungin Square CP
FHLE TE%

L?FEAIEU'DD?—E; T 632% Daimlar=Chryaler Avmo Tms:

Szcurities exempt from Concontration of Credit Risk diselosure includs U5, Government oblisalions and oblipations with an explicit L&,
Clwermment guarantes, in addirian, external investmant pools and MMF investments are also cxempted, The districels Tends hfanarsment
Policy permis investmeents in 8 zovemmicat and US government guarmniesd bomds, Federl aseney (Govertunest Sponsorsd Enterprisz,
GST) hands, honds callateralized with haed assets, and short-tarm, moey market ievestments, For this rewon, the Tnvestmeat Polisy
does not scparately address conconitation of eredit sk, The MWanuger, Cash & Investments I8 allowed to invest wo 3% of the toral
moriloliy value i bonds thar an: not oterwiss permmed nrder the Funds Managowcer Policy, The congoniration rigk ol these
invesmoents fs 5%,

{ash Marsgemant
Liearterty Roport 29-03 xlsm Pooo b



School Board of Pincllas County, Florida
Managed Investment Portfolio - Risk Disclosures

Unaudited
March 31, 2009
Interest Rate Risk

Clateeary larket Valug Dol Dy,
Lopomte ABS 4230 0.40
DL A6,74L939 012
Foderal Ageney FRMBS CMOw 1532809 ST
Federal Ageney MBSCMOs 13633389 195
TovestmentPool e, A0TFEOLE 000
Pordtiolio 30T A63 58 n.a3

‘Tha distriet's Funds Managemant Policy vequires the average duration of the portfotio to be loss than five voerns,

Modifted Duration
Wedifed furulion ol a seeurly exprasses The amounl o tme o years uedl Be principal & reteened. This calcwlation takes ino zecourt the

coUpnn rane, iterost and pringipal pevooent stoqueney, cail options, and scositivity of price to changes o mierest rafes. Teebyrs thal extend
The retum ol peineipal, oc make it aore (me cncerlain, increase the dozation, Factors that quicken the retarn of principal, or meke Tt more
Hrae eertain. deerease the duration. Dwmation will alse changs a3 the lewel of inderest rates m the seomomy vise und @i, Wik the currend Tevel
ul interest rates, the abova table indicatzs that the disteict will reeeive 00 of invested principal in 063 vears, or 7.30 mooths,

- Nipating/Adjustable loterest ltate Risk )
The dismiet commently Tas 5 154,927,602 invested 0 seeurites with Foaling or slhustable misresl rale sk, $133,927,693 9 invested i foating
ratz doads. Fhe coupon on thess bonds resets montily based on an index e, The coupoens on thess bonds range fron: 0.56% 1o 1.34%.

Call (ption sk .

Thore gy thres fypes of call options, "ona-nme" aally, "disersts" catly and "epatinopus” calls. Thase aee listed i order af increasing sk, A
one-time ol means that ot one specified rime before maturity the issner of'a bond bas the oprion to call the bond, or buy it back from
vy, A diserete call means that al specife Bmes, wiually silker quarerly or semi-annually, Befire maiarty, the issuer can el the bond.
A eontionous eall means that swrtine at a specified poinr in time, wsvafty an intercst pevmenrt date, and at any time thereafter, up i the
moiburity clabe, $he ot cen call the boad. '

CerrendTy the district has £54.062 588 invested nocallable bonds. $48 000,000 of these bonds have a one tise cail on W1309. The remaining
56 0602 548 has a coutinuons call starting on 7/%09.

MBES Frepoayment Kislo

There ars bwe Bpes 0f Morhmes-Packes] Secoersiies (MBS m which the disioel invests. Apency ponts dre colivetions of moctzagses in which
the irvestor tecelves the principal and interezt pavmeniz io the same proportion as the hemcownsr pavs theoe, C3A0 bonds are backed b
mertgaess, however, the principal paedoswn of the bomd fues Been altered L be either more o less Gme cartain than the undetlyiog motoages.

E{BSs have 3 uniess type of "eall” rigk, in that homeowners mioe apt to prepay their marlmere ol any time. While thess ane many e
which determine wherther a hotseowner will prepay their mortgzes, one of the most signiffeant is the level of intezes rates, When mites fall it iz

mere advantagoous to the homeowner o wefmanes their motasgs te g lowsr mats. When rales ase, this epe ol prepaymeaet will decnease.

Thi distriet's CVO bosds tangz n Jurativs [tom Q years o 5.4 yearsy.

Cash blanagement
Cuartersy Repoct 0903 x3sm Tage 7



Pineilas'County Schools:
Funds Management Policy

Supplement No. 40, Apeil 2007 CHAPTER Y
7.24

7.24d MANAGEMENT OF SCHOOL BOARD FUNDS

(1) AUTHORITY

The Superintendent (or designee) s authonized {o make transfers from financial institution to
financial institution or within a financial institution for the purpose of investing or divesting
School Board funds. For the purposes of this policy, the term “financial institutton™ has the same
definition of Section 280.02{13) 1.5,

The Manager, Cash & Investiments, under the supervision of the Chief Business Officer, is
appointed as designee of the Superintendent and is suthorized and empowered for and on behalf
of the School Board of Pinellas County, Florida. to a) conduct investment transactions in
accounts at financial instinutions as provided under subparagraph (11} "Authorized Investment
Institutions and Dealers,” and b} conduct other banking/financial fransactions in Fnancial
institutions designated as Qualified Public Depositories under Scetion 280.02(24) I'.5. Accounts
at said instilutions shall be cstablished by two signatures of the Chief Business Officer, Assistant
Superintendent, Finance and Business Services or Director, Accounting.

fa) Investment Transactions. The Manager, Cash & Investmeants, under the supervision of the
Chief Business Officer, shall have the authority, under the conditions set forth hereln, to make
individual investment deeisions and to direct the Third Party Custodian o acl on said decisions,
consistent with this policy.

(b) Banking/Financial Transactions. The Manager, Cash & Investments, under the supervision
of the Chict Business Officer, shall have the authority, under the conditions set forth herein, to
establish services and execute transactions to, from, and between established School Board
accounts, consistent with this pelicy.

(¢) Facsimile Signatures. The Manager, Cash & Tnvestments. under the supervision of the Chief
Business OTeer, shaill be desienated, under the conditions set forth herein, as the custodian of
the facsimile signatures of the Superintendent and Chairman of the School Board. As custodian,
ilte Manager, Cash & Investments will oversee the creation of any device or mechanism to apply
said facsimile signatures to warrants drawn ont School Board accounts.

Appropriate fidelity bonding will be maintained by the School Board to cover the Manager, Cash
& Investments, the Chief Business Officer, and other desigmated staft members who are in any
way involved in the movement of School Board funds from one financial institution account to
another. ' '

(2) SCOPE

The invesiment policy shall apply to all funds held or controlled by the School Board of Pingllas
County, Florida.

(3) INVESTMENT OVERSIGAT COMMITTEE

The Superintendent shall establish an investment oversight commitiee whose members shall be.
comprised of a minimum of six individuals, three of whom shall be School Board personnel and
three non-School Board personnel with relevant financial expertise. The Manager, Cash &
Irrvestments, shall serve as an ex-officio resource to (he Investment oversizht committes, The
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Supplement No. 40, Apeil 2007 CHAFPTERY
7.24

invesiment oversight committee will meet at least quarterly to formulate and review {he control
procedures amnd investment performance criteria as set forth in this policy.

{4} INVESTMENT OBYECTIVES

The investment objectives of the School Beard of Pinellas County, Florida, arce safety of capital,
liquidity of funds, and investrment income, in that ovder.

{(5) PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT

The performance measurcment objective of the School Board's imvestment porticlio shall be to
excead the State Board of Administration's L.ocal Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund’s yield.

(6) FRUDENT AND ETHICAL STANDARDS

The Manager, Cash & Investments, under the supervision of the Chief Business Officer, shall
adopt and be guided by the "Prudent Person Rule,” which states thal, "Investments should be
made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence,
diseretion, and Inlslhgence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation,
but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income
to be dertved from the investment." The "Prudent Person Rule™ shall be applied in the context of
managing School Board funds.

(7Y AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS
The Manager, Cash & Tnvestments, under the supervision of the Chief Business OfMicer shall be
empowered to Invest Sehool Board funds in:

{a} The Statc Board of Administration’s Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund or any
intergovernmental investment pool authorized pursuant 1o the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act
as provided in section 163.01 .5,

(k) Securitics and Exchange Coramission registered money market funds with the highest
credit guality tating [Tom a nationally recognized raling agency.

{¢) Interest-bearing 1ime deposils or savings accoents in Qualified Public Depositories as
defined in section 280.002{26) I'.5.

{d) Direct obligations of the United States Treasury.

{e) Obligations of federal agencies, Government Sponsored Enterprises, and instrimnentalities.

(f} Sccurities of, or other interest in, any open-end or closed-end management fype investment
company or mvestment trust registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, 15 U.S.C.
55 B0a-1 ot seq., as amended from time fo time, provided the investment objectives of said
investment company of investment trist are similar to the investment objectives of this Policy.

{2} Shortterm obligations commonly referred to as “moncy market instruments™, including,
but not limited to commercial paper, provided such obligations carry the highest credit rating
from a nationally Tecogmized raling agency.
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Supplement No. 40, April 2007 CHAPTER T
7.24

{h) Asset-backed securities are permitted when either a} the underlying asset 1s guarantead by
the issuer, or b} the security carries the highest quality rating by a nationatly recogmzed rating
AgeNCy. _

Investment instruments will have the highest quality as rated by a nationally recognized rating
agency at the time of purchase. If the rating of an investment should be downgraded o less than
highest quality rating, the Manager, Cash & Investments, in consultation with the Investment
Ovemsight Committes, will decide whether the investment will be sold or retained. Mortgage-
backed investments that do not carry an investment rating are permitted when the issuer [alls
under paragraph {d} or () above.

The Manager, Cash & Investments, In consultation with the Investment Oversight Committes,
shall have the discretion to invest in securittes that do not fall under the above catcpories,
provided the invested value of these securities does not excesd 5% of the total value of School
Board Funds, on the setifement dale of said invesiment. Such securities mmst not otherwise be
prohibited by State Stanute or this Policy.

Investment of Schoot Board funds shall be made 1) so as to provide sufficient liquidity to meet
the obligations of the School Board as they come due and 2} In accordance with the investment
objectives fisted in subparagraph (4) of this Policy. The Manager, Cash & Investmenis will
comply with the “Prudent Porson Rule™ as ouilined in subparagraph (8) of this Policy when
evaluating investments For addition to the managed investment portfolio, particulacly with regard
to maturity, liquidity, risk, diversification, security type, and issuer.

(%) MATLRITY AND LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS

The maturity and liquidity characteristics of the investments in the School Board’s managed
investment portfvlio shall be struciured to provide sofficient liquidity to meet obligations of the
School Board in a timely manner. The weighted average "duration” of the investment porllolio
shall not excced five years. The maturity and liquidity characteristics of the Managed
Investment Portfolio as a2 whele and of each individual security, shall be in accordance with
subparagraphs (4) and (6} of this Policy.

(%) PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION

Ihe composition of the School Board's managed investment portfolio, with tegard lo sccurity
lype, issuer and maturity, shall be diversificd so as to 1) provide sufficient liquidity to meet
obligations of the School Board in a timely manner and 2) comply with subparagraphs (4) and
{6) of thiz Policy.

(10) RISK AND DIVERSIFICATION

The rigsk and diversification characteristics of the investrnents in the School Board’s managed
investment portfolio shall be structured so as to 1) provide sufficient liquidity to meet obligations
of the School Board in a timely manner and 2) comply with subparasraphs (4) and (6) of this
Policy. Investment strategies, including risk and diversification goals, shall be reviewed and
revised periodically by the Invesiment Oversight Committee and incorporated into this policy as
appropriate.
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{([1y AUTHORIZED INVESTMENT INSTITUTIONS AND DEALERS

{2) Any broker or dealer desiring to conduct securities transactions with the School Board
shall be required to submit a written esponse 1o the School Board's broker/dealer questionnaire.
The Manager, Cash & Investments shall be responsible for reviewing such requests and
determining whether the requesting firm is qualified to conduct securities transactions with the
School Board. In addition to the broker/dealer questionnaire, the Manager, Cash & Investments
may also usc other publicly available information necessary to cvaluate the qualifications of the
applicant.

{£) The Manager, Cash & Investments shall maintain an Approved Broker List of those firms:
that have been reviewed and desmed qualified o conduct securities transactions with the Schook
Board. The Invesiment Oversight Committes will periodically review the list and recommend
chanees if appropriate. The Manager, Cash & Investments, shall be authorized to conduct
securitics fransactions. in an established School Board account, with any firm on the list of
qualified firms.

(12) THIRD PARTY CUSTOIMMAL AGREEMENTS

Sccurities purchased, or otherwise acquired by the School Board shall be properly designated as
am assel of the School Board of Pinellas County, Florida and held in safe-keeping by a third party
custodian. Said custodian shall issue trust reeeipts for all purchases and sales of securities in the
School Board’s custody account. Securities held in safekeeping shall not be withdrawn, in whole
or in part, excepl by the Manager, Cash & Investments, under the supervision of the Chiel
Business Cfficer.

The School Board shall execute a third parly custodial agreement with a bank or other depository
mstitution, [or the purpose of: '

{a) Establishing a sccurities eustody account in which securitics are deposited and held by the
custodian,

(b) Establishing the custodian as agent for the School Board when settling purchases and sales
ol securitics using the delivery versus payment method.

(¢} Empowering the custodian to inspect all securiiies delivered to the account and 1o verify
the description, negotiability and good delivery form prior to payment.

{d) Collecting and crediting Inierest and dividend payments to the School Board’s security
aceount dug on securities held in the account as of the payable date.

{€) Acling on the School Board’s behalf in the redemption of all matured and called securitics
and crediting such proceeds n the custody aceount as recetved.

{f) Establishing a mechenism for the wire transfer of temporarily idle funds held in the
securily account to School Board accounts at other fAinancial instifutions,

{¢} Establishing a mechanism of transmitting and recclving instructions via the Cuslodian,
Securities Broker, and the School Board. :

{h) Establishing the use of trust receipts as docwmentation for all securitics transactions
through the Depository Trust Company's Institutional Delivery System, the financial mstitution's
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Federal Reserve Account or a designated {inancial institution which has a comespondent
relationship to the School Board™s third party custodizan.

{1} Providing the School Board a detailed transaction statement indicating all cash entries to
the security account, beginning and ending principal balances, and beginning and ending income
balances for the period.

(1} Providing the School Board {month]}; and upon request) an asset statement indicaling
description, par value, book and market value of all securities held in the account.

{13) MASTER REPURCHASE ACREEMENT

The Manager, Cash & Investments, under the supervision of the Chief Business Officer, shall be
required 0 have a fully executed master repurchase agreement from all approved banking
instititions and securities dealers’ transacting repurchase agresments. All repurchase agreement
transactions shall adhere to the requirements of the master repurchase agreement,

{14) BID REQUIREMENT

When appropriate, feasible and practicable, the purchase and sale of investment securitics shal
be competitively bid. Documentation will be retained for all bids, with the winning bid clearly
identified.

{(I5) INTERN AL CONTROLS

The following internal controls shall be implemented to prevent loss of funds from fraud,
employee ctror, misrepresemation by third parties, ot imprudent actions by School Board
employees.

{a} School Beard accounls at {inancial institutions can only be opened and closed on two
signaturcs of the Chief Rusiness Officer, Assistant Supcrintendent, Finance and Business
Services or the Dircctor, Accounting. The Manager, Cash & Investments is prohibited from
opening or closing Schoel Board accounts.

{b) Transactions in, from and between School Board accounts can only be execuled by the
Manager, Cash & Investments, or hisfher backup.

{) The School Board shall receive two copies of all transaction confirmations and investment
account statements. One copy will be sent to the Manager, Cash & Investments and retained in
ilie cash management department files. The second copy will be sent under separate cover to the
Chief Business Dfficer. The Chict Business Officer will review the confirmations and
statements, initial them and retum them to the Manager, Cash & Investments for retention in the
cash managemeni department filcs. '

{d) When the Manager, Cash & Investments completes a wade with a broker, the broker will
immediately send the trade details to both the Manager, Cash & Investments and the School
Board custodian.

{e} On a monthly basis, the staff accountant will reconcile all School Board money market
accounts and the custodial account, the Manager, Cash & Investments will review the
reconciliations and the Chicf Business Officer will review and approve them. All three
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individuals will sign the cover page and the document will be placed in the cash management
bles.

(D) In addition to the amonual audil of the School Board there will be a separate audit of the
managed investment program. This audit is presented to the Investment Oversight Committes
and is available for School Board teview.

{¢) The Manager, Cash & Investments reports to the investment oversight committee ex
officio. The committee reviews the investment activilies of the Manager, Cash & [nvestments
for compliance with this policy and the “Prudent Person Rule™,

(16) CONTINUING EDUCATION

The Manager, Cash & Tnvestments shall complete cight {8} hours annwvally of continuing
cducation classes in subjects or courses of study related to cash management and/otr investment
praciices and products.

(ITYINVESTMENT PERFORMANCE AND REPORTING

The investment portfolic's performance shall be reported to the Investment Oversight Committee
through a set of reports, the contents of which are deseribed below, on a quarterly basis. Said
reports shall also be presented o the School Board at a regularly scheduled School Board
meeting. Reports shall inchude the following:

{a) Asset Value and Income Statement for the cwrrent quarter, [scal vear-to-date, and prior
{iscal vear. :

{b} Nates 1o Value and Income Statement.

{c} Period ending portfolio statement inclusive of security type and description, book value,

market value, book value versus market value comparison, prepaid and accrved interest 1o date,
and the total value of cach security as well as the total value of all securities.

{d} Management Investment Program Income and Rate of Return Statemernt for the currend
quarter, fiscal year-to-date, and prior fiscal year.

{€) Pro forma Income and Rate of Retum Siatement for the alternative Siate Board of
Administration investment for the corrent quarter, fiscal year-to-date, and prior fiscal year.

{fy Any other reports the investment oversight committee or School Board deems nccessary. as
well as those required by regulatory agencies.
(18} SALE OF SECURITIES
When the School Board invested Funds are needed in whole or part for the purposes originally
intended or for mose optimal investments, the Manager, Cash & Invesimenis may scll such
investments at the then prevailing market prices and place the procesds into the proper School
Board account or fund.

(19) REVERSE REFURCHASE AGREEMENTS

The School Board may enter into a reverse repurchase agreement with any firm on the list of
qualified firms as defined in subparagraph {11} of this Policy or a Qualified Public Depository as
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defined under section 280.02(26), F.S., not for the purposes of increase leverage, bur for
legitimate [unds management purposes only. The use of reverse repurchase agreemenis shail be
limited to transactions in which the proceeds are intended to be used for liguidity and for which
the School Board staff has sufficien! resources and expertise to manage.

{20) ELECTRONIC TRANSFER OF FUNDS

School Board funds may be moved into, out of, and between any School Board account by
electronic means, including Fedwire, ACI], or any other method as may be developed and put
into practice by financial institutions for the purposcs of transferring money between aceounts or
between [inanciat institutions.  Movement of School Board funds by electronic means shall

comply with Chapter 668, F.5.

School Board funds shall only be clectronically transferred for the following reasons:
{2) payment of legitimate oblirations incurred in the course of School Board business,
() receipt of School Board revenue from local, State, and Federsl sources,

{c) settlement of investment transactions, ¢.z. purchases, saies, or principal and interest
distrbutions, :
{d) tramsfers between School Board accounts as needed for legitimate funds management
activities,
The Manager, Cash & Investments, or histher backup, will execute electrontc transfers of funds
throuzh qualified financial instrfutions as defined in scction (1) of this Policy. The Manager,

Cash & Investments shall properly account for such transactions in the School Board’s general
ledzer system.

(ay Fedwires

a. Fedwires between School Board accounts can be Initiated and approved by the
Manager, Cash & Tnvestments.

b. Repehitive templates of Fedwire instructions to non-School Board accounis
shall be established by a School Board employee, who is not a member of the
Cash Managemen!- Department, using software provided by the School
Board’s fimancial institution, The Manager, Cash & [nvestments shall be
prohibited from altering such repetitive templates.

¢. Fedwires to non-School Board accounts can be initiated and approved by the
Manager, Cash & Tnvestments, provided repetitive templates, as established in
paragraph b. gbove, arc used.
{b) ACH teansactions .

a. Authorized Schoo! Board vendors will be paid oaly via ACH Credit
transactions.  An ACH (Credit transaction is where meney s sent from a
School Board account to the School Board vendors appropriate bank account.
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b. ACH Debit transactions are prohibited. unless the counterparty. to the
transaction is another governmental entity. An ACH Dcbit transaction
is where money is retrigved from a2 School Board account by the
counterparty”s financal imstitation.

¢. Authorized School Board vendors to be paid via ACH will be setup to
receive such payments in the School Board's general ledger system by
Accounting Department personnel,

d. Payment of cmployees wages via Direct Deposit will comply with
procedures established by the Payroll Department.

{c} Other Electronic Funds Transfer transaction types
Other electronic funds transfer transactions, throngh either an established

method or any method that may be developed in the future, are permitted, so long
as% such iramsactions are structered so that School Board funds may not be
transferred to non-Schoal Beard accounts at the sole discretion of the Manager,
Cash & Investments. lnstructions to transfer funds electronically, to non-3chool
Board accounts, shall be established by a School Board emplovee who 1s not a
member of the Cash Management Department. Said instructions can then be used
by the Manager, Cash & Investmcnts to excouic an clectronic transfer of funds.

Siaterory Aothority:  1001.32(2), 100141, 1001.42, 100143 F.5.

Laws lmplemented: 16301, Chapter 668 1010,11 ¥ 5.

Investmrent Company Act of 2344, 15 TLS.C, sa. 80a-1 ot seq,
History: Now 117715 Rewvised 1271874, Amended 7722092 (Tmemeney), RI26/92, &117/93, 1171545, 416902,
410/07
Mote: Formearly 60x32-E 10 (changed /35980
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Tiny Miami-Dade city in the bay still exists -- at
least on paper

JOE MOZINGD
The Miami Herzld
Punlished Monday, Februgny 24, 2003

[SLANDIA — Despite offical muteerings of its death, the smallest city in Flerida dings te life -~ frail, scormed and half-
submerged in the idescent shaliwes of Biscayne Bay.,

But you could excuse those who couldn fing 2 pulse.

Istandia -- 33 specks of lang just north of Ky Larga -- hasy't had an election In a decade or a City Council meeting in
mgre than a year. It has no infrastructure end boasts perhaps five 2dult residents. Jus: the expense of writing up its
annuzt hudeet would cost more than the anneal budges. Aad ity Finance Birector Steve Sibert can't say with
cartainty whather thare i§ 8 mayoer skymnore.

He even hesitates about the Coy tself.
It sl ewists,” Sibart zaid. ™Well, as far as I kKnow.”

Istandia never really breathed life as a fully functioning city, of course. [ncorporated in 1560 with 2lmost no ohe
there, £ w=s more a dream that didn't heppen, 2 nightmare that almaost coourred,

It was a plat-map promise of what could rise from an arthritic finger of limestone in the upper Florida Keys: glass,
steel and concrete salling inte the pale scued clouds over the Gulf Stream, a wonderful, salable vision created &y the
real estate artists whe used the Florida peninsula as a canvas.

But after four decades of oolor and controversy, the grandiose spirit of Eslandiz is gone, even if Miami-Dade Countd's
archipelago oty survives on papes.

The Jast elected “mayar” went bankrupt a decade age and moved to Colorado, where he promptly won the loteny.
The City Cauncil that played pretend gt government for decades ng [noer gets te hold ite ftlegal elecdons, Even the
man whe showed up one day & Bismayne National Park keadguarbers near Hamestead sperting a sidearm 2nd
proclaiming to be the police chief of Islandia is off the payref.

"Leqally, they're st an the books,” said Rip Colvin, an aralyst for the state Joint Legislative Auditing Committee, who
tried unsuceesstully to reach Islandia officiels several times in recent months. "But they're not a fundiicning city.”

Last veat, then-state Rep. Anniz Betancourt figured that the ciby bad mare or less died and triad b wipe ¥ off tha
books, bt found that only the Miami-Dade County Commission could "de-corporate” & city. And 1o one there has
taken up the cause. Dissolution would be just a formality, really.

Islandia has spent its recent years as just a pharom of its former self -- diminishad to a few geunt, privately owned
acras, swallowed by Biscayne Maticnal Park. Mo hope for 8 causewsy connecting i to the mawdand. No harbar, fo
six-lane Eilictt Key Bouleverd, no rez| estate boom, no cash.

Tewre Clerk Wil Murphy runs the city from his law office in Holkwoed. "I can't remember the last mesting," he saic.
Weuld he fight @ mowvement to get rid of Islandia? "1 den't know. I wauldn't have any personal motive to comes: it.”

It is a s=d circumstence for & city with such g Vamoushy - ar infamausly -- colarful past.,



Far She growitg urban centar that Miami was in 1960, having 33 stunningly pristine comal islznds a brrdge—lungm
from ¥ey Biscayne was bound to put a giimmer in buikdars' eves,

The main island, seven-mile-long Bllictt Key, was a gargeous fropical hameaack of hardwoods and brosd-ieaf green —
great mahoganies, gumbo fmbos and native wild tamarinds, entwired it canopies of morning glory aod moan
Aowers.

Submerged in the gin-clear water just beyond fay the northern end of the world's third-largest coral resf,

Perhaps it was because the developers’ plans to change all of this wers =2 audacious — and raised such alarm amans
cehsenvationists — that Ellio Key is almost exaciy the same today, a word away irom the metropslis.

"Leok how beaudful it is out here," said Jorge Acevado, a park service ranger, on a recernt wisit. As he pointed to a
bed of moon flowers, which bloom only in the moonfight, or whipped around to spet & warbler, or lamented the
drizd-out purple bladder of a Portuguese man-of-war, i was claar that his years of work on these islands have net
dubBed his sense of wander.

Islzndia was egtablished an Bed. 6, 1960, by 12 votes of voters in a referendum, in an effort to bulic a causeway
arrpss e bay, Soon, plats for leaary hotels, golf coursss and oceanfront homes loomed over the unpopulated keys.

But conserdationists fought the cauvsoway idea, and the LS. Interior Department started seeking fo purchaze the
islznds. A long batde ensued. At one paint, landowners graded a 120-foot-wide swath down Blliatt Key, which they
said would become a six-lane Hliott Key Bolevaird. Sut Islandia kecame a natichal manument in 1958,

The federal goveratnent bought up mach of the property, and 2|l hopes Tor a caussway died.
The giant cdfearing now clled Spite Highway eventually sprouted Bees again, l2aving only & nice hiking trail.

“he paper city of Istandia lived an. People oould st own and buy property on the tiny Ragged Xeys, just norih of
clliof Key, &nd a few obhers.

Jack Pyms, @ real-estate broker, bought one of the Ragged Keys. He buils a little split-levet clubhaouse on a barge for
his boat club, and was eleced mayor in 1975,

Tt wias 20 enfoyable out there,™ he said. "My Kids ferally orew up on that islznd on woekends."
Anc plans for development were stll in the warks.

Bul the ¢y's uiraveling bhegan one day in 1988, when Islandiz's few voters got together ang decided to elect a
pofice chief, Robert Causey,

Soon after, Causey, sporting a makeshift unifoem and bearing a sidearm on his Bip, showed up one day at Biscayns
Madonal Park

He informed the kead park ranger that he was the newly electad police chief of Islandia and that ke planned to
enforce the law.

Dubioes, the ranger calleg the sate attomey's office, which laenched an investication. By Xanuary 1950, the state
determingd that 2l of Islandiz’s elections wers fllegad because onby landowners were allowed o vote -- not oeople
actually living on the islands.

Pyme, meanwhile, went bankrupt. A bank foreclased an hig jsland, Reooed Key Na, 5, His clubhause an a berge
became infested with worms and sank somewhere off Scidier Key. ¥Within a veer of the state aforney's repart, he
mavied to Coloradn, and wen Ehe state’s $5.3 milfon lotery.
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Benefits from Statewide
Cable and Video Franchise
Reform Remain Uncertain

A presentation to the Joint Legislative
Auditing Committee

Jaresary 11, 2010

Tary Allce Nye, Ph
Chief Eegislative Analyst

Frursda Logisfature Oiioe of Propree Bolicy Analyai & Crverument AccountaBimiy

Conclusions

B 28 companies have received
state franchises

* New companies are gradually
offering more services and the
number of subscribers has
increased siightly
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Conclusions

» Nata needed to assess impact
of statewide franchising on
competition are not available

® The Legislature may wish to
change state law to address
industry reluctance {o provide
data on services and subscribers

¥ltria Legiskiere I0ee of ¥rogrzn Fulior Aalyats & Goverennr Accouctanility 3

Background

¥ Cable television systems
developed in the 1940s

® | ocal governments established
franchise agreements

=To control access to rights of way
»To establish various reguirements

for companies

Flyrida Taglanive Qfice of Rrregsen Policy Analyaia & Groermunenit Arcouniakifity




Background

» Some states are moving to
statewide franchising for cabie
and video services

820 states have passed laws since
2005

»The 2007 Florida Legislature
passed the Consumer Choice Act

Furily Lysbiiore {HGee of Progrem Palioy Analwis & G nimeut mccrueinbilite

Current Structure of Cable and
Video Services Regulation

a | ocal Governmenis

* Franchise agreements terminated
in some areas, continued in others

“|_ocal governments retain
authority for some issues, such
as rights-of-way

Blarda Lenislatare OiTice 0f Poycun: Palicy Analysis & Cowernme| Appantaikiny




Current Regulation

® The new law gives three agencies
responsibilities

" Depariment of State,

= Department of Agricuiture and
Consumer Services, and

= Department of Legal Affairs

Flursda L pgiafarure DTz of Frogram Folicy Analpsts & Ganvrmasssb Ascowababillgy”

Outcomes of Florida’s
- Statewide Franchise Law

5 Ag of July 2009, the Department of
State had issued 26 franchise
certificates, 14 {o existing providers

®* New companies are slowly
expanding services; number of
cable subscribers up slightly

Flerida 1.coidazure 4305 of Program Fafioy Anaboily & thvenment Accounrabif




Outcomes

= | imited reliable information io
assess competition

=Companies are reluctant o
provide information on subscribers

zFranchise documents do not
contain sufficient information

Sterddn Legslatume DT of Presram Puling AHalwis & {mwvecument Acconnrehibty

Local Governments Report
Mixed Outcomes

n Few changes in services, access,
or rates

® Many expressed concerns
regarding inability o address
* Consumer complaints
"PEG channels
Rates

Flurics Lepatacove Didee al Trogram Pelioy Azalypsi & Givennmne Actnenlailioy




i ittle Information Available on
Outcomes of Franchise Reform
in Other States

= | jttle Uniformify among state
franchise laws

= Many have a central process for
granting authority to provide services

s aws differ as to the termination of
existing local franchise agreements

FTuzida Loyiafarure Ofiice of Program Friicy Arslvas & Garerminent Acziuriobiy

Little iInformation Available on
Outcomes of Franchise Reform
in Other States

m No systematic studies of changes
in competition due o new laws

B No information available to
calculate changes in competition

Flordn Legisletne Offies of Froarame Follor Amalysis & Geveniio Acciunbiblie i
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October 2009

Report No. 09-35

Benefits from Statewide Cable and Video
Franchise Reform Remain Uncertain

at a glance

The 2007 Consumer Choice Act provided for a
statewide franchise for cable and video service
providers and ended local govemment authority o
negofiate franchise agreements. Savaral
departments—Siate, Agricutture and Consumer
Services, and Legal Affairs—have responsibiliiss
telated 10 the new law but none has requlatory
authority. As many as 20 siates also passed
statewide franchise laws in recent vears. However,
litle systematic informaticn exists to demonstrate
the effect of these laws.

Since 2007, the Department of State has issued 26
state franchise cerfificates; most certificates wers
issued to existing cable or video service providers.
However, two bamiers prevent a comprehensive
assessment of the afect of these franchises on
compefition for cable and video senvices: provider
reiuctance to share data and insufficient imformaticn
provided in stafewide franchise documenis. In light
of these difficuliies, the Legislature may wish 1o
consider amending s. 618.119(1), Aords Shfres,
o modify study requirements or make changes that
might lessen the industry concems regarding a
required December 2074 foliow-up study on cable
and video services compeition.

Scope

As directed by the Legislature, QPPAGA
reviewed the current regulatory structure for
cable and widen services provided by
traditiomal  cable and  telecomununications
companies.”  The report addresses three
questions.

1. What is the corrent simucture of cable and
viden services regulafion in Florida?

2. What has been the experience of other states
that have adopted statewide franchise
legislation?

3. What has been the outcome of Florida’s
statewide franchisc law to date?

Background

Cable television systems in the United States
were developed in the 194 {0 serve
communities unable o receive over-the-air
television broadcasts because of temmain or
distance from TV stations. Cable systerms have
expanded greally over time fo serve urban
settings and offer a wide variety of programs
that are often not available from broadeast
nelworks. The most recentt infermation reported
by the Federal Communications Commission
indicates that nalonwide, 538% of households

fThapier 610, F.5, The Consummer Choioe Act of 2007,

Office of Program Policy Analysis & Government Accountabifity

an office of the Floridz Legislature
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have cable television service® In addifion to
wradiional cable providers, other types of
comnpanies now  offer  video services io
gonsumers, incuding direct broadcast saiellite
companies and telecommunicabion companies
that provide cable and video services via
telephone lines or through underground fiber
optic cables.

For manv vears, the cable industry was
regulated as a natural monopoly comparable to
electrical utility and telephone companies.® To
deliver their services, cable providers typically
mstalled a network of copper coaxial lines either
underground or strung with telephone lines on
electric power poles. Due to these capital costs,
nhce a company made this mvestment in a
community, other providers were urnlikely to
duplicate the infrastrzcture investment and offer
competing setvices.

Local franchise agreements typically governed
local cable operations. Cable companies
mencrally were regulated by local govenumenls
ihal established franchise agreements with
providers in order to manage right-of-way
issues, To gain the access to public rights-of-way
needed to install cables underground or om
power poles, cable companies entered into
franchise agreements with local governments to
use the land in  exchange for adhering
10 specified conditions. These agreements
provided compantes a franchise to offer cable
services in exchange for payments of franchise
fees (sometimes millions of dollars), meefing
specified  customer  service  standards,

* Anrmaf Asstssment of Hie Sis of Comperian in ihe Market fr
the Deffvery of Video Frogremmdine, Federal Comununicalions
Cornmission, Janmay 2009, The data in e report i from 20048,

* Cable operitors aps also subjert to federal regeiations. These
indlude the Cable Commwunications Folioy Act of 1952, which
enlablished mEdelines for ownership, channed usags, fanchise
peovisions and renewals, sebroriber b and povacy, obscenitr,
waefliorized receptan of services, and bourdares for fedeml,
state, and local regulafions,  The 1552 Cable Televisiorn
Consumer Protxtion and Competiion A0t apd  the 199

Telecommunications Act vstoblished addibonal mequirements

irdended 0 prolect comsumers and provide 2 competitive, de-
tegmlated nalional poliey Framesvork far cable and videe seovices.
There has been sowwe quiestion of whether klecomuminications
companies that affer video seodees fall under M Fedesal
Conre e Hons Commission’s czble tegulatbons.

Repaort No. 0433

systematically extending coverage to previously
underserved areas, and regulation of their
service charges by the local governments.™*
Franchize requirements often varied from ome
jurisdiction o the next. As a result, companics
were required o cngage in extensive and
complex negotiations with large numbers of
local governments. For exampie, one induastry
representative indicated thal a single Florida
county had as many as 26 different local
franchising enbfes.

Statewide franchise laws have replaced local
franchise agreements in some statas. In recent
years, there has been an effurt in many states to
replace local regulation of cable operations with
statewide regwation. Proponenis of these
mnitiztives have held that the local franchise
process  is burdensome, costly, and  an
Hnnecessary barmrier fo  competition. The
pioponents have asserted that establishing
statewide regulation would eliminate the need
for compardes to engage i costly negotiations
with multiple entities, provide statewide levels
of service, and increase compefition by
gliminating local monopolies and allowing other
entities to offer television services through
felephone lines.

The National Conference of State Legislatures
reports that 27 states have considered and 20
have passed video franchise reform legislation
since 2005.  In 2007, the TFlorida Legislature
approved the Consumer Choice Act, which
gstablished a statewide [ranchise processs in
Florida.

+ Tocal franchise duthorilies could repolate retes for basie cable
umtliess e compardes could meel eertain federal stendords for
competiion.

* Fedetal law prowides that lacal franchise ageeements cannot be
poechudwve, However, once 4 cable company made the evvestimenst
tor develop cable senvices in a comymuniny, ather cable previdens
wete less likely fa invest the resources in order 10 anmepeate.
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Questions and Answers —

What is the current structure of
gahle and video services
regulation in Florida?

Local governments and several state agencies
provide lLimited oversight of cable and video
services In Floida.  Under local franchise
agreements  that existed in Florida prior to
2007, local governments established  various
requirements for cable providers. The Consumer
Choice Act provides that these local franchises are
terminated upon the issuance of a state certificate.”
Several state agencies now share responsibilifies
refated to  cable and  wvideo . services—the
Drepariment of State, Department of Agriculture
and Consumer Services, Department of Legal
Affairs, and Public Service Commission. However,
none of these agencies has regulatory authosity
over cable and video services providers.

*  Department of State. The department
accepts apphcations for state franchises and
issues certificates, posts franchise forms and
other information on its website.

»  Department of Agricullure and Consumer
Services. Beginning July 1, 2009, the
departrment is responsible for receiving and
nvestigating quality complainis concerning
cabte or video services statewide.”

*  Department of Legal Affairs. Depending on
the circumstances, the deparlment is
responsible for investigating complaints of
discrimination based on race or income that
pertain fo the statewide franchise holders
under the stale’s unfair and deceptive trade
practices law.®

* GPRAGA suTvey rasults indirate that local franchise agmierments
confnue in semme greas evenl fough ewisling cable companiss
may have roceived o swte Tmochise cerbficats,

*Tha [Deparmment of Asdolture and Comomer Secvices hies
aleady been handling cable  complaints for svene  local
govenunents, In Fiscal Year 2008-04, the department recetved
612 complainks, mary of which concerged poor service qualily-

“The Jocaf state’s atomey would handle cses not ander the
jurisdictional the Department of [egal Ataits.

OFPAGA Report

Publie Service Commission. This body
oversees telecommunications comparics but
docs not have authority over the video
services that they provide. The commission
also reports annually on competition for
telecommunications services,

Cable and video service providers pav fewer
franchising fees than they did under local
franchise agreements. The fees associated with
state franchise certificates are a one-time $10,600
application fee, 2 $1,000 fee paid every five vears
to process application updates, and a $35 fee for
information updates; these fees are submitted to
the Department of State, which deposits them
into  the Operating Trust Fund. Local
governmenls no longer receive revenue under
lorally negotiated franchise agreements.

What has been the experiencs of
other states that have adopted
statewide franchise legislation?

States” experiences vary due to subskantive
differences in their franchise laws, and very
fitde objective information is  available to
compare state experiences. No comprehensive
nationwide studies have been conducted that
agsess the impact of statewide cable amd video
franchises.

States have enacted franchise laws that
pravide differing roles for state znd local
governmants. While al least 20 afates haie
cnacted statewide cable and video fanchise
laws, there is litfle uniformity in the regulatory
structures they have ceated.  Some states,
including Florida and Texas, have replaced local
franchises with a centralized process that gives
certificate holders authority to provide services,
atthough the two states differ in how this
transition is o ococur.  In Florida, state law
provides that local franchise agreements are o
antomatically ferminate when the company is
issued a statewide certificate. In contrast, Texas
prohibits companies from obtaining a state
franchise until thefr local franchise agreements
expire.  In both states, local governments



OFPPAGA Report

continue their role as it relates to right-of-way
responsibilifies but no longer have authority fo
negotiate local franchise agreements.”

Other states have retained substantive roles for
local governments. For example, in Michigan
focal  govermanents conlinue Lo eskablish
franchise agreements but must use a uniform
agreement promulgated by the state’s Iublic
Lltilities Commission. Local governments must
approve the agresment within 3¢ davs of
submission by a company. In addibdon, local
sovernments in Michigan continue o receive
franchise fees, but the amount of these annual
fees is not to exceed 5% of gross revenues,

Little comprehensive information exists to
agsess state franchise reforms. Due in part fo
the differences in state franchise law, there is
litfle pubdic data available on the oukcomes of
state reform efforts. Most available informalion
on the advantages or disadvanlages of state
cable franchise reform is anecdotal and derived
from media sources or from reform advocates
and opponents.  Por example, in 200 an
advocacy group reported that rates for cable
services had declined as new providers entered
Texas and Indiana. However, reports from other
sources have contradicted these findings, stating
that rate reductions were misrepresented,
Media stodes in North Carolina, Georgia,
Maryland, and Michigan have reported that
cable tates have not declined and customer
service problems, espedally those concerning
timely reslutton of consumer complaints, have
increased  since  statewide franchises were
mplemented. Some 1eports about the outcomes
associated with new franchise laws may be
influenced by lhe amount of revenue that local
governments have lost because of the new
Faws.

! In Tumas, ¥ Iocal franefise apreements allow for tenewal, then
focaf governments may renew them. Onoe the loral agreemen:
expites, the provider mnst seek a slate-issued carlilcale.

MFlardss Corsuraer Choice Act amends Che 202, IS, and
broadens the stie’s comnmueimtons services tax to indude
video services.
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One of the few sindies by an independent entity
on the effects of the reform in cne state was
issted in-January 2009 by the Public Utility
Commission of Texas, This study concluded that
the state franchise law had eased bammiers to
cable service providers entering the market and
encouraged investment in the video and cable
market. Im the absence of available data to
measure compefiion or rate changes, the
commission based its conclusions on the nomber
of companies applying for and receiving
statewide franchises and the areas of the state
that reported having access to more than cne
video service provider. In the spring of 2009, the
Texas Legislature directed the commission to
conduct another study to determine the extent
to which cable or video service providers
currenttly offering cable or video services in the
state had engaged in discriminatory prachices
such as redlining, in which providers avoid

-areas with high concentrations of poor and

minority households.  This study is due by
December 31, 2004,

Mo comprehensive studies have been published
analyzing the impacts of statewide franchise
reforms on competition. Fully assessing the
impact of statewide cable franchises requires a
systematic analysis of the number of providers
offering services in each market, the market
share of each provider, and the rates charged for
seTvices over Hme. It i3 mmportant to analyze
each of these fackors, as changes In a single factor
may not  produce  material  benefits  for
consumers. For example, increasing the number
of providers in a market area may have little
impact for consumers if all providers charge
comparable rates for similar service packages.

Mo published studies have been conducted that
anzlyze changes in fhe number of providers
offertng services, market share, and rates
charged in the states that have implemented
statewide franchising, This is Hkely due fo at
least three faclors. Firsk, statewlde Banchise
systems  are telatively new in most shabes
Second, cable and  telecommunications
subscriber data, which is nesded o analyze
market share, is considered by companies to be
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proprietary information.'!  Finally, analyzing
changes In  rates: is complicated because
providers often market bundled packages that
can include woice, data, and video services,
making if moze difficult to identify costs for
mdividual services and compare rates over Gme
and across companies.

What has been the outcome of
Florida's statewide franchise law
to date?

Limited information exists for drawing conclusions
about  Florida's - statewide  franchise  law.
Department of State dak  indicates that 26
compardes have applied for and received shte
franchise certificates, and it appears that these
companies gradually are olfering services to more
Florida consumets. However, no  reliable
information exists in the public arena that would
allow a comprehensive analysis of changes in
competiion and rates for services, Cable and
telecommunications companies report that they
wil be unwilling to provide such data wnless the
Legislabure enacls new public records exemptions
to protect the confidentiality of this information.

Mew companies gradually are affering services fo
mare Florida consumers. In response fo the
Consumer Choice Act of 2007, the Department of
State has established a process to accept franchise
applicaions and award  slalewide cerlificales.
Between July 2007 and July 2009, the department
issued 26 certificates for statewide video franchises,
14 of which were issued to existing cable and video
service providers and 12 were issned to new
providers,

In addidon, bvo large, nabonal lelecommuni-
cations providers have begun to offer wvideo
services fo Flodda consumers. In the summer of
2004, Verizon offered cable senvices to consumers
in Pasco, Pinellas, Hillsborough, Polk, Manatee,
and Saraseta counties. During the same pericd,

" foonrding to the Fedetal Commundcadions Cooimission, cabte
providers are precluded froen mel=asing individual subscriler
irformazion.  Cempanies ase dechined te provide aggresate
irtrormation en subsoritaers due to propricsne comoers.
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AT&T offered its services to consuimers in Duval,
Clay, 5t Johns, Volusia, Seminole, Orange
Crceola, Brevard, 5t bude, Marin, FPalm Beach,
Broward, and Miami-Dade. [t is important to nofe
that ot all consumers in these countes may have
access to services. In some inskances, only certain
communities or areas within vach county have
access, depending on the business plan of the
individual company.'?

Lack aof reliable information prevents an
accurate assessment of competition for
cable and video services. Two barrters
currently preclude an analysis of the impact of
Florida's statewide franchise inikative—provider
roductance o share data and  insufficient
information provided by statewide franchdse
documents.

Cable and video companies declined 1o provide
OPPAGA the information needed lo assess
changes in indastry competition across the state.
Spedfically, due to their concerns about the
security of proprietary business information, the
comparies declined o provide the subsober
informabon necessary  to  determine market
share, In addition, the companies declined to
provide the specific service area descriptions and
rate information needed 0 assess service
palterns as they affect demographic and income
Zroups.

Qur ability to assess changes in competiion is
also himited because the franchise applications
required by state law do not require companies
to dearly indicate whether all conswmers in a
comnpany's service area will be able fo access
services. Some [ranchise application documents
may describe a “service area” as all or part of a
city, county, or a wire center if the provider
is a felecommunications provider.” However,

= The deseription of the Verizor: aned ATET seevios areas Is Based
an publicly available documenti. In the absence of infonoadon
[T tha companies, we velied on fFenchise doouments: provided
b Bhe Deparleiens of Siale. Howsrar, these doruments do nat
contain sufficicnt nfenmaon e precisely determine ooveraps
areat within counties.

% A& wire cenler Is 4 canngl Jocation of point of convergence whete
plusicad telephone civeuits ave inlermuzeddsd; ypically housed
i a central office owersed by an incanent Jecal exchange casder,



OFFPAGA Report

depending on the technology, only some people
fnt an area mayv have access to services.

Avajlable data indicates that the numhber of
cable subscrihers has increasad slightly under
statewide franchising. In the absence of market
share and rate Information for all statewide
franchisees, OPPAGA examined statewide
changes in basic cable subscaibers for the state’s
tradittonial cable companies to determine if there
have been significant market changes. Entry
into the market by new providers including
traditional telecommunications companies could
result in declines in the number of basic cable
subscribers served by tradifiomal  cable
companiss as people switch their service  a
new provider.

Al the skate level, information from traditional
cable companies shows a small net increase in
hasic cable suobscribers.  Tndustry information
shows that the number of basic cable stbscribers
increased in Florida by approxdmately 2% from
2007 to 2009 (from 4,960,629 to 5,046,547, or
nearly 86,000 additional basic subsctbers).™
However, nationwide, figures reported by the
Natiopnal Cable and Telecommunications
Association for 20807 and 2008 show a dedline in
basic video customers fom 64.9 mullion o 63.7
million.”

Local governments report limited changes but
challenges in addressing consumer complzints
and coneerns with govermmenl =zcceess
channels. We surveved local govermunents to
gain their perspectives on the cffects of the
change from local to statewide franchises
County and municipal governments that
msponded to our survey generally reported that
they have seen little change in services, access,

Y These dala o Basic cable subscribers For Florica ane based on
survey data collected pationaly by industeoy ecperts, The figuces
oy not dude small coble provides: n Flodda fhat dad awt
respond o the survey.

" Tha assndafion reparts that natinmwide for the Three veams
ending in March 2009, Verlzan had added 223 miliion vidss
cusimeens to it fber opiie networks, In addition, e asocdation
alio teparts that as of Diecember 2008, ATET bad added more
than & wolliom new wides servics ousianers 2o 1hat The palion's
b Targest satellite broadeast companies currently serve mone
thian 30 mifion customers.
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or rates under the new law.”® Of the 29 counties
responding to the survey, over half {13} reported
no idenbifiable changes, as did 34 of the 57 cifies
that responded to the survey question.” A few
local governments reported benefits induding
fewer consumer complaints and lower rates,

However, the local governments also reporied
several chatleniges under the new law, Incuding
concerns about consumer complaints, local
gowvernment access channels, and unrealized
rate reductions.” TLocal governments reported
that they continue fo  receive  comsumer
comnplaints. In addition, scveral reported that
comnpanics were less likely to respond to
consumer or local government attempts Lo
resolve complainds since the new law went info
effect. Officials also expressed the opinion that
the statewide complaint process will be more
burdensome for residents and decrease the
likelihood of complaint resolubon.

bocalb govermments alse reported  reduced
consumer access to government access channels
that provide information to residents. Some
companiss have moved these channels on the
dial, making it more difficult for residents o find
them; some governments reported that their
channels had been moved and are no longer
accessible without paying for a cable box. In
additton, several local governments expressed
concern about new programming requirements
for the access channels, loss of franchise fee

“The stabe’s &7 couwntes and 433 municpal sevemmioend seewe
provided the opperunity o respond 0 an online survey ot
submil the surney wia email ar fax.  Twenbhi-nine coonty
puverpents [437%) responded to the suever, sepeesenting 45
million residenss in unincorzomted erces of the shte. Seamty-
foar muenicipa! govemments [12%) respanded to the sumeey,
reprsenting 3.1 millicn residents in incorporatzd areas af the
stahe

In terns of prdthve change, the suovcy asked Tocal gevenuments
whaihar they had seen consusmer access o additional services,
irprroved quality of service (fewer complaints), fower mles, o
ather positiee changes, In terms of prohlems resulting froomn the
mew law, the survey esked sboot vadows consmmer aod Jocal
EOVETTLNeT:E concetns.

¥ A yzed hersin, local acoess chanmels refer to poblic, eduational,
ued povermunent aceess channels,  Public access channels aze
avaiable for wse by the public They woadly are adiodoistesed
either by the cable apematar or by a thitd party desiznated by the
Franchising au oty
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revenues fo support these channels, and the
potential for the loss of these channels. Finally,
several local governments reported that rates for
cable and wideo services had not deereased as
was expected under the new franchise process,

The Legislature may wish to provide pubiic
records profection for subscriber data to
facilitate analysis of the effects of cable
reform.  The Consumer Choice Act directs
OPPAGA to analyze cable indusiry competition
and report to the President of Senate and the
Speaker  of House of Representabives
bv  December 1, 2014 Cable  and
telecommunicatinns companies report that they
are unwilling o0 provide proprietary subscriber
data needed to assess compefition within the
indusiry and services to consumers unless this
mmformation will be exempt from  public
disclosure. I the Legislahire wishes QPFAGA's
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2014 study 1o assess these factors, it may wish to
consider amending s, 610.119(1}, Florida Statuies,
to require providers to submit information on
aggregate numbers of subscribers by census
block level and to provide that these data are not
subiject to public records disclosure. Alternately,
the Legislature could modify the stody
requirements o no longer direct OFPAGA {o
analyze the effect of siatewlde franchising om
availability of video services to subscribers
throughout the state and the level of
competition within the industry.

Agency Response ———

A draft of our report was submilled fo the
Secretary of Sfate for review and response; a
formal response was not required, although the
depariment provided comments informally.
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